

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

STATE OF MISSOURI
PUBLIC SERVICE COMMISSION
TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS

Local Public Hearing
December 14, 2016, 6:00 p.m.

Carrollton, Missouri
Rupe Community Center
Volume 9

In the Matter of the Application of Grain File No.
Belt Express Clean Line LLC for a
Certificate of Convenience and Necessity EA-2016-0358
Authorizing it to Construct, Own, Operate,
Control, Manage and Maintain a High Voltage,
Direct Current Transmission Line and an
Associated Converter Station Providing an
Interconnection on the Maywood-Montgomery
345kv Transmission Line

MICHAEL BUSHMANN, Presiding
SENIOR REGULATORY LAW JUDGE

DANIEL Y. HALL, Chairman
WILLIAM P. KENNEY, COMMISSIONER

REPORTED BY:
BETH A. KALTENBERGER
CSR, CCR, RPR, CRR

1 A P P E A R A N C E S
2 For Grain Belt Express Clean Line, LLC:
3 MR. JOSHUA K.T. HARDEN
 joshua.harden@dentons.com

4
5 For Show Me Concerned Landowners:
6 MR. DAVID C. LINTON
 DAVID C. LINTON, LLC
7 314 Romaine Spring Vies
 Fenton, Missouri 63026
8 djlinton@charter.net

9
10 For the Missouri Joint Municipal
 Electric Utility Commission:
11 MR. DOUGLAS L. HEALY
 HEALY LAW OFFICES, LLC
12 3010 East Battlefield
 Suite A
13 Springfield, Missouri 65804

14
15 For the Office of the Public Counsel:
16 MR. TIMOTHY OPITZ
 STATE OF MISSOURI
 DEPARTMENT OF ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT
17 OFFICE OF THE PUBLIC COUNSEL
 200 Madison Street
18 P.O. Box 2230
 Jefferson City, Missouri 65102
19 timothy.opitz@ded.mo.gov

20
21 For the Public Service commission:
22 MR. NATHAN WILLIAMS
 DEPUTY COUNSEL
 P.O. Box 360
23 Jefferson City, Missouri 65102

24
25

1 PROCEEDINGS

2 JUDGE BUSHMANN: We're on the record. Good
3 evening. It's December 14th, 2016, and we're in
4 Carrollton, Missouri. Missouri Public Service
5 Commission has set this time for a local public
6 hearing in the case captioned In the Matter of the
7 Application of Grain Belt Express Clean Line, LLC, for
8 a Certificate of Convenience and Necessity Authorizing
9 it to Construct, Own, Operate, Control, Manage and
10 Maintain a High Voltage Direct Current Transmission
11 Line and an Associated Converter Station Providing an
12 Interconnection on the Maywood-Montgomery 345kv
13 Transmission Line. File Number is EA-2016-0358.

14 My name is Michael Bushmann. I'm the
15 regulatory law judge who will be presiding over the
16 hearing. With me this evening is Chairman Daniel Hall
17 and Commissioner Bill Kenney.

18 Mr. Chairman, did you want to say anything?

19 CHAIRMAN HALL: Good evening. Thank you
20 for being here. Thank you for sharing your thoughts,
21 concerns, fears, et cetera about this particular
22 project. This is a very important part of the
23 process. Everything that you say here tonight when
24 you're testifying will be transcribed, and it will be
25 put in the record so that each of the commissioners,

1 not just the two of us here today, but all five of us
2 will have access to your comments when we are making a
3 decision in this case.

4 This is a really tough case with a lot of
5 very complex issues, but it's very, very helpful for
6 us to have a human face on those particular issues,
7 which is why we're here today. And we look forward to
8 hearing your comments.

9 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thank you,
10 Mr. Chairman. I notice someone out there, John
11 Cauthorn. I just wanted to say thank you, Senator.
12 We served two years together, but I just appreciate
13 the service and the leadership you gave the Missouri
14 senate, that you've given the state, and you've given
15 your community. Thank you very much.

16 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Let's have counsel make
17 their entries of appearances. For Grain Belt Express
18 Clean Line, LLC.

19 MR. HARDEN: Joshua Harden.

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Commission staff.

21 MR. WILLIAMS: Nathan Williams.

22 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Office of the Public
23 Counsel.

24 MR. OPITZ: Tim Opitz for the Office of
25 Public Counsel.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Show Me Concerned
2 Landowners.

3 MR. LINTON: David Linton.

4 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And Missouri Joint
5 Municipal Electric Utility Commission.

6 MR. HEALY: Doug Healy.

7 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you, Counsel.

8 I remind everybody in the audience to make
9 sure your cell phones are silenced so there's no
10 interruption during the hearing. And before taking
11 testimony I want to give you some information about
12 why the Commission is holding the public hearing. The
13 Commission has already scheduled an evidentiary
14 hearing to take testimony in March of next year
15 regarding Grain Belt Express's application, but it has
16 also scheduled hearings in each of the counties that
17 are affected by the proposed transmission line to give
18 members of the public a chance to state their support
19 or their opposition to the project. And that is the
20 purpose of this evening's hearing.

21 For those who would like to provide
22 testimony, I'm going to call names listed on a sign-up
23 sheet. When I call your name, please come forward to
24 the podium. I'll put you under oath and then ask you
25 to state your name and where you live, and then you

1 can offer your comments to the Commission.

2 The Commission has established some ground
3 rules for this hearing to try and give everybody a
4 chance to testify within a reasonable amount of time.
5 First, you can only testify at one hearing. Second,
6 your testimony is limited to five minutes per person.
7 I'll have a timer next to me that will help you keep
8 track of your time, and we'll give you a warning if
9 your time is up. If you haven't finished your
10 comments when the time has expired, you can submit all
11 of your comments either in writing or by phone with
12 the Commission, and you can check with the Commission
13 staff at the table near the door on how to do that.
14 You can't donate your time to another witness who runs
15 out of time.

16 And the Commission won't be able to answer
17 any of your questions today because they have to
18 remain impartial until the evidence is presented at
19 the evidentiary hearing, so if you have questions,
20 please direct those to Commission staff or company
21 representatives.

22 My final request is to please be polite and
23 courteous to all those who are testifying tonight, and
24 treat them as you would like to be treated.

25 The first name I have is, Amy Harvey. Amy

1 Harvey?

2 Some of these names are people that did not
3 get to testify at this afternoon's hearing, so they
4 may not be here. Ward Stevens? Phyllis Cyclean?
5 Betty Vasner? And Joyce Vetter. I know Joyce Vetter
6 is here. Please come forward.

7 (The witness was sworn.)

8 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
9 and spell your last name.

10 THE WITNESS: Joyce Vetter, V-E-T-T-E-R.

11 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

12 THE WITNESS: Plattsburg, Missouri.

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please go ahead.

14 THE WITNESS: Thank you for giving me an
15 opportunity to speak and tour the entire Northwest. I
16 started in Camden, I went to Polo, and now I'm here,
17 wherever this is, but I have a unique problem.

18 I'm not a farmer, but my husband and I own
19 an airport which will be directly in the path of the
20 power line. It is not at the end of our airport, but
21 the very beginning. When Clean Line had a meeting, we
22 explained to them that it was running too close, and
23 they wrote down everything, and assured us it would be
24 moved farther away. Unfortunately, it actually looks
25 like it's come closer, not farther.

1 Now, my husband worked at TWA. We all know
2 the story of TWA, but the problem is a lot of people
3 don't realize that the retirements of the TWA
4 employees were affected by the bankruptcy.

5 We bought our airport. It's been there
6 since 1965. It went on the market in the '80s, and we
7 thought, okay, we'll buy this. We'll invest in this
8 property.

9 We both fly, and so we lived in Kansas. We
10 moved to Plattsburg, Missouri, with the entire intent
11 to run the airport. And then as an investment, for
12 when we got older, we could sell, and someone else
13 could take over the airport.

14 We actually even went to Clinton County and
15 talked to the Commissioners to make sure there was no
16 problems, and then out of the blue, this comes up,
17 twice now. So the problem is it will devalue my
18 property enormously. In fact, I had a woman who came
19 to see me two years ago that wanted to know if we
20 wanted to sell. She didn't want it for the airport,
21 but she wanted it for the buildings. And we told her
22 no. And she said, "Okay. Well, in a couple years
23 when we have windmills and a power line, I can get it
24 for half the price." And she's right. There won't be
25 an airport.

1 We have built buildings on the airport, we
2 have airplanes there. And these people are not
3 doctors or lawyers or anything like that. They work
4 at Ford. There's one that's a school teacher.
5 Several are retired TWA or American Airlines
6 employees.

7 I beg of you not to let this happen. This
8 is my money that we have invested, and that is going
9 to be part of what keeps us together as we get older
10 and older. And if this goes through, then we're out
11 of luck.

12 It will affect the ag planes. I don't care
13 what anybody says. Ag planes can change their course
14 only if there's not something that's impeding them
15 like fence rows, lots of fence rows.

16 We also had a gentleman who flew the
17 pipeline out of our airport. And they fly low because
18 they have to see the pipeline. They have to know
19 nobody is working on top of it, nobody is doing
20 anything. So there are a lot of circumstances
21 besides. And I feel for the farmers, no doubt.
22 They're not building on my property, obviously, but
23 they're affecting it enormously.

24 If they want to bury it, if we want to go
25 into the 21st Century, you know, and bury it like

1 they're doing all the cables, I don't have a problem
2 with that. And I don't know about the farmers, but,
3 you know, do it. Show that we're progressing. We're
4 the Show Me state.

5 But, really, that's all I've got to say.
6 There are a lot of things affecting this that people
7 don't think about, and I'm one of them. Thank you,
8 guys.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

10 CHAIRMAN HALL: So how close is the
11 proposed line to the airfield?

12 THE WITNESS: I don't know. I just
13 happened to see it at our Polo meeting, and I had to
14 look at it during our break because they didn't have
15 that map out, so I really don't know the exact
16 distance. I can't tell you that.

17 CHAIRMAN HALL: But you know for a fact
18 that you'll be unable to use it as an airport if the
19 line goes in?

20 THE WITNESS: We can use it, but the runway
21 is here, and those big tension lines are there. Small
22 airports, big tension lines, not a good combination.
23 It's not like it's four miles away where you could go
24 around. And if you're coming in the airport, and
25 although we try to fly only in the best conditions,

1 there are times when things happen that you don't bank
2 on, so you have to worry about that. The towers, the
3 cell towers, are bad enough, trust me, but there's
4 just one stuck here. You're talking about a huge
5 expansion.

6 CHAIRMAN HALL: Thank you.

7 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Excuse me. Thank
8 you. Just real quick, but are airplanes in, say,
9 Plattsburg, aren't they governed by the aviation
10 department as far as where they can put towers in
11 relation and transmission lines in relation to
12 runways?

13 THE WITNESS: If you're a public airport.
14 Now, "public" means that anybody and everybody can
15 come land on your property, which makes you bigger or
16 more susceptible to people who don't fly well or you
17 don't want on your property, so you can actually take
18 it private. And ours is private, so we are no longer
19 notified by the FAA of what's going on.

20 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: So they don't govern
21 anything around you because you're a private air
22 strip?

23 THE WITNESS: Pretty much. We had two cell
24 towers go up that we didn't know were there until we
25 saw the flashing light.

1 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thank you.

2 THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Joe Don McGaugh.

4 (The witness was sworn.)

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
6 and spell your last name.

7 THE WITNESS: Joe Don McGaugh,
8 M-C-G-A-U-G-H.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

10 THE WITNESS: Carrollton, Missouri.

11 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

12 THE WITNESS: Thanks for being here this
13 evening. Again, my name is Joe Don McGaugh. I'm the
14 state representative for the 39th District. I
15 represent Ray, Carroll, and Chariton Counties in the
16 Missouri house.

17 I was born and raised here in Carrollton.
18 I moved back several years ago after I finished up my
19 schooling, and started a small business here in
20 Carrollton. My wife is from Carrollton. We have
21 three young kids who we wanted to bring back to this
22 community.

23 Prior to my time in the legislature, I was
24 the city attorney for the town of Carrollton. The
25 town of Carrollton is a member of MoPEP, so since the

1 last time we've been here, I've been excited to see
2 that Clean Line has struck a deal with MoPEP to bring
3 clean power to this community.

4 I support this project for a variety of
5 reasons. Like the other communities in Missouri that
6 I represent, we're fighting for our survival. We are
7 all fighting for economic opportunities. We're all
8 fighting for the opportunity to fund basic
9 governmental services such as roads, schools and
10 public safety without tax increases, and we want our
11 communities to be places that bring back children much
12 like my wife and I did.

13 I believe this project will help in all of
14 these areas, in addition to bringing further economic
15 benefit to rural Missouri. The opportunity for the
16 transmission line to come through our community, the
17 two communities that I represent, Carroll and Chariton
18 Counties, will be opportunities to add another tool to
19 the tool bag that we can hopefully get more employers
20 more opportunity to rural Missouri.

21 So we appreciate you being here this
22 evening. If there's any questions, I will be more
23 than happy to answer those.

24 COMMISSIONER KENNEY: Thank you.

25 THE WITNESS: Thank you, guys.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

2 Diane Davies.

3 (The witness was sworn.)

4 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
5 and spell your last name.

6 THE WITNESS: My name is Diane Davies,
7 D-A-V-I-E-S.

8 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

9 THE WITNESS: Carroll County.

10 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

11 THE WITNESS: I thank you, the Public
12 Service Commission, for your time. I too have
13 attended the seven meetings across the State of
14 Missouri, and plan to do the same tonight. I am
15 asking the ones here to please stay until everyone has
16 finished talking. I have given you the courtesy to
17 listen to you. Please do the same for the rest of us.
18 So many leave a short time after they speak or during
19 a break, thinking no one notices.

20 I am asking you, the Public Service
21 Commission, to put your feet in my shoes. Now, my
22 land has become your land. You will be making the
23 decision for all of us that we will have to live with
24 forever, generation after generation.

25 What happens when we can no longer put food

1 on your tables because our rights to farm the way it
2 should be done is taken away from us? When private
3 individuals want to take your land by eminent domain,
4 they can do what they want, when they want, at any
5 time, not caring about the landowner. Why would
6 anyone want to deal with Clean Line when they can sell
7 at any time, even to a foreign country? Why would any
8 American want a foreign country to have access to our
9 property? Those two words, "foreign country," should
10 be an automatic no. That is un-American.

11 When you told Clean Line "no" once, why
12 must we do this again? I guess the word "no" has no
13 meaning.

14 A comment was made by someone that they
15 wouldn't be afraid for their grandchildren to play
16 under this line. I say they don't love their
17 grandchildren. Another person said, "I want all the
18 money I can get." First Timothy 6:10, "For the love
19 of money is the root of all evil." I also say they
20 have no love for their land.

21 If this line must go through, I have a
22 solution that will please everyone. The ones who want
23 it, Clean Line, and those who do not want it. For all
24 those speaking in favor, sign petitions in favor, can
25 have it. Let Clean Line zigzag over all their land,

1 putting up tires and wire. After all they did say it
2 was a good idea. They will be happy, Clean Line will
3 be happy, and the ones who don't want it will be
4 happy. Problem solved. I find that talk is big when
5 one is faced with that situation. I am sure they
6 would not want it on their land either.

7 Those saying it would bring in so many
8 jobs. These jobs are only for a short time in life.
9 What about the people's jobs that are fighting this?
10 Our farms are forever. Those saying, "We understand
11 how you feel," you are not in my shoes. You don't
12 know how I feel. Not possible.

13 The largest percentage of people who want
14 this are engineers, linemen, environmentalists, people
15 selling their products and so on, who will only profit
16 for a short time. A large group from St. Louis, many
17 who are students, are in favor of this line. Most
18 know nothing about the productivity of farmland.

19 Clean Line doesn't want to be a public
20 utility. They want to use eminent domain. They want
21 their cake, and eat it too. Clean Line now is only
22 good for Clean Line. What will it be like when they
23 get the power of eminent domain?

24 I have a message for those Texas
25 billionaires or the Clean Line Belt Line, the golden

1 rule, do unto others as you would have them do unto
2 you.

3 I ask you, the Public Service Commission,
4 to please deny Clean Line. Thank you.

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Linda Trammell.

6 (The witness was sworn.)

7 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
8 and spell your last name.

9 THE WITNESS: Linda Trammell,
10 T-R-A-M-M-E-L-L. I live in Polo, about two miles
11 north of Polo.

12 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please go ahead.

13 THE WITNESS: I found out today, in looking
14 at the map, that our farm is about a half mile from
15 the proposed route that Grain Belt has, and I just
16 want to make it very clear that I am adamantly opposed
17 to this project.

18 One reason we moved to this area over 20
19 years ago is the beauty of our landscape, and I would
20 imagine, as you have driven across the State of
21 Missouri and seen the rural area that will be marred
22 by these power lines, that we have a beautiful
23 landscape. Part of what I love is bird watching,
24 hiking, hunting, camping, fishing, all done in the
25 beauty that I came here to enjoy. So I think many

1 people we've heard testify previously love this area
2 because of that beauty.

3 I noticed, driving through Carroll County,
4 I think it looks even prettier than Caldwell County.
5 The farms are just so pristine-looking.

6 Many people, of course, make their living
7 in this area and on their land, and we know that this
8 project, as many farmers have testified, will be a
9 terrible hardship upon them, but as a nurse and a
10 mother and a grandmother, I would really like to know
11 what all the health effects are. And since a
12 transmission line of this magnitude has not been
13 built, and we don't know all the possible health
14 effects, I'm very concerned about that and what it
15 might mean for my children and grandchildren.

16 No one has asked me if I would like to
17 purchase Clean Line's electricity, but let me make it
18 very clear, I do not wish to. I'm a proud member of
19 our own farmers electric co-op. I'm part owner. It's
20 a good service. It's fairly priced. I've gotten to
21 know the employees because they're long term. On the
22 rare occasion we have had a power outage, it's people
23 that I've gotten to know because they stay with their
24 jobs 10, 20, 30 years. So I have no interest in
25 electricity from Grain Belt.

1 We have heard, when I was at the Polo
2 meeting earlier today, testimony from many people that
3 support the Grain Belt, and it came to my attention
4 that most of those have a business or a job that this
5 project -- they will financially gain from, whether it
6 was a land surveyor or many other people, union jobs,
7 jobs that they will have a benefit. I would think
8 that would slant their testimony.

9 We're the ones that are losing. They're
10 the ones that would be gaining. I, personally, have
11 spoken with many, many people in Caldwell County, and
12 I have not found one person in support of this
13 project, so I would be interested, as you examine the
14 testimony, how many people did you hear from in
15 Caldwell County that make their living farming or just
16 make -- just reside in our community that actually say
17 that they want this project? I have not found one
18 person.

19 I also noticed that most of the people that
20 spoke in support do not live in a rural area. I heard
21 Kansas City, I heard Overland Park. There were very
22 few people that lived in our area.

23 I really have to say I'm impressed at how
24 much time you folks have spent in listening to us at
25 public hearings. I've never seen that before, and I

1 know it has taken a great amount of time. I thank you
2 for your careful consideration of a decision that will
3 affect our beautiful landscape for the rest of my
4 life, my children's life, and my grandchildren. Thank
5 you.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

7 Dalton Gatrel.

8 (The witness was sworn.)

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: What's your last name?

10 THE WITNESS: Gatrel, G-A-T-R-E-L.

11 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Okay. Go ahead.

12 THE WITNESS: My name is Dalton Gatrel.

13 Thank you so much for taking the time to listen to all
14 of us.

15 As I said, my name is Dalton Gatrel, and as
16 the kid of one of the leaders of the Block Grain Belt,
17 I have been very involved in this issue. One thing
18 for sure this has taken up a lot of my mom's time.

19 My little country school would be within a
20 half mile of the proposed line, and it would almost
21 touch the town's borders. My mom and the other
22 parents are really concerned about the increase of
23 risk of childhood cancer associated with this massive
24 line.

25 Also, our whole county, the power line

1 would run alongside the existing pipeline. There is a
2 whole lot of talk about corrosion and other perils. I
3 can tell you even when I was six, I thought it was a
4 pretty bad idea to keep a gas can near the campfire.

5 My goal in life is to keep my family ranch
6 going. I need to be able to say who can build on our
7 land or not. If the president has said that this
8 private company can build without landowners'
9 permission and use eminent domain, then I may not be
10 able to continue in my family ranch and footsteps.

11 There is a lot of kids in my community that
12 love the land and plan on staying on it. We need for
13 you to protect us from Grain Belt and tell them no.

14 Thank you again for listening to us.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Brenda Cauthorn.

16 (The witness was sworn.)

17 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
18 and spell your last name.

19 THE WITNESS: Brenda Cauthorn,
20 C-A-U-T-H-O-R-N.

21 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

22 THE WITNESS: Mexico, Missouri in Audrain
23 County.

24 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

25 THE WITNESS: Mr. Chairman and committee

1 members, thank you for your service and being here.

2 I want to say that I strongly oppose Clean
3 Line receiving utility status. My husband and I own
4 property in Audrain and Monroe Counties, and our
5 property was homesteaded in 1834, and our 23-year-old
6 son and his wife want to continue farming.

7 It appears that those in support of Clean
8 Line want to use our property for their gain, and I
9 would just like to mention to them to not bite the
10 hand that feeds them. In First Kings 21, King Ahab
11 wanted to buy Naboth's property. Naboth did not want
12 to sell his property. Naboth told the king, God
13 forbid that I give you my father's inheritance.

14 We do not oppose renewable energy. I do
15 not want the State of Missouri to set a precedent of
16 using eminent domain to allow a for-profit company to
17 abuse the process. Thank you for your time.

18 Do you have any questions?

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

20 CHAIRMAN HALL: Thank you.

21 JUDGE BUSHMANN: John Cauthorn.

22 THE WITNESS: I didn't sign up. My wife
23 signed up, but I don't think I need to testify. I
24 can't do it.

25 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Very good.

1 Atticus Francken.

2 (The witness was sworn.)

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
4 and spell your last name.

5 THE WITNESS: Atticus Francken,
6 F-R-A-N-C-K-E-N.

7 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

8 THE WITNESS: McClean County, Illinois.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

10 THE WITNESS: I stand here in strong
11 support sort of the Grain Belt Express project. So
12 far three states have approved it, Illinois, Kansas
13 and Indiana.

14 This is a strong Midwest project that I
15 think will do a lot of good for this region. Like I
16 said, I've been living in downstate Illinois, and
17 having been to Indiana, I don't recall ever hearing
18 about Indiana being an East Coast state. It is a
19 midwestern state, as many would know if they had
20 visited there.

21 But as regulators, you have two main jobs.
22 Usually you want to make sure that there's a strong,
23 stable electrical grid infrastructure, but you also
24 want to maintain the affordability of the rates that
25 customers have to pay. And most of the time those two

1 goals are completely opposed. If you want to improve
2 the infrastructure, it's going to pass the cost down
3 to the rate payers.

4 In this case, that's not going to happen.
5 The rates will actually go down and save Missourians
6 \$10 million per year. And you'll also have an
7 improved electrical grid infrastructure. That is
8 something that is very rare that that occurs. But
9 also the benefits to 200,000 residents of Missouri who
10 will have power under this plan, including the town of
11 Carrollton, which will be a customer of this line.
12 That presents a large public benefit to the citizens
13 of this region.

14 One thing that I hear is that we can't
15 allow private companies to obtain public utility
16 status, and have the privileges that are contained in
17 there. The issue is that all of the utilities that
18 you work with now are private companies, so I find it
19 very hard to believe that people would be advocating
20 for a large state takeover of the entire utility
21 industry which would be the only way to prevent
22 private companies from exercising the privileges of
23 public utilities having that status.

24 And also that the Public Service Commission
25 is not granting the specific eminent domain questions

1 that are occurring. That happens in a court of law.
2 You know, if Clean Line gets this certificate, they're
3 not going to just be able to take land as they wish.
4 Each time an eminent domain case will be, you know,
5 presented, it must go to a court of law where a judge
6 will decide whether or not it's going to be a -- you
7 know, it's a valid claim. So I don't see why this is
8 directly going to interfere with that.

9 But, really, also, I have to say there is
10 no evidence that electricity and the radiation caused
11 by that is going to have a negative public health
12 impact on the residents of Missouri. I don't see any
13 signs of backing for that. If that's the case we're
14 already in trouble. There's a lot of electricity
15 around you all the time.

16 And I would like to remind everybody that
17 in Missouri, the voters decided that renewable energy
18 needed to be a substantial portion of the electric
19 portfolio. That was decided by the voters. It won,
20 and it should be implemented because it's the will of
21 the people.

22 This brings 500 megawatts of renewable
23 energy without raising rates on utility payers to the
24 State of Missouri. That's a large benefit. It brings
25 Missouri along the path of what it has to do as a

1 state and, you know, brings -- and brings us all
2 forward together, towards a better electrical grid
3 infrastructure that needs work anyway.

4 Otherwise, I want to touch on the tax
5 benefits here. Growing up in downstate Illinois, a
6 lot of economic situations are very similar. We're
7 always looking for ways to stabilize and diversify the
8 economy, diversify the tax revenue, without having to
9 raise taxes on everybody. My friends, people I grew
10 up with, who are on fixed incomes, this is a big deal
11 to them. They can't afford their rates to continue to
12 go up because of an aging infrastructure, and they
13 can't afford taxes going up and up and up.

14 This is one of the rare occasions where you
15 have the best of both worlds in that you can improve
16 your infrastructure, while simultaneously lowering
17 rates for all consumers in the region. That's a big
18 benefit. The benefits to the public are clear, and I
19 think it's the duty of the Commission to see that, see
20 the benefits and the want of the majority of the State
21 of Missouri, and to approve this project. Thank you
22 very much.

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: There's a question.

24 MR. LINTON: Mr. Francken, are you
25 employed?

1 THE WITNESS: I am employed.

2 MR. LINTON: By who?

3 THE WITNESS: I am employed by a fund in
4 Chicago.

5 MR. LINTON: What's the fund?

6 THE WITNESS: It's called Ulico.

7 MR. LINTON: Ulico?

8 THE WITNESS: Yes.

9 MR. LINTON: And do they have an interest
10 in the Grain Belt?

11 THE WITNESS: No.

12 MR. LINTON: That's it.

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

14 Vicki Hunt.

15 (The witness was sworn.)

16 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Can you state your name,
17 and spell your last name.

18 THE WITNESS: Vicki Hunt, H-U-N-T.

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

20 THE WITNESS: Braymer, Missouri in Carroll
21 County.

22 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

23 THE WITNESS: Mr. Chairman and members of
24 the committee, I would like to thank you for holding
25 these meetings so we have the opportunity to come

1 before you and express either our support or our
2 opposition to the Grain Belt Express.

3 Tonight I would like to ask you a couple of
4 questions. The first question would be, I guess, is
5 how you would feel if this Clean Line power line would
6 come by within a few hundred yards of your home, of
7 your children and grandchildren's home?

8 Grain Belt Express tells us there will be
9 no health repercussions from this power line, but in
10 all honesty, they don't know since nothing of this
11 magnitude has been constructed. Electricfence.com
12 states that high-voltage lines can emit high levels of
13 electromagnetic fields for up to a quarter mile on
14 either side of the lines, and that that EMFs have been
15 linked to leukemia, especially in children, breast
16 cancer, brain cancer, several health problems. And
17 this article was updated in July of 2016.

18 I found many sites on the Internet that are
19 concerned by the health issues caused by high-voltage
20 power lines. I also found sites that will tell you
21 that there is no harm from the high-voltage power
22 lines. So, again, in all honesty, we don't know the
23 implications of these power lines, and I don't want my
24 family or other families in the path of this power
25 line to be an experimental test group.

1 And with all due respect, Joe Don McGaugh,
2 this power line is not going through your community.
3 You don't live near this power line. It is not going
4 through Carrollton or this area. It is not in your
5 local community, but it is in mine.

6 Another question I might propose to you is
7 how you would feel if your home or acreage was taken
8 over by a private entity. This private entity has the
9 power of eminent domain over your home, and you can't
10 make any improvements, remodel your kitchen, build a
11 garage, redo the bathroom without asking permission.

12 Far reaching, you say? Probably. But it's
13 happening to us, and years ago we would have never
14 thought such a thing. Our property that we have
15 worked for and paid for is being threatened by this
16 private company. And why? It is not about what this
17 company can do for our country or for our state. It's
18 about lining their own pockets. A privately held
19 company that wants to make money, more money, at the
20 expense of others. It is about greed.

21 Please, I implore you to show this company
22 that Missouri is above their tactics, that the State
23 of Missouri will stand up and protect the health
24 concerns of its citizens and the rights of Missouri
25 landowners.

1 Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,
2 our fate rests in your hands. Please, please protect
3 us and turn down the Grain Belt Express. Thank you so
4 much for your time.

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

6 Patrick Peters.

7 (The witness was sworn.)

8 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
9 and spell your last name.

10 THE WITNESS: Patrick Peters, P-E-T-E-R-S.

11 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

12 THE WITNESS: Carroll County.

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

14 THE WITNESS: My name is Patrick Peters. I
15 currently live in Carroll County. I appreciate you,
16 Public Service Commission and staff, taking time to
17 come to Carroll County and hear our concerns.

18 My family and I are very opposed to the
19 construction of this Grain Belt Express transmission
20 line. This company is planning to run this power line
21 through our family farm. It will be close to my
22 mother's home where I grew up.

23 Although this private company will pay us
24 for an easement on our farm ground, it does not
25 compensate for the reduction of value in our family

1 home. I know that my children will be unwilling to
2 raise their children close to this power line;
3 therefore, our family home for over a hundred years
4 will be abandoned after my mother is gone because of
5 this power line.

6 These investors will make millions of
7 dollars after these easements, and it will be on the
8 backs of hard working families like us. They should
9 at least move the line away from people's homes or be
10 forced to provide financial help to build a new house
11 further away from the lines so we can be safe. The
12 cost would be a drop in the bucket to these investors.
13 Unfortunately, we know this won't happen; therefore, I
14 urge you to reject this project to protect the
15 citizens of Missouri from these financial predators.
16 Thank you.

17 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

18 Matt Pinkerton.

19 (The witness was sworn.)

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name and
21 spell your last name.

22 THE WITNESS: Matt Pinkerton,

23 P-I-N-K-E-R-T-O-R-N.

24 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

25 THE WITNESS: I live in Plattsburg,

1 Missouri.

2 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

3 THE WITNESS: I live in Plattsburg,
4 Missouri, and I work for PAR Electrical Contractors.
5 I do live in a community, and I am -- I do see the
6 power lines. I work around the industry all the time.
7 I've seen them. I hear the concerns of some of the
8 people, and I've heard them before, and I also know
9 that some of them are unjustified.

10 Like I said, I do live in Plattsburg, and I
11 do live very close to this operation, and very much am
12 for this operation because of the jobs and the income
13 it will bring to the communities, not just during the
14 construction, but all through its -- all through the
15 lifetime of that line. So I urge you guys, the
16 commissioners, to vote for this line. I think it will
17 save people money, it will bring jobs to our
18 community, and I think it will be all around good for
19 the states involved.

20 That's all I have.

21 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

22 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Bill Severns.

24 (The witness was sworn.)

25 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name and

1 spell your last name.

2 THE WITNESS: Bill Severns, S-E-V-E-R-N-S.

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

4 THE WITNESS: Prairie Village, Kansas.

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

6 THE WITNESS: Yes, sir. I'm a client
7 liaison with Shafer, Kline & Warren. We are a civil
8 engineering firm with offices in Columbia, Macon and
9 North Kansas City, and it is my job to be in contact
10 with our customers and our clients. I am not an
11 engineer, so most of my work that I do is in economic
12 development, and we believe that this project has the
13 ability to increase the supply of electricity and
14 lower rates and help a lot.

15 I probably didn't understand as much the
16 need for economic development, and I agree with what
17 Joe Don said. I think he's a perfect example of a
18 young man who comes back and lives in a town and
19 brings his children back to a town. Because I've been
20 doing business development, I've been driving around,
21 doing this for about 25 years, and at Shafer, Kline &
22 Warren, we pride ourselves in providing solutions, so
23 we've done -- we do these projects all the time. It's
24 what we do.

25 You have to work hard to provide solutions,

1 and work till you get them done. And until about 10
2 years ago when I had my first grandchild -- I can say
3 it today because we'll have our ninth grandchild in
4 January, and all of my kids live five miles from me.

5 For a long time one of my grandchildren
6 lived in Louisville, and that was nine hours away, 10
7 hours away now. It takes me a little longer to get
8 there. So one of the things that I think is
9 important -- first of all, I don't even know how I got
10 to be 63 years of age this fast, but all of a sudden
11 it's come upon me that I want my kids close to me.
12 And when your kids have jobs, and things are good for
13 them, and they have a place where they can come back
14 and work, I've experienced it.

15 So, again, we are engineers. That's what
16 we do at Shafer, Kline & Warren. We love to work
17 toward solutions. We've worked in rural Missouri for
18 all of our careers, most of our careers for most of
19 our guys. So we support this project and we think it
20 would be a great thing for the future and the next
21 generation.

22 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

23 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

24 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Donald Bixenman, or
25 something like that.

1 (The witness was sworn.)

2 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name for
3 the record, and spell your last name.

4 THE WITNESS: My name is Donald Bixenman,
5 B-I-X-E-N-M-A-N. I live in Salisbury.

6 My main concern about this project is --
7 I'm very much against it, and my main concern is the
8 giving eminent domain to an organization, a company,
9 group of investors, however you want to say it, the
10 right to come in and purchase the property or get the
11 easements.

12 We all listened to both sides of the
13 argument the last time, and this time there's good
14 arguments on both sides for economic development and
15 everything. Very good arguments for people that live
16 in the community, and it's going to affect real close,
17 whether it be airplanes, farming, farming around a GPS
18 and everything like that.

19 My concern is the precedent you're going to
20 set if you allow Clean Line to come through and use
21 eminent domain. If you bear with me a minute, let's
22 go 10, 15 years around the road. Y'all retired at the
23 office that y'all serve so well. I don't know where
24 you live now, but maybe you want to live out in the
25 country. Maybe you do live on the country. You've

1 got 40 acres, neighbors on each side of you, across
2 the road, down the road, 40 acres, beautiful home.
3 Life is good.

4 One day a representative from Smithfield
5 Foods, a Chinese company that produces more hogs than
6 anybody else in the United States, shows up at your
7 neighbor's house, not yours, but your neighbor's, "We
8 want to buy your property, and build a cell complex."

9 Neighbor said, "I don't want to sell. None
10 of the neighbors want to sell."

11 But because of this precedent, they can say
12 we're going to provide jobs for the community, we're
13 going to need all kinds of supplies, we're going to
14 provide tax money for the schools, we are even going
15 to produce organic fertilizer, a new green revolution.
16 So they use eminent domain, and your neighbor goes to
17 court to fight him. He's one person, costs him a
18 small fortune to fight him and he loses anyway. They
19 build a hog house across from your house. They tell
20 everybody, no, it's not going to smell. It's new
21 technology. They don't smell no more.

22 Guess what? When they get the hog house
23 built a year later, the wind changes, it smells, so
24 you decide you don't want to live there. You try to
25 sell your house. Guess what? Nobody else wants to

1 live there either. Your house is worthless. You
2 didn't get a dime out of them. Your neighbor at least
3 got paid because of eminent domain. You didn't get a
4 dime.

5 That is what concerns me. That can
6 actually happen if you allow private companies to come
7 in and say for economic benefit, they can use -- take
8 this property. Will that happen? I don't know. But
9 my concern is the precedent you will set by allowing
10 organizations that are out here for profit, you know,
11 they're not to take care of utilities and everything
12 like that, but it's the precedent of allowing other
13 companies to come in to do things that you may not
14 think about and happen now. Thank you.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

16 Russ Pisciotta.

17 (The witness was sworn.)

18 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
19 and spell your last name.

20 A. My name is Russell Pisciotta, last name is
21 spelled P-I-S-C-I-O-T-T-A.

22 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

23 THE WITNESS: Caldwell County, Missouri.

24 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

25 THE WITNESS: Mr. Chairman and members of

1 the commission, I would like to thank you for the
2 opportunity to address the Commission. I appreciate
3 and share the concerns of -- the environmental
4 concerns of many of the Grain Belt supporters and
5 personally agree that climate change is very serious.
6 However, I am adamantly opposed to the Grain Belt
7 project. It is not our only option. It's just one
8 man's idea and a company business plan to profit from
9 the situation.

10 Building a 780-mile massive transmission
11 line across three states and thousands of acres --
12 thousands of parcels of private, productive farm land
13 is the wrong approach.

14 Grain Belt would not be the clean energy
15 project the company promotes it as due to lack of
16 interest and current customers. It now states the
17 line would carry only 60 percent wind, and 40 percent
18 conventional.

19 I would also like to point out that
20 Missouri currently produces, transports and consumes
21 wind energy all without Grain Belt Express. Missouri
22 currently has 458 megawatts of wind production
23 capacity, 500 megawatts in construction, 300 megawatts
24 proposed, and more in R&D.

25 One viable alternative to Clean Line's plan

1 would be to inject Kansas wind into the local grid
2 rather than transporting most of the power to the
3 North Atlantic states. Those states are adjacent to
4 legendary offshore wind resources with enormous wind
5 capacity of 4200 gigawatts, far more than enough to
6 supply all of the electric needs.

7 However, it's not the Commission's mandate
8 to set the national energy policy. The Commission
9 must decide only if Grain Belt is necessary and if it
10 will -- Missouri will benefit enough to justify the
11 impact to landowners. After the hearing in Moberly
12 last Thursday evening, an Amish man came up to me and
13 told me if the line is built, they will likely have to
14 move. We can only imagine what a monumental task that
15 would be for the Amish to relocate and rebuild an
16 entire community and start all over again.

17 Grain Belt is making a lot of
18 unsubstantiated promises and projections, which if
19 they were true, I believe our public utilities and our
20 associated electric would have agreed to do business
21 with them. Even if these promises would materialize,
22 they are quite insignificant and when -- when put into
23 perspective. For instance, it claims it will drop 500
24 megawatts of power in MISO. Even if all 500 megawatts
25 eventually do sell in Missouri, it would be just 4

1 percent of Missouri's total electricity usage.

2 Grain Belt is also promising a savings of
3 \$10 million to consumers. If spread over all
4 households, it would equate to a savings of only
5 \$28.92 per customer, per year, although with the
6 commercial customers factored in, I believe less than
7 that.

8 The company is also boasting that the
9 project would create 1500 jobs. That equates to just
10 5/10000 of the total jobs in Missouri and, of course,
11 most of those jobs would be temporary.

12 When put into perspective, these numbers
13 clearly demonstrate why the project would not be the
14 economic boon for the state that Grain Belt and its
15 supporters make it out to be.

16 I appreciate that people need work, but
17 it's not landowners' responsibility to create jobs.
18 It is asking an awful lot to take a swath of land away
19 from someone simply for making a temporary job to
20 build something on it, something that would be an
21 obstacle and an eyesore for generations to come.

22 I've noticed many of the businesses and
23 union reps in support of the line recognize that Grain
24 Belt is not a good deal for landowners, and stated
25 that they have -- feel compassion or sympathy for

1 landowners having to sacrifice their property.

2 My father was a very ethical and good
3 businessman. He taught me that a deal is not a good
4 deal unless it's good for each party involved, so I
5 strongly urge the Commission to deny the Grain Belt,
6 as it rightfully did 17 months ago, because it is not
7 needed. It would not significantly benefit Missouri,
8 and it is not a good deal for landowners.

9 Thank you for your time.

10 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

11 THE WITNESS: I have an exhibit.

12 JUDGE BUSHMANN: That will be 61.

13 (Exhibit 61 was marked for identification.)

14 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Next name is Darin Davies.

15 (The witness was sworn.)

16 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
17 and spell your last name.

18 THE WITNESS: Darin Davies, D-A-V-I-E-S.

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

20 THE WITNESS: Northern Carroll County.

21 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

22 THE WITNESS: Thank you for coming today.

23 I have a few concerns about this transmission line.

24 It will be within one mile of my house. I have three
25 young children that will go under the line multiple

1 times a day. They live and work on the farm with me,
2 and when they have to work around these lines, there
3 is concerns. What happens if something happens to the
4 tractor, and they run into the power line or the power
5 poles?

6 There is dangers. We don't know about the
7 health concerns, about stray voltage, but I can tell
8 you from electric fences that there is stray voltage
9 because our cows will only graze so close to a
10 electric fence because there is stray voltage. You
11 take a volt meter, and you can get voltage without
12 touching the power line.

13 I, like Joe Don, went to college. I come
14 back to northern Carroll County to raise my family, so
15 I do care about my family, and I want to see that they
16 can come back and live there, too.

17 Thank you for coming today.

18 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

19 Emily Davies.

20 (The witness was sworn.)

21 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
22 and spell your last name.

23 THE WITNESS: Emily Davies, D-A-V-I-E-S.

24 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

25 THE WITNESS: Northern Carroll County.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

2 THE WITNESS: Thank you guys for being
3 here. I appreciate that you do take the time to
4 listen to each of us.

5 As my husband stated, we do live a mile
6 from where the proposed line is to go through, and we
7 will -- we do not own any ground underneath there, so
8 we will receive no money from the pipeline or from the
9 transmission line.

10 This company is asking us, all people along
11 the line, to take a chance that our kids and ourselves
12 won't be at risk for this power. There is no research
13 on any line of this high voltage, so they don't know.
14 And they don't know what they don't know.

15 In the '50s and '60s, they said cigarettes
16 are fine. We all know now that's not true. How do
17 they know this isn't going to affect us? But I'm
18 supposed to take the risk with no benefit from it on
19 my own children.

20 I looked up today, and Missouri ranked 36th
21 in the cost of what we spend on electricity. 36th.
22 That's pretty dang good. Why aren't they aiming this
23 at the higher states? The fact of the matter is they
24 are aiming at the states that are paying more, but
25 we're the ones that are going to pay the price. My

1 understanding is that they're going to build a
2 substation over eastern Missouri. Is that true? Is
3 it an if we build it, then we can sell it to you, or
4 is it when we build it? And there's a huge difference
5 between if and when.

6 You are allowing a for-profit company to
7 take away our ground, and I do not agree with that at
8 all. We do farm ground underneath this line so our
9 children will be affected. They will have to go, and
10 they do -- as a family farm, they are expected to
11 help. It's not a choice. They are expected to help.
12 And you're asking us to put their lives at risk when
13 we have to go farm, so on the days that we have to
14 farm over there, are we supposed to tell them, "No,
15 you can't help us that day?" That's not fair to us.

16 It's supposed to be for necessity. I do
17 not believe that Missouri needs this. As many people
18 over at Caldwell County know, a new transmission line
19 just went through there, and that will support more
20 and more wind energy as it's built to be transported.

21 In Missouri, as you drove around, I'm sure
22 you've seen more and more solar panels coming up all
23 over the place. Most of them are individual people or
24 businesses. We do not need Kansas' energy. There is
25 no reason why they can't use that energy and use it

1 closer to the people around them. I beg you to not
2 allow this company to go through. Thank you.

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Welden Sprouse.

4 (The witness was sworn.)

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
6 and spell your last name.

7 THE WITNESS: Welden Sprouse,
8 S-P-R-O-U-S-E.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

10 THE WITNESS: Braymer, Missouri, Caldwell
11 County.

12 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

13 THE WITNESS: Let me get my glasses.

14 Mr. Chairman, Commissioners, and members of
15 the staff, thank you for taking this time to come here
16 and listen to our concerns.

17 As I said, my name is Welden Sprouse. I'm
18 a lifelong resident of Caldwell County. I have a
19 bachelor's degree in agronomy and a master's degree in
20 animal husbandry from the University of Missouri. I
21 operate our family farm, which has been in our family
22 for four generations. The Grain Belt Express line
23 wants to go through our farm south of Braymer for
24 about a mile, following along one of the largest
25 pipeline corridors in North America.

1 I urge you to deny that application based
2 on our experiences with the pipelines and expectations
3 of the power line project. It has been over six years
4 since the two pipelines were built through our
5 property. We've had numerous problems, including soil
6 erosion, soil compaction, drainage problems,
7 introduction of noxious weeds, cutting waterlines,
8 damaged fences and ongoing yield loss in our crops and
9 our pasture.

10 This was the first year we had a real time
11 monitor combine, we called them in the old age, now
12 we've stepped up to the new age. We went across the
13 pipeline easements with our yield monitor, and it
14 showed a 40-bushel yield decrease in our corn that we
15 didn't even know until we obtained this yield monitor.
16 Our analysis shows that this is mainly due to soil
17 compaction and soil erosion and soil disruption from
18 resulting of the construction equipment over the eight
19 years ago.

20 We had noxious weeds introduced in the same
21 tract of land over 50 years ago when the AT&T put a
22 buried telecommunications cable there. We have spent
23 tens of thousands of dollars in additional herbicides
24 to try to control those noxious weeds. By the way,
25 AT&T would never acknowledge this, and never paid us a

1 dime to help us with this problem. Worse yet, when
2 they abandoned this route, they made us buy back our
3 land by public bid where they abandoned a building
4 about the size of a small outhouse with 50 yards of
5 concrete it had and bad fences around it, and
6 submitting a picture of this structure, and I'll have
7 to submit it later. I haven't got it with me. I'll
8 submit it later.

9 Two years ago, one of our employees was
10 fixing a fence near the pipeline easement when a
11 helicopter landed. The helicopter operator wanted to
12 know what kind of work we were doing there in the
13 easements. When the helicopter left, he circled our
14 cattle we had in the pens up there and ran them
15 through the fence and injured three calves.

16 When I called the three pipeline reps, none
17 of them would even admit that was their helicopter.
18 They didn't know where it came from. They said, "Did
19 you get the number?" Hell, how do I know what number
20 to get? I'm sorry. I guess I'm going to have to
21 train my cattle to be helicopter trained.

22 Even with all these issues, we would much
23 prefer another pipeline or at least a buried facility
24 to this overhead power line. This overhead power
25 line, first of all, should never have been built next

1 to this pipeline corridor due to the risk of one
2 affecting the other.

3 Second, this creates two new issues for us.
4 They have stated that machinery over 17 feet high
5 should not be used under this line. The unloading
6 auger on our combine is almost that high. Commercial
7 signage gutters can be 50, 20 feet high. They have
8 stated that crops cannot be over 10 feet in height.
9 Corn and grass can easily reach that high.

10 We use electric fence for temporary
11 fencing. After yesterday's information when we heard
12 about up there at Cameron, I don't think I'll be able
13 to use that anymore. We are implementing GPS
14 technology. I do not expect that it will work
15 underneath these lines. I am even concerned about
16 having livestock near the line. It's well known that
17 other animals are much more sensitive to stray
18 currents, electric fields and magnetic fields and I
19 question whether the electrostatic fuel given off by
20 this line would discourage grazing underneath the
21 line.

22 Clean Line talks a good game on
23 restoration, but their contractors are paid by the
24 mile and tower, not by whether I'm okay with what they
25 left behind.

1 In summary, this power line you will be --
2 you give me a new -- you will be giving me a new
3 partner that really is not interested in the success
4 of our operation, but gives me new restrictions and
5 problems that I'll have to deal with.

6 And thank you. I got my time.

7 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

8 COMMISSIONER HALL: Have you looked at the
9 landowner or agricultural mitigation protocols that
10 Clean Line has put together?

11 THE WITNESS: Not particularly.

12 COMMISSIONER HALL: I was curious as to
13 whether or not those protocols would address any of
14 the problems that you've had with either the pipelines
15 or the --

16 THE WITNESS: I don't think -- let's put it
17 this way: What they have down, the protocols and
18 stuff, they all had protocols. They all had stated
19 what they were going to do, yes, this, they were going
20 to do this, do that. But when it finally came down to
21 the real problem you had, they would disappear or they
22 don't want to pay you for it. We've already got --
23 when they came through there with the pipeline, they
24 had -- we had to get rid of two ponds because the pond
25 dam went over, and we had to empty the pond. Okay?

1 Well, here it is eroding down our field.
2 It actually erode so much that one of the pipelines --
3 there's three pipelines that go through there. It
4 eroded down to where one pipeline was completely
5 exposed, so they had to get dirt -- I even supplied
6 the dirt because I didn't want to be out there with
7 exposed pipeline. And another time I was down there,
8 we just learned the other day we found out that one of
9 them was only 13 inches deep across where we've been
10 working our ground, and they said, "Well, we're going
11 to haul dirt in there." I haven't seen them yet.

12 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

13 MR. WILLIAMS: Judge, I have a question for
14 you. This witness has indicated he wants to supply an
15 exhibit. I don't know how you want to handle that
16 because he indicated he doesn't have that exhibit
17 currently.

18 THE WITNESS: What now?

19 MR. WILLIAMS: You said there was an
20 exhibit that you want to supply later?

21 THE WITNESS: It was a picture of the
22 building that AT&T left on my property that I had to
23 buy back for \$500.

24 MR. WILLIAMS: And I was just asking the
25 judge how they want to handle that.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: If they send it back in, I
2 can include it in the record as a late filed exhibit.

3 MR. WILLIAMS: Do you want to reserve an
4 Exhibit Number?

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: I'll just use the next
6 number.

7 MR. WILLIAMS: Thank you.

8 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Kepper Kleeman.

9 (The witness was sworn.)

10 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
11 and spell your last name.

12 THE WITNESS: Kepper Kleeman,
13 K-L-E-E-M-A-N.

14 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

15 THE WITNESS: Northern Carroll County.

16 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

17 THE WITNESS: I would just like to thank
18 you all for your due diligence and time here and
19 mulling through all the testimony to make such an
20 important decision.

21 I'm here representing my wife, my kids, ten
22 and six. I'm a livestock and grain farmer in Carroll,
23 Caldwell and Ray County, and I really don't know where
24 to start. First of all, I think we just need to cut
25 through the BS. Clean Line is a for-profit private

1 company that they want to get the largest transmission
2 line from Kansas to eastern states, let's put it that
3 way.

4 They're piggybacking on the clean energy
5 movement. They're piggybacking along three current
6 pipelines running along -- you know, when you go buy
7 land, you have to have it surveyed. So if this land
8 has been surveyed six years ago, there's current
9 survey markers. It's a lot easier to run it along
10 these current pipelines that are there. Less money.
11 So it's all about the money. That's all it is. If
12 this was such a needed investment or needed
13 opportunity or needed transmission line, run it down
14 the median of 36 Highway, and see how much opposition
15 you get.

16 There are several reasons -- you have to
17 take the emotion out of it, and I apologize.

18 There are several reasons that this
19 transmission line is harmful for my business, my
20 family, my occupation. I, too, went to University of
21 Missouri, graduated with a degree in ag economics,
22 plant science. I've had classes in ag law, I've had
23 classes in rural sociology, I've had classes in
24 precision farming, animal science, the whole spiel. I
25 don't have the letters after my name, but I had the

1 classes.

2 I've come back home to raise my family.

3 Like the previous spokesman, I would like to have my
4 kids and grandkids live within five miles of me, but
5 there seems to be a little trouble there because this
6 proposed power line will be a mile from my new home.
7 I can look out my front window and see it. The school
8 bus that my kid travels on crosses under this proposed
9 line six times in the morning, six times in the
10 evening.

11 The size of this power line is
12 unprecedented. We do not know, we do not know the
13 effects that this is going to have on human health,
14 livestock health, among others.

15 This is a risk that needs studies done. It
16 just doesn't need to be piggybacked on the clean
17 energy movement. Furthermore, they say it's a
18 win/win. Okay. Had a lot of people for it who are in
19 it for the money.

20 Okay. My business, I farm. I currently
21 farm with my brothers, my dad, over a mile underneath
22 this line. We raise row crops under it. We don't own
23 a parcel of land that this is going to cross. It's
24 going to go within a quarter mile of land we own, and
25 my house, as I stated earlier. So this land that we

1 farm underneath it, we run precision equipment,
2 planters, sprayers, all this. So this is good for the
3 environment, clean energy. But what happens when I go
4 underneath it and I lose GPS signal, so my equipment
5 overapplies chemicals, herbicides, pesticides,
6 fertilizer. That's not good for the environment.
7 Nobody can tell us how much trouble we're going to
8 have with GPS equipment under a line of this size
9 because it's unprecedented.

10 In closing, last night I pulled this case
11 up on the Internet. There was 2405 public comments
12 made that are listed on the Internet. Excuse me. I
13 would implore each of you on the Commission to look at
14 the hometowns of the people who are submitting these
15 comments, for instance Parkville, Kansas City, Lee's
16 Summit, Jefferson City, Springfield, they're not going
17 to be underneath this power line. They can vote that
18 it's good for the community and good for the
19 environment, but they're not going to have to go home
20 at night and look out their window and see this power
21 line and the risks associated with it to their
22 families for years to come. Thank you.

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

24 Julie Kisser.

25 (The witness was sworn.)

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
2 and spell your last name.

3 THE WITNESS: Julia Kisser, K-I-S-S-E-R.

4 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

5 THE WITNESS: Northern Caldwell County.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

7 THE WITNESS: Mr. Chairman and members of
8 the Commission, thank you for this opportunity to
9 voice my opposition to the Grain Belt Express project.

10 Our land is our life. The crops are grown
11 and livestock raised on this land. This ends up as
12 food for our population. We farm sustainably. We
13 have dreams and future plans for our land that
14 high-voltage transmission lines would prevent. To
15 take that away seems to be a crime against humanity.

16 This is about our land. It is the land we
17 work on and look forward to going home to. It is
18 where we invest in our future. I was raised to be
19 responsible and respectful for the health and welfare
20 of our land and the people, and that continues to be
21 the foundation of my being.

22 I am proud to have grown up on a farm. I
23 lived in the city after college -- sorry -- but the
24 rural way of life called me home to the country. I
25 remember the pride and excitement when finally being

1 able to purchase a farm. I frankly cared more about
2 the land than I did the condition of the 95-year-old
3 house. The land, trees, views and open sky bring
4 comfort and serenity to my life. This may not be
5 important for some, but it is the appreciation for the
6 earth, nature and uncluttered views that we have
7 worked for.

8 I say this with the hope you understand the
9 importance of the land to us. We do not need this
10 project, and no one would be deprived of electricity
11 without it. This is about those that may benefit from
12 short-term jobs at the expense of those that will lose
13 the rights to their investments.

14 Renewable energy must be sustainable and
15 not cause adverse impact on the land and people.
16 There are markets much closer to wind farms in Kansas
17 if this company were truly interested in the
18 environment and providing clean, cheap energy to all
19 but it is obvious to me that this is about profit
20 under the cloak of clean energy.

21 Three and a half years ago I was devastated
22 when Clean Line told me at the first meeting we
23 attended that their plan was a done deal and it was
24 only a matter of which of the three lines they would
25 choose. This was unacceptable on so many levels.

1 This is why for nearly three years after finding out
2 that we were no longer on the proposed line, my family
3 and I have continued to strongly oppose this
4 unnecessary project in order to preserve property
5 rights, one of the most fundamental rights we have.

6 My commitment is in hopes of helping the
7 people in our communities that are also devastated by
8 this proposal and have shed so many tears because of
9 it. It is heartbreaking to envision how this project
10 could change our future way of life. The life we have
11 worked hard for and the sacrifices we have made for
12 our dreams to become reality.

13 Your decision will control the future
14 welfare of landowners and how they will be able to use
15 and enjoy their own land. I respectfully ask that you
16 please protect our property right and do not support
17 this unnecessary project.

18 Thank you very much for your time.

19 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

21 Scott Grimes.

22 (The witness was sworn.)

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
24 and spell your last name.

25 THE WITNESS: Scott Grimes, G-R-I-M-E-S.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

2 THE WITNESS: Kansas City.

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

4 THE WITNESS: Commissioners, thank you for
5 the opportunity to comment. My name is Scott Grimes.
6 I'm with PAR Electrical Contractors. My primary role
7 with PAR is in our fleet department. I make sure that
8 our fleet complies with environmental regulations,
9 mitigations, project related, state related and
10 federal related.

11 PAR Electric is one of the largest utility
12 contractors in the U.S. We're based in Kansas City,
13 Missouri, and we've been in business for 61 years as a
14 Missouri company, and as Missouri residents, we are
15 committed to this project and being a good neighbor to
16 the affected communities during construction and after
17 construction.

18 And PAR is about 600 employees in the State
19 of Missouri. It's important that we're a good
20 neighbor because after the project is over with, we're
21 a utility contractor. We come back and maintain, so
22 we want to be welcomed when we come back.

23 PAR has invested millions of dollars
24 locally on its construction fleet through Missouri
25 companies and suppliers like Altec, Custom Truck &

1 Equipment, Foley and a number of new car and truck
2 dealerships throughout the state. This has resulted
3 in one of the cleanest construction states in the
4 nation.

5 PAR uses local suppliers, and services the
6 maintenance and repair of its fleet, bringing
7 considerable revenue to the communities in which we
8 are working, revenues in things like fuel, oil, parts,
9 preventative maintenance and repair services. When
10 working in any project area, PAR brings business to
11 local food, retail stores, hotels, motels,
12 restaurants, service industries.

13 PAR Electric supports the Grain Belt wind
14 transmission line, and I feel that this project is
15 good for Missouri residents and Missouri businesses,
16 and it will provide reliable, low-cost, clean energy.

17 Again, PAR Electric Contractors is
18 committed to this project in helping create a positive
19 impact on Missouri and the communities along the Grain
20 Belt Express wind transmission line.

21 Thank you for letting us comment. Thank
22 you.

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

24 Brian Hunt.

25 (The witness was sworn.)

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
2 and spell your last name.

3 THE WITNESS: Brian Hunt, H-U-N-T.

4 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

5 THE WITNESS: Northwest Carroll County.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

7 THE WITNESS: I want to thank you guys for
8 being here. I know it takes away from your family
9 time. Appreciate it.

10 Boy, this is a great country, isn't it?
11 Where we can get together and talk, no matter what
12 your opinion is, we can say it in a peaceful manner
13 and go on.

14 I raise cattle, I farm. I'm a fifth
15 generation on a farm, my son is the sixth, and my
16 grandchildren will be the seventh that live there. As
17 kids, growing up, we had rules to abide by at home.
18 We had rules at church, and we had rules at school.
19 If we played ball, there was rules. When you got a
20 driver's license, there was laws and rules. And to
21 me, right now, the rule says no private company should
22 have eminent domain, and all I'm asking you guys to do
23 is don't change the rule in the middle of the game and
24 let's play by the rules.

25 Thank you very much.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Steven Kreyling.

2 (The witness was sworn.)

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name and
4 spell your last name.

5 THE WITNESS: Steve Kreyling,
6 K-R-E-Y-L-I-N-G.

7 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

8 THE WITNESS: Audrain County.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

10 THE WITNESS: Gentlemen, thank you, first
11 of all. I know you're going to hear a few things from
12 me that you heard many times, and I know your time is
13 valuable, and I know that you've made a personal
14 commitment, both you and your staff, to come listen to
15 the people, and it's important.

16 I want to share with you who I am just a
17 little bit, and you're going to have to just trust
18 that five minutes is not enough time for you to give
19 me an argument on why each one of these organizations
20 is involved with has no reason and has not supported
21 any project like this. I apologize. My green sticker
22 fell off, but let me tell you where I stand. The
23 Bible says let your yes mean yes and your no mean no,
24 and this commission has already told Grain Belt no, so
25 I urge you, first and foremost, to say no again and be

1 consistent.

2 I am here as an educated person even though
3 I'm wearing jeans. I do live on a farm. My wife and
4 I own 79 acres, small farm, and we love our ground, we
5 are the fourth family member to live on this farm. I
6 have a bachelor's degree from Truman State University
7 in accounting, I have begun a master's work in
8 theology at Midwestern Theological Seminary in Kansas
9 City. I serve as the manager and a board member of
10 the Camp Cedarcrest, a Baptist church camp in Monroe
11 County. I'm on the board of United Way of Audrain
12 County. I'm the president and a member of the board
13 of the Arthur Center of Community Health in Mexico,
14 Missouri.

15 I also grew up in St. Louis, so, believe
16 me, I understand the arguments of city people and
17 rural people. My wife's family farm. They farm in
18 Audrain and in Monroe County. I am the former finance
19 director for the Mexican Public Schools. I have
20 studied the finances aspects of the proposal, and the
21 complexity that I know of that you may not, the
22 majority of the public do not know the complexities
23 about being required to roll back part of a tax levy
24 when tax revenues increase on a project like that. I
25 am confident the Grain Belt has not accounted for

1 those items.

2 My farm, 79 acres, I hope to go to my two
3 sons, my two daughter-in-laws, my five grandchildren
4 and my two foster grandchildren some day, but I'm
5 scared because of the health concerns. And I don't
6 have enough time to share with you all of the
7 testimony that I would like within five minutes, so
8 let me just say that I have two documents here that I
9 want to share for you. And I apologize for many of
10 the things that have been said to you already, but the
11 first one is a document, and I'll share the first part
12 with you, and you'll be familiar with this.

13 When in the course of human events it
14 becomes necessary for one people to dissolve the
15 political bands which have connected them with
16 another, and to assume among the powers of the earth,
17 the separate and equal station to which the laws of
18 nature and of nature's God entitle them, a decent
19 respect to the opinions of mankind requires that they
20 should declare the causes which impel to the
21 separation.

22 Gentleman, I'm not proposing that the State
23 of Missouri withdraw from the United States of America
24 and that we take up our pitchforks and our muskets
25 because of something that is wrong, but King George

1 III usurped the citizens of this country, the states
2 of America that were united at that time, and the
3 counties of Missouri are united at this time in
4 opposing the same way. Do not let this company usurp
5 our property.

6 The second document that I have with me --
7 and I won't read this to you. You will be familiar
8 with this as well -- is the ruling that the Commission
9 gave to Clean Line already.

10 My concerns are that the property values,
11 the rural landscape, health effects, loss of crop
12 production, thousands of acres would be deforested,
13 the easements can be sold for profit. They are
14 applying for a certificate of convenience and
15 necessity. It is only convenient for their profit and
16 it is only necessary for states other than Missouri.

17 Eminent domain is not justified by what
18 they are proposing. Even if the proposed line does
19 not go through your property, Clean Line has stated
20 that it may be moved to other property. That's wrong.

21 Since no benefit in Northern Missouri
22 exists, then condemning the property of and placing
23 the entire burden on landowners across the state
24 simply to transport electricity to other states cannot
25 be justified; therefore, their plan must be stopped.

1 Thank you, gentlemen.

2 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

3 MR. WILLIAMS: Sir, were you wanting to
4 leave documents?

5 THE WITNESS: If you would like a copy of
6 the Declaration of Independence, I would be happy to
7 leave it.

8 COMMISSIONER HALL: You can leave it with
9 him.

10 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Nelson Heil.

11 (The witness was sworn.)

12 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
13 and spell your last name.

14 THE WITNESS: Nelson Heil, H-E-I-L.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

16 THE WITNESS: I live in Northern Missouri.
17 I farm and I'm presiding commissioner of Carroll
18 County, have been for 22 years.

19 My comments tonight, as I think back, I can
20 remember when electricity first came to the rural
21 areas. We always had electricity. I think that Mom
22 and Dad were hooked up to Missouri Public Service in
23 October. I was born in January. Many of my friends
24 did not have electricity, and I remembered how they
25 were tickled pink when the lights first came on.

1 All of those lines came across other
2 people's land, and they still do. Our entire economy
3 is based on energy. Electric energy is probably the
4 most prevalent. We use it to eat, cool, light our
5 homes and businesses. We also use it to preserve our
6 food supply and to prepare our food. It's used in our
7 medical facilities. All of this power comes to us
8 through transmission lines and then local power lines.

9 Many of these lines are getting some age on
10 them and will need to be replaced at some point. For
11 instance, the transmission line north of where we
12 stand was built in the early to mid-'50s, so that puts
13 its age between 60 and 65 years.

14 There are many that are older than this
15 and, of course, some are newer. The point is we all
16 use electricity, and we use it in various forms in our
17 farm operation. We use it to keep grain in a
18 condition in our bins, we use it in our shops,
19 electric fences, every place. And without it, we
20 would be lost.

21 It's my firm belief that we are going to
22 have to replace this aging infrastructure at some
23 point, and the sooner we can get started on it, the
24 better off we'll be.

25 That's all I have to say at this point.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

2 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Dallas, and I believe it's
4 White.

5 (The witness was sworn.)

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name for
7 the record, and spell your last name.

8 THE WITNESS: Dallas White, W-H-I-T-E.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

10 THE WITNESS: Centerview, Missouri.

11 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

12 THE WITNESS: I am a third-generation IBEW
13 lineman with 15 years in the line construction trade.
14 That being said, I've personally seen the positive
15 economic impact that a project of this magnitude
16 brings to the state in the form of jobs, as well as
17 the local economies through the purchase of goods and
18 services from the contractors and their workers.

19 In closing, I would like to say that I have
20 many, many hours of experience working on and
21 maintaining energized transmission lines, and I don't
22 have cancer. I don't have leukemia. I have all my
23 hair. There's no radiation damage. So I would just
24 like to try to ease people's minds in that aspect.

25 And that's all I have. Thank you.

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

2 The next witness, it looks like E-S and
3 then the last name.

4 THE WITNESS: Ed Young?

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Maybe so. Come forward.

6 (The witness was sworn.)

7 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
8 and spell your last name.

9 THE WITNESS: Edward Young, Y-O-U-N-G.

10 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

11 THE WITNESS: I would like to say I'm in
12 favor of the Grain Belt transmission line. I've
13 worked in and around these high-voltage lines my whole
14 career, the last 45 years. Although I do respect the
15 landowners' concerns, I know the opportunities that
16 these kind of jobs bring to Missouri, and I know
17 there's good paying jobs and there's a possibility of
18 career advancement for a lot of people, so I'm in
19 favor of that.

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

21 Kathleen Nolan Bondy.

22 (The witness was sworn.)

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
24 and spell your last name.

25 THE WITNESS: Kathleen Nolan Bondy,

1 B-O-N-D-Y.

2 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

3 THE WITNESS: I live in Brunswick,
4 Missouri, Chariton County.

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

6 THE WITNESS: Mr. Chairman and members of
7 the commission, thank you for your time and for the
8 opportunity to speak here this evening.

9 My husband and I oppose the private
10 for-profit corporation Clean Line Energy, the Grain
11 Belt Express project, and respectfully request that
12 the Missouri Public Service Commission deny approval
13 of their application for a certificate of convenience
14 allowing them the authority of eminent domain.

15 My husband and I are fourth-generation
16 Missouri farmers and involved in farming operation in
17 three Missouri counties. Our farm properties are not
18 included in the proposed route of the Grain Belt
19 Express, but we will be about one mile south of the
20 proposed route, and we do share the frustration of our
21 neighbors who are threatened with the loss of property
22 rights for a project that will mar our countryside,
23 that will decrease our property values, that will
24 cause a loss in farm productivity and profitability
25 and potentially increase the risk of serious health

1 effect with no gain to them and their families.

2 I would like to support that last statement
3 about the ill-effects health-wise to families and to
4 livestock, but in looking at research, it's really
5 hard to document because showing the constant exposure
6 to high-voltage DC current, those studies are hard to
7 find or perhaps do not exist because nothing of this
8 magnitude exists.

9 It has been my privilege to spend nearly 30
10 years in youth development, working primarily with
11 youth and families in Northern Missouri. We have
12 guided young people as they have learned life skills,
13 built character, learned to make sound choices and to
14 live, play and work in a safe environment. All
15 children deserve to be safe and secure in their living
16 environment, including their own home, as well as
17 their community.

18 Throughout Missouri, thousands of teachers,
19 law enforcement, youth-serving agencies, faith-based
20 communities, medical facilities and government
21 agencies have worked tirelessly to ensure a safe
22 environment for our children.

23 The young man who farms for us in Chariton
24 County has three young sons. He and his family will
25 live on one side of the highway, and the transmission

1 tower will be on the other side of the highway. How
2 can we say that we are providing a safe environment
3 for our children when we will allow these massive
4 high-voltage DC transmission lines to not only
5 threaten our property rights, but also to threaten the
6 health of children and families?

7 Do not allow our children, our mothers and
8 fathers, our grandparents and neighbors to provide the
9 test data for determining the harmful effects of
10 high-voltage DC current transmission. We cannot put
11 the physical health and well-being of our children and
12 families in jeopardy for the benefit of a private
13 for-profit, out-of-state company.

14 We respectfully request that you deny the
15 petition of the Clean Line Energy Grain Belt Express
16 project and listen carefully to the voices of the
17 children and the families that will be compelled to
18 live under the towers. Thank you.

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

20 Why don't we take a short break. We'll be
21 in recess for about 10 minutes.

22 (A brief recess was taken.)

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Let's go back on the
24 record. The next witness is Walter Spilker.

25 (The witness was sworn.)

1 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
2 and spell your last name.

3 THE WITNESS: Walter Spilker,
4 S-P-I-L-K-E-R.

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

6 THE WITNESS: I live in Shelby County,
7 Missouri near a town called Bethel.

8 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

9 THE WITNESS: I'm a farmer. Like I said, I
10 live in Shelby County. I am here to support the
11 farmers and homeowners fighting this project, hoping
12 to block it.

13 Being a farmer, I'm deeply concerned about
14 the productivity of my land, how it drains and how it
15 produces crops. We have been long-term no-tillers,
16 and we have invested a lot of money, time and effort
17 in improving the health of our soil, and hoping to
18 keep it viable for future generations.

19 I have with me pictures of damage from
20 construction of a power line near Elmira, Missouri.
21 This line is being built much like this proposed line
22 is to be built. The obvious damage and stunting of
23 crops and ruining of the ground and damage to the
24 drainage of the soil is very apparent.

25 The contractors employed by this utility

1 that built the line did nothing to mitigate the damage
2 they did when they drug concrete trucks across this
3 man's field with bulldozers through mud. This man had
4 planted his crop. He had to smooth out the ruts
5 himself, and he planted his crop, and then this
6 utilities contractor came back in to erect the lines,
7 and rutted and destroyed his crop. He was never
8 compensated until just recently after this utility was
9 called out in a public meeting where they were asking
10 permission, from county commissioners, to build
11 another line.

12 A friend of mine just recently received a
13 letter in their utility bill from Amron. In this
14 letter, Amron has said they're going to ask for a rate
15 increase. Seems they've fallen on hard times
16 recently. Two of the four reasons they're giving
17 asking for this rate increase involved reduced demand
18 on their system and reduced demand from their primary
19 customer, one of the biggest customers. Hmmmm. If
20 demand for electricity is falling on Amron's system,
21 why are these new transmission lines so necessary?

22 I would assert to you that everything that
23 this company and Amron's company has put forth
24 regarding the alleged necessity of these projects is
25 an absolute fallacy.

1 Apparently, Missouri is awash in
2 electricity. There's not enough demand to meet the
3 available supply. This is a very public admission
4 that, as I stated before, the reasons given for the
5 necessity of these lines is a fallacy. Missouri
6 should not be a conduit state. Don't put up a sign
7 saying "Come to Missouri. We'll sell out our people
8 for a little extra tax revenue."

9 Missouri citizens should not be treated as
10 chattel to be sold out to those who have the
11 wherewithal to grace our elected officials with a
12 little silver for their election coffers. Thank you.

13 COMMISSIONER HALL: Actually, I have a
14 question. Could I see those pictures?

15 What utility was responsible for this
16 damage?

17 THE WITNESS: It was Amron, their
18 contractors. It was on the Illinois Rivers Project.

19 COMMISSIONER HALL: And did you contact
20 Amron about this damage?

21 THE WITNESS: Yes. They were made aware of
22 it. The farmer contacted the contractors and, I
23 assume, Amron, but he didn't get any response until
24 Amron was made aware with those pictures at their
25 public meetings with the county commissioners, and

1 then they made contact the very next week.

2 COMMISSIONER HALL: And so has this damage
3 been remediated?

4 THE WITNESS: I'm sure it has not been
5 remediated. It has been compensated for somewhat.
6 You have to ask the farmer in question.

7 COMMISSIONER HALL: Okay. Thank you.

8 (Exhibits 62 through 68 were marked for
9 identification.)

10 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Next witness is Debra
11 Games.

12 (The witness was sworn.)

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
14 and spell your last name.

15 THE WITNESS: Deborah Games, G-A-M-E-S,
16 Olympic Games.

17 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

18 THE WITNESS: Kirksville, Missouri.

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

20 THE WITNESS: I'm deeply concerned that our
21 Constitutional property rights in Missouri are at risk
22 of being violated. I'm concerned that a billionaire
23 is trying to use eminent domain to place a
24 transmission line where he chooses for profit. If
25 approved, I'm concerned we're setting a dangerous

1 precedent that any billionaire can write a business
2 plan and use eminent domain, then land would
3 essentially be for sale, and our Constitutional
4 property rights would be destroyed.

5 I'm also concerned that billionaires are
6 maximizing their profit by reducing farm profits,
7 which threatens the long-term viability of family
8 farms.

9 I'm concerned that if we use the latest
10 emergency, the perceived threat of climate change, to
11 erode our Constitution, then we are left without a
12 Constitution, and a pile of reactionary precedents.

13 While I fully support the use of renewable
14 energy, I'm concerned about the economics of
15 industrial wind. Industrial wind was initiated in the
16 U.S. by Enron as a tax shelter generating scheme.
17 Warren Buffet, who owns Berkshire Hathaway and
18 Mid-American Energy, Mid-American Energy owns more
19 than 7 percent of the county's wind generation, and
20 Warren Buffet has stated publicly, "We get a tax
21 credit if we build a lot of wind farms. That's the
22 only reason to build them. They don't make sense
23 without the tax credit."

24 Without the tax credit, there's no reason
25 to build wind farms because they don't produce enough

1 energy to pay for themselves, ever. They're
2 financially unsustainable and funded by the taxpayers
3 while the corporations reap the profits.

4 It's estimated that Berkshire Hathaways'
5 subsidiary, Mid-American Energy, pays no taxes on 1.5
6 billion of income as a result of the wind tax credit.
7 That estimate is from Fred Sawyer, who is a Stanford
8 Business School graduate and a Fellow of the National
9 Legal and Policy Center, a non-profit whose mission is
10 to promote ethics in public life.

11 Buffett's latest investment of 3.6 billion
12 in wind development will be recouped within a decade.
13 So by saving about a half billion dollars per year in
14 taxes, in approximately seven to eight years,
15 Berkshire Hathaway has saved 3.6 billion in taxes, and
16 recouped their investment.

17 I'm concerned that renewable energy credits
18 seem to be more about the money than the environment.
19 Although renewable energy credit income is supposed to
20 spur more wind development or renewable energy plant
21 development, it hasn't spurred development and, in
22 fact, brokers earn up to 10 times the amount of the
23 wind farm.

24 A company with higher CO2 emissions must
25 purchase more RECs, renewable energy credits, but

1 there's no connection to a change in the environment.
2 In some cases, corporations with high CO2 levels
3 mitigate by planting trees, but it would only offset
4 CO2 in the future if the trees survive.

5 I'm concerned that industrial wind is more
6 about the tax credit, and less about the environment,
7 the infrastructure and the energy. More than 14,000
8 turbines have been abandoned because they're too
9 expensive to maintain. The actual produced amount of
10 energy is far less than the capacity amount that's
11 listed and evaluated. I'm concerned that taxpayers
12 will pay an enormous amount for a small amount of wind
13 energy. There's been subsidies of more than 1.77
14 billion since 2000 for wind alone.

15 Field representative Josh Hurlbert for Sam
16 Graves says the senators laugh at the enormous subsidy
17 amount being spent on the wind tax credit to move a
18 small amount of wind energy.

19 It's important to remember that Missourians
20 rightfully demanded reform of its eminent domain law
21 in 2006 to prohibit condemnation of the private
22 property for economic reasons such as increased
23 corporate profit or increased tax revenues to
24 counties.

25 Eminent domain should be used only when

1 absolutely necessary to provide needed utilities and
2 infrastructure to the local residents. Condemnation
3 of private property for any other reason is a
4 violation of all property rights, one of our most
5 fundamental rights.

6 Please deny Clean Line's application for a
7 CCN once again. Thank you very much.

8 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

10 Bill Boelsen.

11 (The witness was sworn.)

12 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
13 and spell your last name.

14 THE WITNESS: My name is Bill Boelsen,
15 B-O-E-L-S-E-N.

16 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

17 THE WITNESS: I live about nine blocks west
18 of here in Carrollton, Missouri.

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

20 THE WITNESS: I was born about nine
21 miles -- about 15 miles east of here, and I grew up
22 about nine miles east of here. I'm very familiar with
23 this county. I am also a county commissioner in this
24 county. I was elected four years ago, and I was
25 reelected in November. I have a degree from the

1 University of Missouri. I graduated in 1961, so it
2 makes me one of the old guys in this room.

3 I have a lots of different experiences. I
4 taught school. I worked for Standard Oil of Indiana,
5 a for-profit company. I worked for Hallmark Greeting
6 Cards, a for-profit company. After that I worked for
7 a truck line in Minneapolis, Minnesota by the name of
8 Ramond Motor Transportation, a for-profit company. It
9 didn't make much profit, but it was designed to make a
10 profit. Everybody in this room except me is working
11 for a for-profit corporation, including these farmers.
12 So I'm confused about these people that are
13 complaining about this is a for-profit company. This
14 is the way the United States operates. It's a
15 capitalistic society. If they want to live where
16 there is no for-profit, they need to move to Cuba
17 where Castro owns everything, and they can take
18 whatever they want to.

19 In this situation they keep talking about
20 eminent domain. That's a system where they get paid
21 for the use of going across their property. They're
22 not taking their property forever. They're just going
23 to go across it and build a line.

24 They think that's funny, but that's just
25 what's going to happen.

1 This last 10 years that I worked before I
2 came back to Carrollton, I worked for high-voltage
3 lines. I was working for a company called Solomon
4 Electric in Solomon, Kansas, and my position was
5 cleaning the mineral oil in substation transformers.
6 That's the big gray ones behind the chain link fence.
7 And when I first started in that occupation, we worked
8 on them when they were energized, then in later years,
9 they decided that was probably not safe, and so we
10 worked on them when they were turned off, and it was a
11 lot nicer.

12 In that period of time I traveled to just
13 about every state in the United States, working on
14 different -- I've been to the trains in Long Island,
15 the shipyards in San Francisco, many, many, cities and
16 corporations, mines, copper mines, copper smelters,
17 and everywhere we used to go, we used electricity.
18 Everybody uses electricity. Somehow it has to be
19 transported. And I saw with my own eyes the
20 infrastructure of this country is ancient. It needs
21 to be updated.

22 This line, which I'm very much in favor of,
23 will be a new line across there. Somebody in this
24 group that's protesting the line said that about 40
25 percent of the electricity would be coming from

1 non-wind sources. That just proves that that line
2 will carry anything. I've also heard many times that
3 there's no evidence of 500,000-volt DC lines. There's
4 one that goes from Canada to the New York City area.
5 It's been in business for many years. There's one
6 going from Northern California to the Los Angeles area
7 that's not quite 500, it's 460, I believe. I wouldn't
8 bet on it. But it's been there many years, a DC power
9 line.

10 So I think there's lots of evidence that it
11 does not sterilize their cows, make the chickens quit
12 laying and all that. I think that's all smoke.

13 Thank you for the opportunity of speaking
14 to you.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

16 Ian Davidson.

17 (The witness was sworn.)

18 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
19 and spell your last name.

20 THE WITNESS: Ian Davidson,
21 D-A-V-I-D-S-O-N.

22 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

23 THE WITNESS: Norborne, Missouri.

24 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

25 THE WITNESS: Thank you for the opportunity

1 to present comments. I am the president of Carroll
2 County Farm Bureau. I am here as a representative of
3 our members who will be affected by the Grain Belt
4 Express transmission project.

5 As a spokesman for our board and the local
6 landowners who would be effected, I urge the
7 Commission not to certify the Grain Belt Express
8 transmission project. I am concerned about several
9 aspects of the project. Its impact on landowners
10 along the proposed route would be devastating, but the
11 precedent set of the power of eminent domain, if
12 authorized, would be disastrous for us all.

13 This is a case of private investors
14 attempting to capitalize on an investment opportunity,
15 except that they want specific dispensation to condemn
16 private property, and ruin what generations of
17 property owners have worked to call their own.

18 It is notable that landowners who place
19 wind towers on their property receive an ongoing
20 annual payment from wind companies, and have the
21 choice where to place those towers. Towers are not
22 placed using eminent domain powers, and a landowner is
23 free to refuse a wind tower.

24 In contrast, if the Grain Belt Express
25 project is given eminent domain powers, a private

1 company, providing little to no benefit to
2 Missourians, will be able to take private property,
3 and restrict the legitimate operations of hundreds of
4 Missouri families.

5 The fact that some municipalities are
6 proposed to receive power from the Grain Belt Express
7 project does not make eminent domain authorization
8 appropriate in this case. At this time, the Grain
9 Belt Express proposal is tentative, and there appear
10 to be no teeth to enforce this proposal if Clean Line
11 Energy later decides they don't want to follow through
12 on their promises.

13 These promises to other municipalities,
14 many of which are hundreds of miles from the proposed
15 construction area, should be recognized for what they
16 are, a blatant political ploy to use Missouri
17 municipalities to create political pressure for this
18 unfair and inappropriate request for eminent domain
19 authority.

20 Missouri does not need this transmission
21 line. In terms of public need and public interests,
22 the negatives far outweigh the positives. Thank you.

23 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Sharon Metz.

24 (The witness was sworn.)

25 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,

1 and spell your last name.

2 THE WITNESS: Sharon Metz, M-E-T-Z.

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

4 THE WITNESS: I live in Carrollton,
5 Missouri.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

7 THE WITNESS: I am currently the head of
8 the CAEA, which is the Carrollton Area Economic
9 Alliance, which combines our chamber and economic
10 development for Carroll County, and I also am a former
11 mayor of Carrollton. And I want to thank you all for
12 being here today. If you've done this all day, you
13 are amazing people, so I thank you for the effort and
14 the willingness that you came here to share.

15 My story is a little bit different in that
16 in small rural communities in the middle of this
17 country, we struggle all the time having resources
18 that our parents and our kids and our grandkids can
19 live just like everybody else does, and deserves to.
20 And I will tell you with the pipeline that came
21 through about 10 years ago, we worked real hard on
22 that. That has brought in hundreds of thousands of
23 dollars every year, and that's for our school systems,
24 that's for our emergency services, that's our district
25 fire departments, that's our ambulance services that

1 serve all of us.

2 And I have four grandchildren. Two are in
3 school, two are not quite there yet, and it's
4 important that this money comes in that enables us to
5 pay for the important things and the lifestyles that
6 people in rural communities and small towns deserve
7 just as much as everyone else.

8 The other thing that I think we gain from
9 this is that we are able to work together as
10 communities. And I will tell you with the pipeline
11 that came through, we had between 250, 300 people here
12 for almost a year and a half. To say that didn't
13 affect our economy would be ridiculous. It made a
14 huge difference in our economy. And the lasting
15 benefits of that was our tax revenues off of those
16 pipelines is what makes us able to serve our
17 communities as we are today. So it's a very important
18 economic development.

19 I was actually at the hearing last year at
20 Jeff City, and one of the ladies told about the fact
21 that we had -- Americans had voted to approve clean
22 energy in the State of Missouri in 2017. Well, guess
23 what? We're going to turn to 2017, and we haven't
24 done very well about the renewable energy in our
25 state.

1 And we struggle with jobs in our
2 communities that are important to us, so short-term, I
3 know the benefits. I can testify to the benefits.
4 Long term, I think it's really important that we look
5 to the future. My concern is the State of Missouri
6 has closed a lot of doors in recent years and in past
7 decades, and what's going to happen eventually to us
8 is they're going to quit knocking. They're going to
9 quit knocking here and not want to come here and serve
10 us. And one of the things that I had the opportunity
11 to do is be on the All American City boards that
12 serves all across the country. Carrollton won that in
13 2005.

14 And I don't care where you come from, in
15 this part of the United States, everybody faces the
16 economic growth that they need to have for their kids.
17 And when you stand there and look at the importance of
18 education, of taking care of our people, of struggling
19 people, young families that don't have all of the
20 opportunities nor the ability to raise the kind of
21 money that we have, I think we have to stop for a
22 moment and look and think how important the economic
23 growth is in our rural communities, in our large
24 cities and in our State of Missouri.

25 We have a lot of really fine things going

1 on here, but we have to stop closing the door and not
2 letting other people come in and help us, enrich us
3 with the things that they can bring to us.

4 So I encourage you to look at this
5 situation very carefully. You know, not many times in
6 our life any of us sitting in this room or standing
7 here make a real difference of what happens to a
8 community or our families or our future generations.
9 In my opinion, this group and you can. Commissioners
10 will have a real opportunity to make a very important
11 decision that may enhance and change what we will be
12 able to provide for our children and families.

13 So I thank you for the opportunity to
14 address this with you today. Thank you.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

16 COMMISSIONER HALL: What is your current
17 position?

18 THE WITNESS: My current position is
19 executive director of the Carrollton Area Economic
20 Alliance.

21 COMMISSIONER HALL: And is Carrollton one
22 of the cities that has purchased --

23 THE WITNESS: Thank you. I had that in my
24 notes, but I didn't say that. We are a member of the
25 MOPAC, and we will have the opportunity to hopefully

1 purchase our energy with less cost, and provide for
2 our community that way.

3 COMMISSIONER HALL: Do you have experience
4 with companies that are considering either expanding
5 in Carrollton or a new company coming in? Do you have
6 experience with energy costs as a factor --

7 THE WITNESS: It very much is a factor.
8 Every time we take an application -- we have a plant
9 down here that's 172,000 square feet that's empty, and
10 all of that becomes a big issue when they're moving
11 here, where we're located, where we are in this
12 country, where we are with our rails, where we are
13 with our highways, and the cost of energy and the
14 possibility of providing enough energy at a low enough
15 cost that they could make it worthwhile for them to be
16 here. So it's a very important issue.

17 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

18 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: David Brown.

20 SPEAKER: He just stepped out the door.

21 JUDGE BUSHMANN: We'll skip him for now.

22 Cheryl Wilson.

23 (The witness was sworn.)

24 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
25 and spell your last name.

1 THE WITNESS: Cheryl Wilson, W-I-L-S-O-N.

2 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

3 THE WITNESS: Triplett, Missouri, Chariton
4 County.

5 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please go ahead.

6 THE WITNESS: This line that you guys
7 putting in is within three-fourths of a mile of our
8 house. We don't want it. We don't need it.

9 When we was growing up, when "no" was said,
10 that's what it meant. You guys already turned it down
11 once. I don't see the sense of why we're even here.
12 And that's all I have to say.

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

14 David Maasdam, or something similar to
15 that.

16 (The witness was sworn.)

17 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
18 and spell your last name.

19 THE WITNESS: David Maasdam, M-A-A-S-D-A-M.

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

21 THE WITNESS: Tina, Missouri.

22 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

23 THE WITNESS: I want to thank you all for
24 coming up. You have a job that is quite amazing, I
25 guess. You've listened to a lot of people up here

1 tonight, lots of pros and cons. I'm here to tell you
2 I like clean energy. I don't like it in my backyard.
3 I'm really opposed to this.

4 We thought it was over. My daughter had
5 moved from -- away from here, built a brand new house.
6 It's going to be right there where this is going to be
7 now, and all we have is five acres for her, and we're
8 just up the road. We've got five acres, and both of
9 us have to look at this in our backyard. We're
10 definitely not for this, and I hope you can help us
11 with this. Thank you.

12 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Marsha Corbin.

14 (The witness was sworn.)

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
16 and spell your last name.

17 THE WITNESS: Marsha Corbin, C-O-R-B-I-N.

18 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

19 THE WITNESS: Dover, Missouri.

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

21 THE WITNESS: I currently serve as
22 executive director of the Old Trails Regional Tourism
23 Partnership. We are a nine-county heritage tourism
24 area that includes Carrollton and Chariton Counties.
25 We promote tourism, economic development and

1 entrepreneurship. Included in our mission is
2 protection of scenic landscapes and the intrinsic
3 value of the region.

4 This project directly contradicts that
5 mission. Our membership values private property
6 rights, and we feel that this project -- they're very
7 concerned that this project is in direct conflict with
8 those private property rights. Thank you.

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

10 Joan Carroll.

11 (The witness was sworn.)

12 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name and
13 spell your last name.

14 THE WITNESS: Joan Carroll, C-A-R-R-O-L-L.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

16 THE WITNESS: Bosworth, Missouri.

17 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

18 THE WITNESS: In 2015, the Commission had
19 said no, and it was due to the lack of benefit of good
20 to the State of Missouri, so that put the ball back in
21 their court to prove that there was benefit to or good
22 to the State of Missouri. Well, what they dangled for
23 a carrot was 67 municipal utilities was going to
24 benefit from this. Well, in the big picture of the
25 State of Missouri, that's a mere drop in the bucket of

1 what they're going to offer to them.

2 I have a concern that the Grain Belt
3 Express put out for Carroll County there was 85
4 parcels of land, and it would be 3.5 million for the
5 farmers or the landowners. Well, when there's
6 litigation and there's jury awards, I'm paid for
7 emotional damage and stuff like that. 3.5 million
8 won't get me to sell any of my ground, not even one
9 acre of it.

10 I never bought it to make money from it,
11 and just compensating me is the last thing that it's
12 covering. Other people have stood up here and said
13 what that land meant to them, to their family, to
14 their kids, to their future generations. So it's not
15 just a monetary item. And it's like you all decided,
16 there was no benefit for the greater good of the State
17 of Missouri. And to ask my father-in-law or to force
18 him to sell his ground that he intends to leave to his
19 grandchildren, you know, it's not benefitting enough
20 people in the State of Missouri.

21 And we have other forms of energy. There's
22 hydrogen, nuclear, geothermal. In 10 years, there may
23 be something even better, so if they abandon this line
24 that they build, who is going to go out there and dig
25 up all that cement holding that huge tower to try to

1 reclaim and put that land back to use?

2 I have concerns for the safety of people
3 living near those lines. There is no evidence. I
4 can't find it. If anyone has found it, please show it
5 to me because this is supposed to be the largest
6 transmission line ever built, so you can't tell me
7 there is no danger from living close to it or
8 underneath it or within it. You're not going to be
9 able to crop dust, and I saw the crop duster busy as
10 could be this year. He's not going to be able to fly
11 with those lines there.

12 And we have the GPS with our farming,
13 precision ag, that's going on now, and just the
14 wildlife. Missouri is really big on deer hunting. I
15 mean, we have quail forever, we have the turkey
16 chapters. You're going to eliminate so much of their
17 habitat, and then how are they going to maintain those
18 lines? Are they going to go in there with another
19 chemical and spray that? Is that how they're going to
20 defoliate the area? Now, there is contamination to
21 ground water right there that is of no benefit to the
22 State of Missouri.

23 We passed the sales tax for conservation.
24 There is no conservation here. We're wiping out
25 everything. I've seen the hawks on top of the power

1 poles, and they'll get tangled up and they're dead.
2 Well, finally, the last few years that I've been
3 working my route, I've seen a lot of bald eagles
4 around. Is this going to fry them?

5 I don't understand -- this is like building
6 a bridge in Kentucky to go to Kansas. It makes no
7 sense to go clear across the State of Missouri, drop
8 off a little bit of power so I get a brownie point.

9 I'm sorry. Eminent domain should be for
10 the greater good of everyone, and I have yet to see a
11 landowner come up here and say they can take my land
12 to do this because it's benefitting my neighbors.

13 Thank you for your time.

14 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Brad Hunt.

15 (The witness was sworn.)

16 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
17 and spell your last name.

18 THE WITNESS: Brad Hunt, H-U-N-T.

19 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

20 THE WITNESS: Northwest Carroll County.

21 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

22 THE WITNESS: I don't know about you guys,
23 but I've been sitting back here listening, and the
24 people that are for this, it's pretty clear to see,
25 they have their hand out. They're wanting money.

1 I am a sixth-generation farmer. My son
2 sitting right over there will be number seven. Seven
3 generations on that farm that the line will go
4 through.

5 If I wanted to make money, trust me, I
6 would not be farming. I think most people can speak
7 for that. They farm for a reason. They love their
8 land. They work for the land. And to have our
9 fabulous Commissioners come up here and boast that
10 they have been all over the country, doing this and
11 doing that. Well, I just heard one standing back
12 there to say, "Sounds to me like he skipped all over
13 the country chasing the dollar."

14 That's what this is all about, the dollar.
15 To me, it needs to come down to common sense. This is
16 not good for us.

17 Of course, Carrollton wants it. They're 20
18 miles from it. They don't have to look at it every
19 day.

20 Thank you for your time. Thank you for
21 hearing everybody. We appreciate.

22 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

23 Grace West.

24 (The witness was sworn.)

25 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,

1 and spell your last name.

2 THE WITNESS: Grace West, W-E-S-T.

3 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

4 THE WITNESS: I live two miles west of
5 Norman, Missouri in Carroll County.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

7 THE WITNESS: I did not come prepared to
8 speak, partly because I have laryngitis and partly
9 because I'm not a good public speaker, but I feel so
10 strongly opposed to this transmission line that I felt
11 that I should speak.

12 I came to the first open house that Clean
13 Line had here in this building and I was very much
14 impressed because I'm a big advocate of renewable
15 energy, but I like to think that I have an open mind,
16 so I went to the opposition meeting and heard the
17 other side, which is more than I can say for some of
18 the people who spoke here tonight and at previous
19 meetings.

20 I have a farm. It's rented out, but I feel
21 like it's my farm. I share-crop it. I don't rent it
22 on cash. The land is very important to me, as it is
23 to these other people.

24 I heard the farmers' complaints, and I'm
25 not going to repeat all those because you've already

1 heard them. There's one thing I want to add that I
2 haven't heard anybody else mention, and that's the
3 cost of insurance if these lines and towers are on
4 their property. Out of curiosity, I contacted my
5 insurance agent, and she contacted the underwriters,
6 and they said we would have to see the contract with
7 the company, but it's possible that a commercial
8 insurance policy would have to be issued, which I'm
9 sure would be quite expensive.

10 I also want to tell you about an experience
11 I had with Kansas City Power & Light, who has a line
12 running across part of my property. I was unaware
13 that they had entered my property. My neighbor told
14 me after the fact. And they clear-cut a strip under
15 their lines, which I can understand the trees need to
16 be kept low; however, this was along the Waccamaw
17 Creek, and it was an area where the creek comes from
18 the north and then makes an almost right turn to the
19 east. By clear-cutting that, they allowed the next
20 big rain to come and erode that creek bank about a
21 foot. It cut it out. And the next rain they had
22 washed it out, and the ground collapsed into the
23 creek.

24 I contacted Kansas City Power & Light by
25 mail, and received a phone call immediately, and they

1 had the company that had done the tree-cutting talk to
2 me. I met him up on my property, and he explained why
3 they had done this. I said, "Fine. But this has
4 damaged my property."

5 "Well, we'll make amends." Well, you can't
6 replace a creek bank, so I'm not really very happy
7 about having the transmission line over my property
8 any longer.

9 I am a little concerned about why these
10 other five counties have not been in favor of this.
11 To me, that's a pretty significant thing. And I'm not
12 sure why they're not in favor, but I assume that
13 perhaps they've done the math, and found that it's not
14 as good a deal as they thought it might be at first.
15 I think that's significant.

16 I'm sorry I'm not a little more organized
17 with my talk, and I'm not going to give you the sermon
18 that I give to everybody that I can corner to talk
19 about this, but I do appreciate the fact that you have
20 paid attention and that you're considering both sides
21 of this, and I'm hoping that you will come out on the
22 side of the farmers.

23 Agriculture is one of the prime industries
24 in Missouri, and this line would damage the farmers'
25 ability to produce. Agriculture may be number one, as

1 a matter of fact. I'm not really sure. But farming
2 is important. No farm, no food.

3 I thank you for your time and your
4 attention.

5 Do you have any questions?

6 COMMISSIONER HALL: No questions. Thank
7 you.

8 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

9 John Quinn. John Quinn?

10 Jim Warner.

11 THE WITNESS: Thank you for letting me
12 speak here tonight. My name is James Warner --

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Let me swear you in.

14 (The witness was sworn.)

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Could you state your name,
16 and spell your last name for the record.

17 THE WITNESS: James Warner, W-A-R-N-E-R.

18 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live, sir?

19 THE WITNESS: I live in Tina, Missouri.

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead, sir.

21 THE WITNESS: I've heard a lot of people
22 talk about how beneficial it's going to be to them. I
23 know one thing, it's mostly all people that don't live
24 near or around this line.

25 These farmers are the ones going to have to

1 live with this thing. They're the ones that's got to
2 endure it. I think a lot of attention should be given
3 to what their voice is on this thing.

4 I've got three farms that I deal with,
5 small farms, but I've worked pipeline construction my
6 whole life. I've been involved with a lot of big
7 projects. I've been welder foreman on several. I was
8 welder foreman on the Keystone that run from Oklahoma
9 into Texas. I was foreman on this job over here from
10 Marshall into the Quincy, Illinois. The first one was
11 almost 200 miles. Second one was almost 120.

12 The reason I'm telling you about this, we
13 cross under a lot of grid lines. My job as welder
14 foreman was to make sure we can weld the pipes. When
15 you have a stringing crew go out there and start
16 laying pipe underneath these lines, if you put them
17 out there from 10 days to two weeks before, you better
18 have you some ground cables on this pipe because if
19 you don't, when you come to weld and it's mechanized
20 welding, it magnetized pipe, and you cannot weld it.

21 Well, if it sits there and magnetized a
22 piece of pipe laying on the ground underneath these
23 grid, what is it doing to the people living in that
24 area?

25 I've been all over the United States. I

1 did this 45 years, and it's the same on every grid
2 line I've ever been under. There's a lot of them you
3 walk under, and the hair on your arms will stand up.
4 So nobody can tell me that this doesn't have some
5 effect on people and the nearby homes or the areas
6 around them. I've seen too much of it, and I've been
7 doing it for 45 years that I just stated.

8 The electrolysis that comes off of this
9 pipe or on this pipe, I don't know if anybody ever
10 even measures it or not. I don't know if there's any
11 studies out on it. But there is -- to me, it would be
12 a serious health concern for anyone living in and
13 around it.

14 I know there's one gentleman that was
15 talking about the Palmera line. We laid that 120
16 miles of 36-inch. We laid right through that area,
17 and those people, I will attest to what he said, they
18 absolutely destroyed those people's property.

19 Pipelines, when they go in, they'll cut the
20 topsoil off and get you something to run, and then lay
21 it back over. And as Mr. Sprouse said, even the best
22 contractor is going to have problems with the lines as
23 he has.

24 None of these electrical contractors I've
25 seen do any right-of-way. They just go out there and

1 plow the trucks right up through the right-of-way and
2 don't really care a whole lot of what's going on.

3 That around Palmera was a disaster. I was
4 up there, in and around that for several months, so I
5 can attest to what he's telling you. He's telling you
6 right.

7 There ought to be something done for these
8 people to make sure that they take care of their
9 property because you're tearing up the subsoil and the
10 topsoil. You start mixing them, and you go out there
11 in these trucks and run axle deep on these things,
12 you're tearing and mixing it up, and then it's hard to
13 recover.

14 And as far as this young man that tells us
15 how much we're going to be saving in the country, \$10
16 million, I'm sure he's probably right, but I will also
17 attest that that's probably going to the companies
18 like KCP&L. It's going to make them richer, and we,
19 as a consumer, will never see a drop of it. I've
20 never had much experience with KCP&L dropping their
21 rates for nothing.

22 I just think that you fellows really need
23 to give these people a lot of attention. There's a
24 lot that don't live near the line that's all for it.
25 That's great. But if each one of you had a house

1 laying underneath this thing or close to it, I wonder
2 what your opinion would be.

3 So I thank you for your time and appreciate
4 you giving me time to speak on this.

5 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

7 Olga Khakova.

8 (The witness was sworn.)

9 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
10 and spell your last name.

11 THE WITNESS: Olga Khakova, K-H-A-K-O-V-A.

12 JUDGE BUSHMANN: And where do you live?

13 THE WITNESS: Lawrence, Kansas. And my
14 nonprofit is based in Hutchinson, Kansas.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please go ahead.

16 THE WITNESS: Good evening and thank you
17 for the opportunity to address you this evening.

18 My name is Olga Khakova. I am a program
19 director with the Climate & Energy project. Our
20 not-for-profit is based in Hutchinson, Kansas, and for
21 almost 10 years we have worked collaboratively with
22 landowners, farmers and ranchers, as well as local
23 businesses, utilities and legislatures to achieve
24 mutually beneficial solutions to complex energy issues
25 like we're discussing today.

1 I'm here today because I wanted to share
2 Kansas's experience with transmission lines, and the
3 effects that they have on our state. Like you're
4 hearing today, there were also concerns from folks in
5 Kansas when the work was underway to increase
6 transmission capacity in our state. The proposed
7 changes created discomfort and uncertainty for many.
8 Fortunately, elected officials recognized as the
9 demand for electricity grew, the transmission capacity
10 had to be increased as well. Now we have the benefit
11 of six years behind us to assess the impact of those
12 decisions in 2010.

13 What's important for each of you to
14 understand, as you prepare to move forward with the
15 Grain Belt Express, that that capacity works. Kansas
16 has benefited from 13,000 jobs, direct and indirect,
17 created by wind power. Kansas landowners collected
18 and received more than \$13 million annually from wind
19 turbines and land rents, as well as wind development
20 contributed more than \$10 million annually to the
21 Kansas community.

22 Missouri is poised for similar economic
23 outputs. The state's own Department of Economic
24 Development estimates the Grain Belt Express project
25 will create 1500 jobs during the three years of

1 construction, and increase the job revenue collected
2 by 9.6 over the same three years. Further, the Grain
3 Belt will pay more than 7.2 million in property taxes
4 to eight Missouri counties the first year of
5 operation, and will continue to pay significant
6 property taxes for the life of the project.

7 Estimates also show an increase in personal
8 income by 246 million, an increase in gross domestic
9 product by 476 million. There is no question the
10 Grain Belt Express project is good for business.

11 The Missouri Public Service Commission can
12 also feel good about the project developers to Clean
13 Light Energy's fair, open and transparent in their
14 dealings with landowners, government stakeholders, and
15 citizens. The fact that they post the landowners'
16 compensation fact sheets on the website is just one
17 example of their transparency and fair compensation to
18 the landowners.

19 Approving the Grain Belt Express
20 application will enable Clean Line Energy to deliver
21 best renewable resources in the nation to communities
22 with a strong demand for clean, low-cost power, saving
23 10 million annually to participating utilities, while
24 reducing pollution, saving water and growing local
25 economies.

1 So I hope my testimony gives you a helpful
2 perspective on the benefits and opportunities that the
3 Grain Belt Express can bring to the State of Missouri.
4 Our Grain Belt Express is in the public's best
5 interest. Thank you.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Thank you.

7 COMMISSIONER HALL: Excuse me.

8 THE WITNESS: Yes.

9 COMMISSIONER HALL: The Climate Energy
10 Project, that's the organization.

11 THE WITNESS: Yes, Climate Energy Project,
12 we're a nonprofit.

13 COMMISSIONER HALL: And how are you funded?

14 THE WITNESS: We're funded by the Energy
15 Foundation.

16 COMMISSIONER HALL: What is the Energy
17 Foundation?

18 THE WITNESS: So it's a foundation that
19 supports solutions for renewable and clean energy, and
20 we've been working in Kansas for the last 10 years.

21 COMMISSIONER HALL: And have you done any
22 written analysis of this transmission line?

23 THE WITNESS: We haven't, but we looked at
24 the research and we worked with Clean Line. We've
25 asked them for expertise, and we've also seen research

1 done by Berkeley lab. I've also seen research done,
2 and we've seen the experience in Kansas of what wind
3 energy -- benefits wind energy can bring to the
4 communities. So all those things that were promised
5 to Kansas were realized.

6 COMMISSIONER HALL: Okay. Thank you.

7 THE WITNESS: Thank you.

8 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Dwight Harper.

9 (The witness was sworn.)

10 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Please state your name,
11 and spell your last name.

12 THE WITNESS: Dwight Harper, H-A-R-P-E-R.

13 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Where do you live?

14 THE WITNESS: I live in Tina, Missouri.

15 JUDGE BUSHMANN: Go ahead.

16 THE WITNESS: This proposed line will cross
17 a little over two miles of my land. It comes within
18 5, 600 feet of my house. We have a tenant house that
19 it comes even closer.

20 I guess I stand up here for you guys with
21 this proposed line, and you heard the testimony from
22 Jim Warner about the pipelines. We deal with three of
23 them. One of them is one of the largest natural gas
24 lines in the United States, 42-inch Rockie Express.

25 The safety for this across my property and

1 my line is this electric line will actually cross from
2 the north side to the south of the easement.

3 Pipelines use cathodic protection to help
4 keep the safety integrity of their lines. I know this
5 a little bit because my dad was a pipelayer also when
6 he was alive.

7 When these pipelines -- this is such a big
8 DC electric line, there's no studies out there that
9 shows what implications and safety this can have over
10 the cathodic protection of these pipelines. I feel
11 where this line will cross on my property causes a big
12 safety issue that is -- I don't know. I always was
13 told to err on the side of caution. Without these
14 studies and the integrity of the pipelines, who knows
15 what could happen.

16 We've seen one blow up in Platte City just
17 the other day. I mean, with the concussion -- I have
18 to work around three of these pipelines. With the
19 concussion of one of them, all three of them would
20 probably explode at the same time.

21 I'm also a school board -- I mean, along
22 with Boelsen, I guess, I graduated from University of
23 Missouri also. I took sales and marketing classes
24 down there, and I guess I feel like this is probably
25 the textbook sale. You basically show somebody a

1 need, and then you sell it to them. Well, Grain Belt
2 Express has been a private company that has shown a
3 need, and now they're trying to sell that need.

4 I sit here and stand here before you to say
5 why did not those utilities say that we need this? If
6 it is so needed, why is not more utility companies
7 around here coming together to try to promote this
8 part of it?

9 This decision that you're going to make
10 greatly affects my livelihood, my three little boys
11 that I have that will grow up around my farm, and
12 it's -- I feel like it's the safety issues of this. I
13 mean, I have to work around the three pipelines. Now
14 I'm going to add an electric line. And when is enough
15 enough for my land?

16 I feel like I've given my property enough
17 for this country, and why do you have to go along with
18 another one that poses increased safety issues across
19 these dangers of what can happen? It's not a
20 little -- we also do construction work where we fix
21 waterlines for people in our community. These things
22 are engineered to where they're not supposed to leak,
23 they're not supposed to have problems, but there are
24 instances out there of the unknown. And I'm just
25 asking you guys to think about this when you parallel

1 an electric line of this magnitude against some of the
2 biggest pipelines in the country, the safety concerns
3 and issues that I have for my family, and the farmers
4 along this whole line. Thank you.

5 COMMISSIONER HALL: Thank you.

6 JUDGE BUSHMANN: David Brown. Did he come
7 back?

8 That's all the names I have on the list
9 signed up to talk. Is there anybody who has not
10 testified at the previous hearings or tonight who
11 would like to say something that didn't sign up?

12 COMMISSIONER HALL: This is the eighth
13 local public hearing, I believe we've had somewhere
14 between 40 and 60 people speak at each of the
15 hearings. Thank you for providing such eloquent and
16 insightful testimonials. The information gained at
17 these hearings will certainly be taken into account by
18 the Commission when it renders a decision, so I thank
19 you.

20 JUDGE BUSHMANN: We are off the record.
21 Thank you all for coming.

22 (Deposition concluded at 8:58 p.m.)

23 -o0o-

24

25

	I N D E X	
	WITNESS	PAGE
1		
2		
3		
4		
5	Joyce Vetter	7
6	Joe Don McGaugh	12
7	Diane Davies	14
8	Linda Trammell	17
9	Dalton Gatrel	20
10	Brenda Cauthorn	21
11	Atticus Francken	23
12	Vicki Hunt	27
13	Patrick Peters	30
14	Matt Pinkerton	31
15	Bill Severns	32
16	Donald Bixenman	34
17	Russell Pisciotta	37
18	Darin Davies	41
19	Emily Davies	42
20	Welden Sprouse	45
21	Kepper Kleeman	51
22	Julie Kissner	54
23	Scott Grimes	57
24	Brian Hunt	59
25	Steven Kreyling	61

1	Nelson Heil	65
2	Dallas White	67
3	Edward Young	68
4	Kathleen Nolan Bondy	68
5	Walter Spilker	71
6	Debra Games	75
7	Bill Boelsen	79
8	Ian Davidson	82
9	Sharon Metz	84
10	Cheryl Wilson	89
11	David Maasdam	90
12	Marsha Corbin	91
13	Joan Carroll	92
14	Brad Hunt	95
15	Grace West	96
16	James Warner	100
17	Olga Khakova	104
18	Dwight Harper	108
19		
20		
21	EXHIBIT	PAGE
22		
23	Exhibit 61	41
24	Exhibit 62	75
25	Exhibit 63	75


1	Exhibit 64	75
2	Exhibit 65	75
3	Exhibit 66	75
4	Exhibit 67	75
5	Exhibit 68	75
6		
7		
8	(Exhibits retained by Judge Bushmann)	
9		
10		
11		
12		
13		
14		
15		
16		
17		
18		
19		
20		
21		
22		
23		
24		
25		

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER

I, Beth A. Kaltenberger, a Certified Court Reporter for the state of Missouri, Certified Shorthand Reporter, Registered Professional Reporter and Certified Realtime Reporter, do hereby certify that the Public Service Hearing aforementioned was held on the time and in the place previously described.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand this 28th day of December, 2016.


BETH A. KALTENBERGER, RPR, CRR
Missouri CCR No. 1335

A	<p>affect 9:12 20:3 35:16 43:17 86:13</p> <p>afford 26:11,13</p> <p>affordability 23:24</p> <p>aforementioned 115:8</p> <p>afraid 15:15</p> <p>afternoon's 7:3</p> <p>ag 9:12,13 52:21 52:22 94:13</p> <p>age 34:10 46:11 46:12 66:9,13</p> <p>agencies 70:19 70:21</p> <p>agent 98:5</p> <p>aging 26:12 66:22</p> <p>ago 8:19 12:18 17:19 29:13 34:2 41:6 46:19 46:21 47:9 52:8 56:21 79:24 85:21</p> <p>agree 33:16 38:5 44:7</p> <p>agreed 39:20</p> <p>agricultural 49:9</p> <p>Agriculture 99:23,25</p> <p>agronomy 45:19</p> <p>Ahab 22:10</p> <p>ahead 7:13 12:11 14:10 17:12 20:11 21:24 23:9 27:22 30:13 32:2 33:5 37:24 41:21 43:1 45:12 51:16 55:6 58:3 60:6 61:9 67:11 69:5 72:8 75:19 79:19 82:24 85:6 90:5,22 91:20 92:17</p>	<p>95:21 97:6 100:20 104:15 108:15</p> <p>aiming 43:22,24</p> <p>air 11:21</p> <p>airfield 10:11</p> <p>Airlines 9:5</p> <p>airplanes 9:2 11:8 35:17</p> <p>airport 7:19,20 8:5,11,13,20,25 9:1,17 10:18,24 11:13</p> <p>airports 10:22</p> <p>alive 109:6</p> <p>alleged 73:24</p> <p>Alliance 85:9 88:20</p> <p>allow 22:16 24:15 35:20 37:6 45:2 71:3 71:7</p> <p>allowed 98:19</p> <p>allowing 37:9,12 44:6 69:14</p> <p>alongside 21:1</p> <p>Altec 58:25</p> <p>alternative 38:25</p> <p>amazing 85:13 90:24</p> <p>ambulance 85:25</p> <p>amends 99:5</p> <p>America 45:25 63:23 64:2</p> <p>American 9:5 15:8 87:11</p> <p>Americans 86:21</p> <p>Amish 39:12,15</p> <p>amount 6:4 20:1 77:22 78:9,10 78:12,12,17,18</p> <p>Amron 73:13,14 74:17,20,23,24</p> <p>Amron's 73:20 73:23</p> <p>Amy 6:25,25</p>	<p>analysis 46:16 107:22</p> <p>ancient 81:20</p> <p>Angeles 82:6</p> <p>animal 45:20 52:24</p> <p>animals 48:17</p> <p>annual 83:20</p> <p>annually 105:18 105:20 106:23</p> <p>answer 6:16 13:23</p> <p>anybody 9:13 11:14 36:6 98:2 102:9 111:9</p> <p>anymore 48:13</p> <p>anyway 26:3 36:18</p> <p>apologize 52:17 61:21 63:9</p> <p>apparent 72:24</p> <p>Apparently 74:1</p> <p>appear 84:9</p> <p>appearances 4:17</p> <p>appears 22:7</p> <p>application 1:10 3:7 5:15 46:1 69:13 79:6 89:8 106:20</p> <p>applying 64:14</p> <p>appreciate 4:12 13:21 30:15 38:2 40:16 43:3 60:9 96:21 99:19 104:3</p> <p>appreciation 56:5</p> <p>approach 38:13</p> <p>appropriate 84:8</p> <p>approval 69:12</p> <p>approve 26:21 86:21</p> <p>approved 23:12 75:25</p> <p>Approving</p>	<p>106:19</p> <p>approximately 77:14</p> <p>area 17:18,21 18:1,7 19:20,22 29:4 59:10 82:4 82:6 84:15 85:8 88:19 91:24 94:20 98:17 101:24 102:16</p> <p>areas 13:14 65:21 102:5</p> <p>argument 35:13 61:19</p> <p>arguments 35:14 35:15 62:16</p> <p>arms 102:3</p> <p>Arthur 62:13</p> <p>article 28:17</p> <p>asked 18:16 107:25</p> <p>asking 14:15,20 29:11 40:18 43:10 44:12 50:24 60:22 73:9,17 110:25</p> <p>aspect 67:24</p> <p>aspects 62:20 83:9</p> <p>assert 73:22</p> <p>assess 105:11</p> <p>associated 1:13 3:11 20:23 39:20 54:21</p> <p>assume 63:16 74:23 99:12</p> <p>assured 7:23</p> <p>AT&T 46:21,25 50:22</p> <p>Atlantic 39:3</p> <p>attempting 83:14</p> <p>attended 14:13 56:23</p> <p>attention 19:3 99:20 100:4 101:2 103:23</p>
----------	--	--	---	--

<p>attest 102:17 103:5,17 Atticus 23:1,5 112:11 attorney 12:24 audience 5:8 Audrain 21:22 22:4 61:8 62:11 62:18 auger 48:6 authority 69:14 84:19 authorization 84:7 authorized 83:12 Authorizing 1:12 3:8 automatic 15:10 available 74:3 aviation 11:9 awards 93:6 aware 74:21,24 awash 74:1 awful 40:18 axle 103:11</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">B</p> <hr/> <p>B-I-X-E-N-M-... 35:5 B-O-E-L-S-E-N 79:15 B-O-N-D-Y 69:1 bachelor's 45:19 62:6 back 12:18,21 13:11 33:18,19 34:13 42:14,16 47:2 50:23 51:1 53:2 58:21,22 62:23 65:19 71:23 73:6 81:2 92:20 94:1 95:23 96:11 102:21 111:7 backing 25:13 backs 31:8</p>	<p>backyard 91:2,9 bad 11:3 21:4 47:5 bag 13:19 bald 95:3 ball 60:19 92:20 bands 63:15 bank 11:1 98:20 99:6 bankruptcy 8:4 Baptist 62:10 based 46:1 58:12 66:3 104:14,20 basic 13:8 basically 109:25 bathroom 29:11 Battlefield 2:12 bear 35:21 beautiful 17:22 20:3 36:2 beauty 17:19,25 18:2 beg 9:7 45:1 beginning 7:21 begun 62:7 belief 66:21 believe 13:13 24:19 33:12 39:19 40:6 44:17 62:15 67:3 82:7 111:13 Belt 1:11 2:2 3:7 4:17 5:15 16:25 17:15 18:25 19:3 20:16 21:13 23:11 27:10 28:2,8 30:3,19 38:4,6 38:14,21 39:9 39:17 40:2,14 40:24 41:5 45:22 55:9 59:13,20 61:24 62:25 68:12 69:11,18 71:15</p>	<p>83:3,7,24 84:6 84:9 93:2 105:15,24 106:3,10,19 107:3,4 110:1 beneficial 100:22 104:24 benefit 13:15 19:7 24:12 25:24 26:18 37:7 39:10 41:7 43:18 56:11 64:21 71:12 84:1 92:19,21 92:24 93:16 94:21 105:10 benefited 105:16 benefits 24:9 26:5,18,20 86:15 87:3,3 107:2 108:3 benefitting 93:19 95:12 Berkeley 108:1 Berkshire 76:17 77:4,15 best 10:25 26:15 102:21 106:21 107:4 bet 82:8 Beth 1:24 115:4 115:20 Bethel 72:7 better 26:2 66:24 93:23 101:17 Betty 7:5 Bible 61:23 bid 47:3 big 10:21,22 16:4 26:10,17 81:6 89:10 92:24 94:14 97:14 98:20 101:6 109:7,11 bigger 11:15 biggest 73:19</p>	<p>111:2 bill 3:17 32:23 33:2 73:13 79:10,14 112:15 113:7 billion 77:6,11,13 77:15 78:14 billionaire 75:22 76:1 billionaires 16:25 76:5 bins 66:18 bird 17:23 bit 61:17 85:15 95:8 109:5 bite 22:9 Bixenman 34:24 35:4 112:16 blatant 84:16 block 20:16 72:12 blocks 79:17 blow 109:16 blue 8:16 board 62:9,11,12 83:5 109:21 boards 87:11 boast 96:9 boasting 40:8 Boelsen 79:10,14 109:22 113:7 Bondy 68:21,25 113:4 boon 40:14 borders 20:21 born 12:17 65:23 79:20 Bosworth 92:16 bought 8:5 93:10 Box 2:18,22 Boy 60:10 boys 110:10 Brad 95:14,18 113:14 brain 28:16 brand 91:5</p>	<p>Braymer 27:20 45:10,23 break 10:14 14:19 71:20 breast 28:15 Brenda 21:15,19 112:10 Brian 59:24 60:3 112:24 bridge 95:6 brief 71:22 bring 12:21 13:2 13:11 16:7 32:13,17 56:3 68:16 88:3 107:3 108:3 bringing 13:14 59:6 brings 25:22,24 26:1,1 33:19 59:10 67:16 brokers 77:22 brothers 53:21 brought 85:22 Brown 89:19 111:6 brownie 95:8 Brunswick 69:3 BS 51:25 bucket 31:12 92:25 Buffet 76:17,20 Buffett's 77:11 build 21:6,8 29:10 31:10 36:8,19 40:20 44:1,3,4 73:10 76:21,22,25 80:23 93:24 building 9:22 38:10 47:3 50:22 95:5 97:13 buildings 8:21 9:1 built 9:1 18:13</p>
---	--	---	---	---

<p>36:23 39:13 44:20 46:4 47:25 66:12 70:13 72:21,22 73:1 91:5 94:6 bulldozers 73:3 burden 64:23 Bureau 83:2 buried 46:22 47:23 bury 9:24,25 bus 53:8 Bushmann 1:18 3:2,14 4:16,20 4:22 5:1,4,7 7:8 7:11,13 10:9 12:3,5,9,11 14:1,4,8,10 17:5,7,12 20:6 20:9,11 21:15 21:17,21,24 22:19,21,25 23:3,7,9 26:23 27:13,16,19,22 30:5,8,11,13 31:17,20,24 32:2,21,23,25 33:3,5 34:22,24 35:2 37:15,18 37:22,24 41:10 41:12,14,16,19 41:21 42:18,21 42:24 43:1 45:3 45:5,9,12 49:7 51:1,5,8,10,14 51:16 54:23 55:1,4,6 57:20 57:23 58:1,3 59:23 60:1,4,6 61:1,3,7,9 65:10,12,15 67:1,3,6,9,11 68:1,5,7,10,20 68:23 69:2,5 71:19,23 72:1,5 72:8 75:10,13</p>	<p>75:17,19 79:9 79:12,16,19 82:15,18,22,24 84:23,25 85:3,6 88:15 89:19,21 89:24 90:2,5,13 90:17,20,22 91:13,15,18,20 92:9,12,15,17 95:14,16,19,21 96:22,25 97:3,6 100:8,13,15,18 100:20 104:6,9 104:12,15 107:6 108:8,10 108:13,15 111:6,20 114:8 business 12:19 19:4 33:20 38:8 39:20 52:19 53:20 58:13 59:10 76:1 77:8 82:5 106:10 businesses 40:22 44:24 59:15 66:5 104:23 businessman 41:3 busy 94:9 buy 8:7 22:11 36:8 47:2 50:23 52:6</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">C</p> <p>C 2:1,6,6 C-A-R-R-O-L-L 92:14 C-A-U-T-H-O-... 21:20 C-O-R-B-I-N 91:17 cable 46:22 cables 10:1 101:18 CAEA 85:8 cake 16:21</p>	<p>Caldwell 18:4 19:11,15 37:23 44:18 45:10,18 51:23 55:5 California 82:6 call 5:22,23 83:17 98:25 called 27:6 46:11 47:16 55:24 72:7 73:9 81:3 calves 47:15 Camden 7:16 Cameron 48:12 camp 62:10,10 campfire 21:4 camping 17:24 Canada 82:4 cancer 20:23 28:16,16 67:22 capacity 38:23 39:5 78:10 105:6,9,15 capitalistic 80:15 capitalize 83:14 captioned 3:6 car 59:1 Cards 80:6 care 9:12 37:11 42:15 87:14,18 103:2,8 cared 56:1 career 68:14,18 careers 34:18,18 careful 20:2 carefully 71:16 88:5 caring 15:5 Carroll 12:15 13:17 14:9 18:3 27:20 30:12,15 30:17 41:20 42:14,25 51:15 51:22 60:5 65:17 83:1 85:10 92:10,14 93:3 95:20 97:5</p>	<p>113:13 Carrollton 1:7 3:4 12:10,17,20 12:20,24,25 24:11 29:4 79:18 81:2 85:4 85:8,11 87:12 88:19,21 89:5 91:24 96:17 carrot 92:23 carry 38:17 82:2 case 3:6 4:3,4 24:4 25:4,13 54:10 83:13 84:8 cases 78:2 cash 97:22 Castro 80:17 catholic 109:3 109:10 cattle 47:14,21 60:14 cause 56:15 69:24 caused 25:10 28:19 causes 63:20 109:11 Cauthorn 4:11 21:15,19 22:21 112:10 caution 109:13 CCN 79:7 CCR 1:25 115:21 Cedarcrest 62:10 cell 5:9 11:3,23 36:8 cement 93:25 Center 1:8 62:13 77:9 Centerview 67:10 Century 9:25 certainly 111:17 certificate 1:11 3:8 25:2 64:14</p>	<p>69:13 115:1 Certified 115:4,5 115:7 certify 83:7 115:7 cetera 3:21 chain 81:6 Chairman 1:19 3:16,18,19 4:10 10:10,17 11:6 21:25 22:20 27:23 30:1 37:25 45:14 55:7 69:6 chamber 85:9 chance 5:18 6:4 43:11 change 9:13 38:5 57:10 60:23 76:10 78:1 88:11 changes 36:23 105:7 chapters 94:16 character 70:13 Chariton 12:15 13:17 69:4 70:23 90:3 91:24 chasing 96:13 chattel 74:10 cheap 56:18 check 6:12 chemical 94:19 chemicals 54:5 Cheryl 89:22 90:1 113:10 Chicago 27:4 chickens 82:11 childhood 20:23 children 13:11 18:15 28:7,15 31:1,2 33:19 41:25 43:19 44:9 70:15,22 71:3,6,7,11,17</p>
---	--	--	--	---

<p>88:12 children's 20:4 Chinese 36:5 choice 44:11 83:21 choices 70:13 choose 56:25 chooses 75:24 church 60:18 62:10 cigarettes 43:15 circled 47:13 circumstances 9:20 cities 81:15 87:24 88:22 citizens 24:12 29:24 31:15 64:1 74:9 106:15 city 2:18,23 12:24 19:21 33:9 54:15,16 55:23 58:2,12 62:9,16 82:4 86:20 87:11 98:11,24 109:16 civil 33:7 claim 25:7 claims 39:23 classes 52:22,23 52:23 53:1 109:23 clean 1:11 2:2 3:7 4:18 7:21 13:2,3 15:6,11 15:23,25 16:2 16:19,21,22,25 17:4 18:17 22:2 22:7 25:2 28:5 35:20 38:14,25 48:22 49:10 51:25 52:4 53:16 54:3 56:18,20,22</p>	<p>59:16 64:9,19 69:10 71:15 79:6 84:10 86:21 91:2 97:12 106:12 106:20,22 107:19,24 cleanest 59:3 cleaning 81:5 clear 17:16 18:18 26:18 95:7,24 clear-cut 98:14 clear-cutting 98:19 clearly 40:13 client 33:6 clients 33:10 climate 38:5 76:10 104:19 107:9,11 Clinton 8:14 cloak 56:20 close 7:22 10:10 30:21 31:2 32:11 34:11 35:16 42:9 94:7 104:1 closed 87:6 closer 7:25 45:1 56:16 108:19 closing 54:10 67:19 88:1 co-op 18:19 CO2 77:24 78:2 78:4 Coast 23:18 coffers 74:12 collaboratively 104:21 collapsed 98:22 collected 105:17 106:1 college 42:13 55:23 Columbia 33:8 combination</p>	<p>10:22 combine 46:11 48:6 combines 85:9 come 5:23 7:6,25 11:15 13:16 27:25 28:6 30:17 34:11,13 35:10,20 37:6 37:13 40:21 42:13,16 45:15 53:2 54:22 58:21,22 61:14 68:5 74:7 87:9 87:14 88:2 95:11 96:9,15 97:7 98:20 99:21 101:19 111:6 comes 8:16 33:18 66:7 86:4 98:17 102:8 108:17 108:19 comfort 56:4 coming 10:24 41:22 42:17 44:22 81:25 89:5 90:24 110:7 111:21 comment 15:14 58:5 59:21 comments 4:2,8 6:1,10,11 54:11 54:15 65:19 83:1 commercial 40:6 48:6 98:7 commission 1:2 2:10,20 3:5 4:20 5:5,12,13 6:1,2,12,12,16 6:20 14:12,21 17:3 24:24 26:19 30:16 38:1,2 39:8 41:5 54:13 55:8</p>	<p>61:24 64:8 69:7 69:12 83:7 92:18 106:11 111:18 Commission's 39:7 commissioner 1:20 3:17 4:9 11:7,20 12:1 13:24 32:22 49:8,12 50:12 57:19 65:2,8,17 67:2 74:13,19 75:2,7 79:8,23 88:16,21 89:3 89:17 91:12 100:6 104:5 107:7,9,13,16 107:21 108:6 111:5,12 commissioners 3:25 8:15 32:16 45:14 58:4 73:10 74:25 88:9 96:9 commitment 57:6 61:14 committed 58:15 59:18 committee 21:25 27:24 30:1 common 96:15 communities 13:5,11,17 32:13 57:7 58:16 59:7,19 70:20 85:16 86:6,10,17 87:2 87:23 106:21 108:4 community 1:8 4:15 12:22 13:3 13:16 19:16 21:11 29:2,5 32:5,18 35:16 36:12 39:16</p>	<p>54:18 62:13 70:17 88:8 89:2 105:21 110:21 compaction 46:6 46:17 companies 24:15 24:18,22 37:6 37:13 58:25 83:20 89:4 103:17 110:6 company 6:20 21:8 22:16 29:16,17,19,21 30:20,23 35:8 36:5 38:8,15 40:8 43:10 44:6 45:2 52:1 56:17 58:14 60:21 64:4 71:13 73:23,23 77:24 80:5,6,8,13 81:3 84:1 89:5 98:7 99:1 110:2 compassion 40:25 compelled 71:17 compensate 30:25 compensated 73:8 75:5 compensating 93:11 compensation 106:16,17 complaining 80:13 complaints 97:24 completely 24:1 50:4 complex 4:5 36:8 104:24 complexities 62:22 complexity 62:21 complies 58:8 concern 35:6,7</p>
---	--	--	---	--

<p>35:19 37:9 87:5 93:2 102:12 concerned 2:5 5:1 18:14 20:22 28:19 48:15 72:13 75:20,22 75:25 76:5,9,14 77:17 78:5,11 83:8 92:7 99:9 concerns 3:21 29:24 30:17 32:7 37:5 38:3 38:4 41:23 42:3 42:7 45:16 63:5 64:10 68:15 94:2 105:4 111:2 concluded 111:22 concrete 47:5 73:2 concussion 109:17,19 condemn 83:15 condemnation 78:21 79:2 condemning 64:22 condition 56:2 66:18 conditions 10:25 conduit 74:6 confident 62:25 conflict 92:7 confused 80:12 connected 63:15 connection 78:1 cons 91:1 conservation 94:23,24 considerable 59:7 consideration 20:2 considering 89:4 99:20</p>	<p>consistent 62:1 constant 70:5 Constitution 76:11,12 Constitutional 75:21 76:3 Construct 1:12 3:9 constructed 28:11 construction 30:19 32:14 38:23 46:18 58:16,17,24 59:3 67:13 72:20 84:15 101:5 106:1 110:20 consumer 103:19 consumers 26:17 40:3 consumes 38:20 contact 33:9 74:19 75:1 contacted 74:22 98:4,5,24 contained 24:16 contamination 94:20 continue 21:10 22:6 26:11 106:5 continued 57:3 continues 55:20 contract 98:6 contractor 58:21 73:6 102:22 contractors 32:4 48:23 58:6,12 59:17 67:18 72:25 74:18,22 102:24 contradicts 92:4 contrast 83:24 contributed 105:20</p>	<p>control 1:12 3:9 46:24 57:13 convenience 1:11 3:8 64:14 69:13 convenient 64:15 conventional 38:18 Converter 1:13 3:11 cool 66:4 copper 81:16,16 copy 65:5 Corbin 91:13,17 113:12 corn 46:14 48:9 corner 99:18 corporate 78:23 corporation 69:10 80:11 corporations 77:3 78:2 81:16 corridor 48:1 corridors 45:25 corrosion 21:2 cost 24:2 31:12 43:21 89:1,13 89:15 98:3 costs 36:17 89:6 counsel 2:14,17 2:22 4:16,23,25 5:7 counties 5:16 12:15 13:18 22:4 64:3 69:17 78:24 91:24 99:10 106:4 country 15:7,8,9 20:19 29:17 35:25,25 55:24 60:10 64:1 81:20 85:17 87:12 89:12 96:10,13 103:15 110:17 111:2 countryside</p>	<p>69:22 county 8:14 14:9 18:3,4 19:11,15 20:25 21:23 23:8 27:21 30:12,15,17 37:23 41:20 42:14,25 44:18 45:11,18 51:15 51:23 55:5 60:5 61:8 62:11,12 62:18 65:18 69:4 70:24 72:6 72:10 73:10 74:25 79:23,23 79:24 83:2 85:10 90:4 93:3 95:20 97:5 county's 76:19 couple 8:22 28:3 course 9:13 18:6 40:10 63:13 66:15 96:17 court 25:1,5 36:17 92:21 115:4 courteous 6:23 courtesy 14:16 covering 93:12 cows 42:9 82:11 create 40:9,17 59:18 84:17 105:25 created 105:7,17 creates 48:3 credit 76:21,23 76:24 77:6,19 78:6,17 credits 77:17,25 creek 98:17,17 98:20,23 99:6 crew 101:15 crime 55:15 crop 64:11 73:4,5 73:7 94:9,9 crops 46:8 48:8</p>	<p>53:22 55:10 72:15,23 cross 53:23 101:13 108:16 109:1,11 crosses 53:8 CRR 1:25 115:20 CSR 1:25 Cuba 80:16 curiosity 98:4 curious 49:12 current 1:13 3:10 38:16 52:5,8,10 70:6 71:10 88:16,18 currently 30:15 38:20,22 50:17 53:20 85:7 91:21 currents 48:18 Custom 58:25 customer 24:11 40:5 73:19 customers 23:25 33:10 38:16 40:6 73:19 cut 51:24 98:21 102:19 cutting 46:7 Cyclean 7:4</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">D</p> <hr/> <p>D 112:1 D-A-V-I-D-S... 82:21 D-A-V-I-E-S 14:7 41:18 42:23 dad 53:21 65:22 109:5 Dallas 67:3,8 113:2 Dalton 20:7,12 20:15 112:9 dam 49:25 damage 67:23</p>
---	---	---	---	--

72:19,22,23 73:1 74:16,20 75:2 93:7 99:24 damaged 46:8 99:4 dang 43:22 danger 94:7 dangerous 75:25 dangers 42:6 110:19 dangled 92:22 Daniel 1:19 3:16 Darin 41:14,18 112:18 data 71:9 daughter 91:4 daughter-in-la... 63:3 David 2:6,6 5:3 89:19 90:14,19 111:6 113:11 Davidson 82:16 82:20 113:8 Davies 14:2,6 41:14,18 42:19 42:23 112:7,18 112:19 day 36:4 42:1 44:15 50:8 63:4 85:12 96:19 109:17 115:13 days 44:13 101:17 DC 70:6 71:4,10 82:3,8 109:8 dead 95:1 deal 13:2 15:6 26:10 40:24 41:3,4,8 49:5 56:23 99:14 101:4 108:22 dealerships 59:2 dealings 106:14 Deborah 75:15 Debra 75:10 113:6	decade 77:12 decades 87:7 December 1:6 3:3 115:13 decent 63:18 decide 25:6 36:24 39:9 decided 25:17,19 81:9 93:15 decides 84:11 decision 4:3 14:23 20:2 51:20 57:13 88:11 110:9 111:18 decisions 105:12 Declaration 65:6 declare 63:20 decrease 46:14 69:23 deep 50:9 103:11 deeply 72:13 75:20 deer 94:14 definitely 91:10 defoliate 94:20 deforested 64:12 degree 45:19,19 52:21 62:6 79:25 deliver 106:20 demand 73:17,18 73:20 74:2 105:9 106:22 demanded 78:20 demonstrate 40:13 deny 17:4 41:5 46:1 69:12 71:14 79:6 department 2:16 11:10 58:7 105:23 departments 85:25 Deposition	111:22 deprived 56:10 DEPUTY 2:22 described 115:10 deserve 70:15 86:6 deserves 85:19 designed 80:9 destroyed 73:7 76:4 102:18 determining 71:9 devalue 8:17 devastated 56:21 57:7 devastating 83:10 developers 106:12 development 2:16 33:12,16 33:20 35:14 70:10 77:12,20 77:21,21 85:10 86:18 91:25 105:19,24 Diane 14:2,6 112:7 difference 44:4 86:14 88:7 different 80:3 81:14 85:15 dig 93:24 diligence 51:18 dime 37:2,4 47:1 direct 1:13 3:10 6:20 92:7 105:16 directly 7:19 25:8 92:4 director 62:19 88:19 91:22 104:19 dirt 50:5,6,11 disappear 49:21 disaster 103:3 disastrous 83:12	discomfort 105:7 discourage 48:20 discussing 104:25 dispensation 83:15 disruption 46:17 dissolve 63:14 distance 10:16 district 12:14 85:24 diversify 26:7,8 djlinton@char... 2:8 doctors 9:3 document 63:11 64:6 70:5 documents 63:8 65:4 doing 9:19 10:1 33:20,21 47:12 96:10,11 101:23 102:7 dollar 96:13,14 dollars 31:7 46:23 58:23 77:13 85:23 domain 15:3 16:20,23 21:9 22:16 24:25 25:4 29:9 35:8 35:21 36:16 37:3 60:22 64:17 69:14 75:23 76:2 78:20,25 80:20 83:11,22,25 84:7,18 95:9 domestic 106:8 Don 12:3,7,13 29:1 33:17 42:13 112:6 Donald 34:24 35:4 112:16 donate 6:14 door 6:13 88:1	89:20 doors 87:6 doubt 9:21 Doug 5:6 DOUGLAS 2:11 Dover 91:19 downstate 23:16 26:5 drainage 46:6 72:24 drains 72:14 dreams 55:13 57:12 driven 17:20 driver's 60:20 driving 18:3 33:20 drop 31:12 39:23 92:25 95:7 103:19 dropping 103:20 drove 44:21 drug 73:2 due 29:1 38:15 46:16 48:1 51:18 92:19 dust 94:9 duster 94:9 duty 26:19 Dwight 108:8,12 113:18
<hr/> E <hr/>				
E 2:1,1 112:1 E-S 68:2 EA-2016-0358 1:11 3:13 eagles 95:3 earlier 19:2 53:25 early 66:12 earn 77:22 earth 56:6 63:16 ease 67:24 easement 30:24 47:10 109:2				

easements 31:7 35:11 46:13 47:13 64:13	18:19 25:18 39:6,20 42:8,10 48:10,18 58:11 59:13,17 66:3 66:19 81:4 109:1,8 110:14 111:1	emit 28:12 emotion 52:17 emotional 93:7 employed 26:25 27:1,3 72:25 employees 8:4 9:6 18:21 47:9 58:18	enhance 88:11 enjoy 17:25 57:15 enormous 39:4 78:12,16 enormously 8:18 9:23 enrich 88:2 Enron 76:16 ensure 70:21 entered 98:13 entire 7:15 8:10 24:20 39:16 64:23 66:2 entitle 63:18 entity 29:8,8 entrepreneurs... 92:1	estimates 105:24 106:7 et 3:21 ethical 41:2 ethics 77:10 evaluated 78:11 evening 3:3,16 3:19 12:13 13:22 39:12 53:10 69:8 104:16,17 evening's 5:20 events 63:13 eventually 39:25 87:7 everybody 5:8 6:3 11:14 25:16 26:9 36:20 80:10 81:18 85:19 87:15 96:21 99:18
east 2:12 23:18 79:21,22 98:19 eastern 44:2 52:2 eat 16:21 66:4 economic 2:16 13:7,14 26:6 33:11,16 35:14 37:7 40:14 67:15 78:22 85:8,9 86:18 87:16,22 88:19 91:25 105:22 105:23 economics 52:21 76:14 economies 67:17 106:25 economy 26:8 66:2 86:13,14 Ed 68:4 educated 62:2 education 87:18 Edward 68:9 113:3 effect 70:1 102:5 effected 83:6 effects 18:11,14 53:13 64:11 71:9 105:3 effort 72:16 85:13 eight 46:18 77:14 106:4 eighth 111:12 either 6:11 16:6 28:1,14 37:1 49:14 89:4 elected 74:11 79:24 105:8 election 74:12 electric 2:10 5:5	electrical 23:23 24:7 26:2 32:4 58:6 102:24 Electricfence.c... 28:11 electricity 18:17 18:25 25:10,14 33:13 40:1 43:21 56:10 64:24 65:20,21 65:24 66:16 73:20 74:2 81:17,18,25 105:9 electrolysis 102:8 electromagnetic 28:13 electrostatic 48:19 eliminate 94:16 Elmira 72:20 eloquent 111:15 emergency 76:10 85:24 EMFs 28:14 Emily 42:19,23 112:19 eminent 15:3 16:20,23 21:9 22:16 24:25 25:4 29:9 35:8 35:21 36:16 37:3 60:22 64:17 69:14 75:23 76:2 78:20,25 80:20 83:11,22,25 84:7,18 95:9 emissions 77:24	energy 22:14 25:17,23 38:14 38:21 39:8 44:20,24,25 52:4 53:17 54:3 56:14,18,20 59:16 66:3,3 69:10 71:15 76:14,18,18 77:1,5,17,19,20 77:25 78:7,10 78:13,18 84:11 86:22,24 89:1,6 89:13,14 91:2 93:21 97:15 104:19,24 106:20 107:9 107:11,14,16 107:19 108:3,3 Energy's 106:13 enforce 84:10 enforcement 70:19 engineer 33:11 engineered 110:22 engineering 33:8 engineers 16:14 34:15	environment 54:3,6,19 56:18 70:14,16,22 71:2 77:18 78:1 78:6 environmental 38:3 58:8 environmental... 16:14 envision 57:9 equal 63:17 equate 40:4 equates 40:9 equipment 46:18 54:1,4,8 59:1 erect 73:6 erode 50:2 76:11 98:20 eroded 50:4 eroding 50:1 erosion 46:6,17 err 109:13 especially 28:15 essentially 76:3 established 6:2 estimate 77:7 estimated 77:4	evidence 6:18 25:10 82:3,10 94:3 evidentiary 5:13 6:19 evil 15:19 exact 10:15 examine 19:13 example 33:17 106:17 excited 13:1 excitement 55:25 Excuse 11:7 54:12 107:7 executive 88:19 91:22 exercising 24:22 exhibit 41:11,13 50:15,16,20 51:2,4 113:21 113:23,24,25 114:1,2,3,4,5 Exhibits 75:8 114:8 exist 70:7

<p>existing 21:1 exists 64:22 70:8 expanding 89:4 expansion 11:5 expect 48:14 expectations 46:2 expected 44:10 44:11 expense 29:20 56:12 expensive 78:9 98:9 experience 67:20 89:3,6 98:10 103:20 105:2 108:2 experienced 34:14 experiences 46:2 80:3 experimental 28:25 expertise 107:25 expired 6:10 explained 7:22 99:2 explode 109:20 exposed 50:5,7 exposure 70:5 express 1:11 2:2 3:7 4:17 23:11 28:1,2,8 30:3 30:19 38:21 45:22 55:9 59:20 69:11,19 71:15 83:4,7,24 84:6,9 93:3 105:15,24 106:10,19 107:3,4 108:24 110:2 Express's 5:15 extra 74:8 eyes 81:19 eyesore 40:21</p>	<p style="text-align: center;">F</p> <p>F-R-A-N-C-K-... 23:6 FAA 11:19 fabulous 96:9 face 4:6 faced 16:5 faces 87:15 facilities 66:7 70:20 facility 47:23 fact 8:18 10:17 43:23 77:22 84:5 86:20 98:14 99:19 100:1 106:15 106:16 factor 89:6,7 factored 40:6 fair 44:15 106:13 106:17 fairly 18:20 faith-based 70:19 fallacy 73:25 74:5 fallen 73:15 falling 73:20 familiar 63:12 64:7 79:22 families 28:24 31:8 54:22 70:1 70:3,11 71:6,12 71:17 84:4 87:19 88:8,12 family 21:5,10 28:24 30:18,21 30:25 31:3 42:14,15 44:10 45:21,21 52:20 53:2 57:2 60:8 62:5,17 70:24 76:7 93:13 111:3 far 11:10 23:12 29:12 39:5</p>	<p>78:10 84:22 103:14 farm 15:1 17:14 30:21,24 38:12 42:1 44:8,10,13 44:14 45:21,23 53:20,21 54:1 55:12,22 56:1 60:14,15 62:3,4 62:5,17,17 63:2 65:17 66:17 69:17,24 76:6 77:23 83:2 96:3 96:7 97:20,21 100:2 110:11 farmer 7:18 51:22 72:9,13 74:22 75:6 96:1 farmers 9:21 10:2 18:8,19 69:16 72:11 80:11 93:5 99:22 100:25 104:22 111:3 farmers' 97:24 99:24 farming 19:15 22:6 35:17,17 52:24 69:16 94:12 96:6 100:1 farmland 16:18 farms 16:10 18:5 56:16 70:23 76:8,21,25 101:4,5 farther 7:24,25 fast 34:10 fate 30:2 father 41:2 father's 22:13 father-in-law 93:17 fathers 71:8 favor 15:24,24 16:17 68:12,19</p>	<p>81:22 99:10,12 fears 3:21 federal 58:10 feeds 22:10 feel 9:21 16:11 16:12 28:5 29:7 40:25 59:14 92:6 97:9,20 106:12 109:10 109:24 110:12 110:16 feet 14:21 48:4,7 48:8 89:9 108:18 fell 61:22 Fellow 77:8 fellows 103:22 felt 97:10 fence 9:15,15 42:10 47:10,15 48:10 81:6 fences 42:8 46:8 47:5 66:19 fencing 48:11 Fenton 2:7 fertilizer 36:15 54:6 field 50:1 73:3 78:15 fields 28:13 48:18,18 fifth 60:14 fight 36:17,18 fighting 13:6,7,8 16:9 72:11 File 1:10 3:13 filed 51:2 final 6:22 finally 49:20 55:25 95:2 finance 62:18 finances 62:20 financial 31:10 31:15 financially 19:5 77:2</p>	<p>find 16:4 24:18 70:7 94:4 finding 57:1 fine 43:16 87:25 99:3 finished 6:9 12:18 14:16 fire 85:25 firm 33:8 66:21 first 6:5,25 15:18 22:10 28:4 34:2 34:9 46:10 47:25 51:24 56:22 61:10,25 63:11,11 65:20 65:25 81:7 97:12 99:14 101:10 106:4 fishing 17:24 five 4:1 6:6 34:4 53:4 61:18 63:3 63:7 91:7,8 99:10 fix 110:20 fixed 26:10 fixing 47:10 flashing 11:25 fleet 58:7,8,24 59:6 flew 9:16 fly 8:9 9:17 10:25 11:16 94:10 Foley 59:1 folks 19:24 105:4 follow 84:11 following 45:24 food 14:25 55:12 59:11 66:6,6 100:2 Foods 36:5 foot 98:21 footsteps 21:10 for-profit 22:16 44:6 51:25 69:10 71:13 80:5,6,8,11,13</p>
---	--	--	--	--

80:16 forbid 22:13 force 93:17 forced 31:10 Ford 9:4 foreign 15:7,8,9 foreman 101:7,8 101:9,14 foremost 61:25 forever 14:24 16:10 80:22 94:15 form 67:16 former 62:18 85:10 forms 66:16 93:21 forth 73:23 Fortunately 105:8 fortune 36:18 forward 4:7 5:23 7:6 26:2 55:17 68:5 105:14 foster 63:4 found 17:13 19:12,17 28:18 28:20 50:8 94:4 99:13 foundation 55:21 107:15,17,18 four 10:23 45:22 73:16 79:24 86:2 fourth 62:5 fourth-generat... 69:15 Francisco 81:15 Francken 23:1,5 26:24 112:11 frankly 56:1 Fred 77:7 free 83:23 friend 73:12 friends 26:9 65:23	front 53:7 frustration 69:20 fry 95:4 fuel 48:19 59:8 fully 76:13 fund 13:8 27:3,5 fundamental 57:5 79:5 funded 77:2 107:13,14 funny 80:24 further 13:14 31:11 106:2 Furthermore 53:17 future 34:20 55:13,18 57:10 57:13 72:18 78:4 87:5 88:8 93:14	72:18 83:16 88:8 93:14 96:3 gentleman 9:16 63:22 102:14 gentlemen 61:10 65:1 George 63:25 geothermal 93:22 getting 66:9 gigawatts 39:5 give 5:11,17 6:3,8 22:13 49:2 61:18 99:17,18 103:23 given 4:14,14 14:16 48:19 74:4 83:25 101:2 110:16 gives 49:4 107:1 giving 7:14 35:8 49:2 73:16 104:4 glasses 45:13 go 7:13 9:24 10:23 11:24 12:11 14:10 15:21 17:12 20:11 21:24 23:9 24:5 25:5 26:12 27:22 30:13 32:2 33:5 35:22 37:24 41:21,25 43:1,6 44:9,13 45:2,12 45:23 50:3 51:16 52:6 53:24 54:3,19 55:6 58:3 60:6 60:13 61:9 63:2 64:19 67:11 69:5 71:23 72:8 75:19 79:19 80:23 81:17 82:24 85:6 90:5 90:22 91:20	92:17 93:24 94:18 95:6,7,21 96:3 97:6 100:20 101:15 102:19,25 103:10 104:15 108:15 110:17 goal 21:5 goals 24:1 God 22:12 63:18 goes 9:10 10:19 36:16 82:4 going 5:22 9:8 11:19 21:6 24:2 24:4 25:3,6,8 25:11 26:13 29:2,3 35:16,19 36:12,13,13,14 36:20 43:17,25 44:1 47:20 49:19,19 50:10 53:13,23,24 54:7,16,19 55:17 61:11,17 66:21 73:14 80:21,22,25 82:6 86:23 87:7 87:8,8,25 91:6 91:6 92:23 93:1 93:24 94:8,10 94:13,16,17,18 94:19 95:4 97:25 99:17 100:22,25 102:22 103:2 103:15,17,18 110:9,14 golden 16:25 good 3:2,19 10:22 16:2,22 18:20 22:25 23:15 32:18 34:12 35:13,15 36:3 40:24 41:2 41:3,4,8 43:22 48:22 54:2,6,18	54:18 58:15,19 59:15 68:17 92:19,21 93:16 95:10 96:16 97:9 99:14 104:16 106:10 106:12 goods 67:17 gotten 18:20,23 govern 11:20 governed 11:9 government 70:20 106:14 governmental 13:9 GPS 35:17 48:13 54:4,8 94:12 grace 74:11 96:23 97:2 113:15 graduate 77:8 graduated 52:21 80:1 109:22 grain 1:10 2:2 3:7 4:17 5:15 17:15 18:25 19:3 20:16 21:13 23:11 27:10 28:2,8 30:3,19 38:4,6 38:14,21 39:9 39:17 40:2,14 40:23 41:5 45:22 51:22 55:9 59:13,19 61:24 62:25 66:17 68:12 69:10,18 71:15 83:3,7,24 84:6 84:8 93:2 105:15,24 106:2,10,19 107:3,4 110:1 grandchild 34:2 34:3 grandchildren
--	--	---	---	---

G

G-A-M-E-S

G-A-T-R-E-L

G-R-I-M-E-S

<p>15:15,17 18:15 20:4 34:5 60:16 63:3,4 86:2 93:19 grandchildren's 28:7 grandkids 53:4 85:18 grandmother 18:10 grandparents 71:8 granting 24:25 grass 48:9 Graves 78:16 gray 81:6 graze 42:9 grazing 48:20 great 20:1 34:20 60:10 103:25 greater 93:16 95:10 greatly 110:10 greed 29:20 green 36:15 61:21 Greeting 80:5 grew 26:9 30:22 62:15 79:21 105:9 grid 23:23 24:7 26:2 39:1 101:13,23 102:1 Grimes 57:21,25 58:5 112:23 gross 106:8 ground 6:2 30:24 43:7 44:7,8 50:10 62:4 72:23 93:8,18 94:21 98:22 101:18,22 group 16:16 28:25 35:9 81:24 88:9</p>	<p>grow 110:11 growing 26:5 60:17 90:9 106:24 grown 55:10,22 growth 87:16,23 guess 15:12 28:4 36:22,25 47:20 86:22 90:25 108:20 109:22 109:24 guided 70:12 gutters 48:7 guys 10:8 13:25 32:15 34:19 43:2 60:7,22 80:2 90:6,10 95:22 108:20 110:25</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">H</p> <hr/> <p>H-A-R-P-E-R 108:12 H-E-I-L 65:14 H-U-N-T 27:18 60:3 95:18 habitat 94:17 hair 67:23 102:3 half 8:24 17:14 20:20 56:21 77:13 86:12 Hall 1:19 3:16,19 10:10,17 11:6 22:20 32:22 49:8,12 50:12 57:19 65:2,8 67:2 74:13,19 75:2,7 79:8 88:16,21 89:3 89:17 91:12 100:6 104:5 107:7,9,13,16 107:21 108:6 111:5,12 Hallmark 80:5 hand 22:10 95:25</p>	<p>115:13 handle 50:15,25 hands 30:2 happen 9:7 11:1 24:4 31:13 37:6 37:8,14 80:25 87:7 109:15 110:19 happened 10:13 happening 29:13 happens 14:25 25:1 42:3,3 54:3 88:7 happy 13:23 16:2 16:3,4 65:6 99:6 hard 24:19 31:8 33:25 57:11 70:5,6 73:15 85:21 103:12 Harden 2:3 4:19 4:19 hardship 18:9 harm 28:21 harmful 52:19 71:9 Harper 108:8,12 113:18 Harvey 6:25 7:1 Hathaway 76:17 77:15 Hathaways' 77:4 haul 50:11 hawks 94:25 head 85:7 health 18:11,13 25:11 28:9,16 28:19 29:23 42:7 53:13,14 55:19 62:13 63:5 64:11 69:25 71:6,11 72:17 102:12 health-wise 70:3 Healy 2:11,11 5:6,6</p>	<p>hear 19:14 24:14 30:17 32:7 61:11 heard 18:1 19:1 19:20,21 32:8 48:11 61:12 82:2 96:11 97:16,24 98:1,2 100:21 108:21 hearing 1:5 3:6 3:16 4:8 5:10 5:12,14,20 6:3 6:5,19 7:3 23:17 39:11 86:19 96:21 105:4 111:13 115:8 hearings 5:16 19:25 111:10 111:15,17 heartbreaking 57:9 height 48:8 Heil 65:10,14 113:1 held 29:18 115:9 helicopter 47:11 47:11,13,17,21 Hell 47:19 help 6:7 13:13 31:10 33:14 44:11,11,15 47:1 88:2 91:10 109:3 helpful 4:5 107:1 helping 57:6 59:18 herbicides 46:23 54:5 hereunto 115:12 heritage 91:23 high 1:12 3:10 28:12 43:13 48:4,6,7,9 78:2 high-voltage 28:12,19,21</p>	<p>55:14 68:13 70:6 71:4,10 81:2 higher 43:23 77:24 highway 52:14 70:25 71:1 highways 89:13 hiking 17:24 Hmmmm 73:19 hog 36:19,22 hogs 36:5 holding 5:12 27:24 93:25 home 28:6,7 29:7 29:9 30:22 31:1 31:3 36:2 53:2 53:6 54:19 55:17,24 60:17 70:16 homeowners 72:11 homes 31:9 66:5 102:5 homesteaded 22:5 hometowns 54:14 honesty 28:10,22 hooked 65:22 hope 56:8 63:2 91:10 107:1 hopefully 13:19 88:25 hopes 57:6 hoping 72:11,17 99:21 hotels 59:11 hours 34:6,7 67:20 house 12:16 31:10 36:7,19 36:19,22,25 37:1 41:24 53:25 56:3 90:8 91:5 97:12</p>
--	--	---	---	--

108:18 households 40:4 huge 11:4 44:4 86:14 93:25 human 4:6 53:13 63:13 humanity 55:15 hundred 28:6 31:3 hundreds 84:3 84:14 85:22 Hunt 27:14,18 59:24 60:3 95:14,18 112:12,24 113:14 hunting 17:24 94:14 Hurlbert 78:15 husband 7:18 8:1 22:3 43:5 69:9 69:15 husbandry 45:20 Hutchinson 104:14,20 hydrogen 93:22	59:19 67:15 83:9 105:11 impartial 6:18 impeding 9:14 impel 63:20 implemented 25:20 implementing 48:13 implications 28:23 109:9 implore 29:21 54:13 importance 56:9 87:17 important 3:22 34:9 51:20 56:5 58:19 61:15 78:19 86:4,5,17 87:2,4,22 88:10 89:16 97:22 100:2 105:13 impressed 19:23 97:14 improve 24:1 26:15 improved 24:7 improvements 29:10 improving 72:17 inappropriate 84:18 inches 50:9 include 51:2 included 69:18 92:1 includes 91:24 including 24:10 46:5 70:16 80:11 income 32:12 77:6,19 106:8 incomes 26:10 increase 20:22 33:13 62:24 69:25 73:15,17	105:5 106:1,7,8 increased 78:22 78:23 105:10 110:18 increases 13:10 Independence 65:6 Indiana 23:13,17 23:18 80:4 indicated 50:14 50:16 indirect 105:16 individual 44:23 individuals 15:3 industrial 76:15 76:15 78:5 industries 59:12 99:23 industry 24:21 32:6 information 5:11 48:11 111:16 infrastructure 23:23 24:2,7 26:3,12,16 66:22 78:7 79:2 81:20 inheritance 22:13 initiated 76:15 inject 39:1 injured 47:15 insightful 111:16 insignificant 39:22 instance 39:23 54:15 66:11 instances 110:24 insurance 98:3,5 98:8 integrity 109:4 109:14 intends 93:18 intent 8:10 Interconnection 1:14 3:12	interest 18:24 27:9 38:16 107:5 interested 19:13 49:3 56:17 interests 84:21 interfere 25:8 Internet 28:18 54:11,12 interruption 5:10 intrinsic 92:2 introduced 46:20 introduction 46:7 invest 8:7 55:18 invested 9:8 58:23 72:16 investment 8:11 52:12 77:11,16 83:14 investments 56:13 investors 31:6,12 35:9 83:13 involved 20:17 32:19 41:4 61:20 69:16 73:17 101:6 Island 81:14 issue 20:17 24:17 89:10,16 109:12 issued 98:8 issues 4:5,6 28:19 47:22 48:3 104:24 110:12 110:18 111:3 item 93:15 items 63:1	jeans 62:3 Jeff 86:20 Jefferson 2:18,23 54:16 jeopardy 71:12 Jim 100:10 108:22 Joan 92:10,14 113:13 job 19:4 33:9 40:19 90:24 101:9,13 106:1 jobs 16:8,8,9 18:24 19:6,7 23:21 32:12,17 34:12 36:12 40:9,10,11,17 56:12 67:16 68:16,17 87:1 105:16,25 Joe 12:3,7,13 29:1 33:17 42:13 112:6 John 4:10 22:21 100:9,9 Joint 2:9 5:4 Josh 78:15 Joshua 2:3 4:19 joshua.harden... 2:3 Joyce 7:5,5,10 112:5 judge 1:18 3:2,15 4:16,20,22 5:1 5:4,7 7:8,11,13 10:9 12:3,5,9 12:11 14:1,4,8 14:10 17:5,7,12 20:6,9,11 21:15 21:17,21,24 22:19,21,25 23:3,7,9 25:5 26:23 27:13,16 27:19,22 30:5,8 30:11,13 31:17 31:20,24 32:2
I				
Ian 82:16,20 113:8 IBEW 67:12 idea 16:2 21:4 38:8 identification 41:13 75:9 III 64:1 ill-effects 70:3 Illinois 23:8,12 23:16 26:5 74:18 101:10 imagine 17:20 39:14 immediately 98:25 impact 25:12 39:11 56:15				
			J	
			James 100:12,17 113:16 January 34:4 65:23	

32:21,23,25 33:3,5 34:22,24 35:2 37:15,18 37:22,24 41:10 41:12,14,16,19 41:21 42:18,21 42:24 43:1 45:3 45:5,9,12 49:7 50:13,25 51:1,5 51:8,10,14,16 54:23 55:1,4,6 57:20,23 58:1,3 59:23 60:1,4,6 61:1,3,7,9 65:10,12,15 67:1,3,6,9,11 68:1,5,7,10,20 68:23 69:2,5 71:19,23 72:1,5 72:8 75:10,13 75:17,19 79:9 79:12,16,19 82:15,18,22,24 84:23,25 85:3,6 88:15 89:19,21 89:24 90:2,5,13 90:17,20,22 91:13,15,18,20 92:9,12,15,17 95:14,16,19,21 96:22,25 97:3,6 100:8,13,15,18 100:20 104:6,9 104:12,15 107:6 108:8,10 108:13,15 111:6,20 114:8 Julia 55:3 Julie 54:24 112:22 July 28:17 jury 93:6 justified 64:17 64:25 justify 39:10	<hr/> K <hr/> K-H-A-K-O-V... 104:11 K-I-S-S-E-R 55:3 K-L-E-E-M-A-N 51:13 K-R-E-Y-L-I-... 61:6 K.T 2:3 Kaltenberger 1:24 115:4,20 Kansas 8:9 19:21 23:12 33:4,9 39:1 52:2 54:15 56:16 58:2,12 62:8 81:4 95:6 98:11,24 104:13,14,20 105:5,15,17,21 107:20 108:2,5 Kansas' 44:24 Kansas's 105:2 Kathleen 68:21 68:25 113:4 KCP&L 103:18 103:20 keep 6:7 21:4,5 66:17 72:18 80:19 109:4 keeps 9:9 Kenney 1:20 3:17 4:9 11:7 11:20 12:1 13:24 Kentucky 95:6 Kepper 51:8,12 112:21 kept 98:16 Keystone 101:8 Khakova 104:7 104:11,18 113:17 kid 20:16 53:8 kids 12:21 21:11 34:4,11,12	43:11 51:21 53:4 60:17 85:18 87:16 93:14 kind 47:12 68:16 87:20 kinds 36:13 king 22:10,12 63:25 Kings 22:10 Kirksville 75:18 Kisser 54:24 55:3 112:22 kitchen 29:10 Kleeman 51:8,12 112:21 Kline 33:7,21 34:16 knocking 87:8,9 know 7:5 8:1,19 9:18,25 10:2,3 10:12,15,17 11:24 16:12,18 18:7,10,13,21 18:23 20:1 23:19 25:2,4,7 26:1 28:10,22 31:1,13 32:8 34:9 35:23 37:8 37:10 42:6 43:13,14,14,16 43:17 44:18 46:15 47:12,18 47:19 50:15 51:23 52:6 53:12,12 60:8 61:11,12,13 62:21,22 68:15 68:16 87:3 88:5 93:19 95:22 100:23 102:9 102:10,14 109:4,12 known 48:16 knows 109:14 Kreyling 61:1,5	112:25 <hr/> L <hr/> L 2:11 lab 108:1 lack 38:15 92:19 ladies 86:20 laid 102:15,16 land 11:15 14:22 14:22 15:3,20 15:25 16:6 18:7 19:6 21:7,12 25:3 38:12 40:18 46:21 47:3 52:7,7 53:23,24,25 55:10,11,13,16 55:16,20 56:2,3 56:9,15 57:15 66:2 72:14 76:2 93:4,13 94:1 95:11 96:8,8 97:22 105:19 108:17 110:15 landed 47:11 landowner 15:5 49:9 83:22 95:11 landowners 2:5 5:2 29:25 39:11 40:24 41:1,8 57:14 64:23 83:6,9,18 93:5 104:22 105:17 106:14,18 landowners' 21:8 40:17 68:15 106:15 landscape 17:19 17:23 20:3 64:11 landscapes 92:2 large 16:16 24:12 24:20 25:24 87:23 largest 16:13	45:24 52:1 58:11 94:5 108:23 laryngitis 97:8 lasting 86:14 late 51:2 latest 76:9 77:11 laugh 78:16 law 1:18 2:11 3:15 25:1,5 52:22 70:19 78:20 Lawrence 104:13 laws 60:20 63:17 lawyers 9:3 lay 102:20 laying 82:12 101:16,22 104:1 leaders 20:16 leadership 4:13 leak 110:22 learned 50:8 70:12,13 leave 14:18 65:4 65:7,8 93:18 Lee's 54:15 left 47:13 48:25 50:22 76:11 Legal 77:9 legendary 39:4 legislature 12:23 legislatures 104:23 legitimate 84:3 let's 4:16 35:21 49:16 52:2 60:24 71:23 letter 73:13,14 letters 52:25 letting 59:21 88:2 100:11 leukemia 28:15 67:22 levels 28:12 56:25 78:2
---	--	--	--	---

levy 62:23	54:21 56:22	listed 5:22 54:12	108:14	lot 4:4 8:2 9:20
liaison 33:7	57:2 59:14,20	78:11	lived 8:9 19:22	10:6 20:18 21:2
license 60:20	64:9,18,19	listen 14:17	34:6 55:23	21:11 23:15
life 16:8 20:4,4	66:11 67:13	20:13 43:4	livelihood 110:10	25:14 26:6
21:5 36:3 55:10	68:12 69:10	45:16 61:14	lives 33:18 44:12	33:14 39:17
55:24 56:4	71:15 72:20,21	71:16	livestock 48:16	40:18 52:9
57:10,10 70:12	72:21 73:1,11	listened 35:12	51:22 53:14	53:18 68:18
77:10 88:6	75:24 80:7,23	90:25	55:11 70:4	72:16 76:21
101:6 106:6	81:22,23,24	listening 19:24	living 18:6 19:15	81:11 87:6,25
lifelong 45:18	82:1,9 84:10,21	21:14 95:23	23:16 70:15	90:25 95:3
lifestyles 86:5	90:6 93:23 94:6	litigation 93:6	94:3,7 101:23	100:21 101:2,6
lifetime 32:15	96:3 97:10,13	little 20:19 34:7	102:12	101:13 102:2
light 11:25 66:4	98:11 99:7,24	53:5 61:17 74:8	LLC 1:11 2:2,6	103:2,23,24
98:11,24	100:24 102:2	74:12 84:1	2:11 3:7 4:18	lots 9:15 80:3
106:13	102:15 103:24	85:15 95:8 99:9	local 1:5 3:5 29:5	82:10 91:1
lights 65:25	106:20 107:22	99:16 108:17	39:1 59:5,11	Louis 16:16
limited 6:6	107:24 108:16	109:5 110:10	66:8 67:17 79:2	62:15
Linda 17:5,9	108:21 109:1,1	110:20	83:5 104:22	Louisville 34:6
112:8	109:8,11	live 5:25 7:11	106:24 111:13	love 15:16,18,20
line 1:11,13,14	110:14 111:1,4	12:9 14:8,23	locally 58:24	17:23 18:1
2:2 3:7,11,13	Line's 18:17	17:10 19:20	located 89:11	21:12 34:16
4:18 5:17 7:20	38:25 79:6	21:21 23:7	long 18:21 34:5	62:4 96:7
7:21 8:23 10:11	lineman 67:13	27:19 29:3	81:14 87:4	low 9:17 89:14
10:19 13:2,16	linemen 16:14	30:11,15 31:24	long-term 72:15	98:16
15:6,11,16,21	lines 10:21,22	31:25 32:3,5,10	76:7	low-cost 59:16
15:23,25 16:2	11:11 17:22	32:11 33:3 34:4	longer 11:18	106:22
16:17,19,21,22	28:12,14,20,22	35:5,15,24,24	14:25 34:7 57:2	lower 33:14
16:25,25 17:4	28:23 31:11	35:25 36:24	99:8	lowering 26:16
18:12 20:20,24	32:6 42:2 48:15	37:1,22 41:19	look 4:7 10:14	luck 9:11
20:25 22:3,8	55:14 56:24	42:1,16,24 43:5	53:7 54:13,20	
24:11 25:2 28:5	66:1,8,8,9	45:9 51:14 53:4	55:17 87:4,17	<hr/> M <hr/>
28:5,9,25 29:2	67:21 68:13	55:4 58:1 60:4	87:22 88:4 91:9	M-A-A-S-D-A-...
29:3 30:20,20	71:4 73:6,21	60:16 61:7 62:3	96:18	90:19
31:2,5,9 32:15	74:5 81:3 82:3	62:5 65:15,16	looked 43:20	M-C-G-A-U-G...
32:16 35:20	94:3,11,18 98:3	67:9 68:10 69:2	49:8 107:23	12:8
38:11,17 39:13	98:15 101:13	69:3 70:14,25	looking 17:13	M-E-T-Z 85:2
40:23 41:23,25	101:16 102:22	71:18 72:5,6,10	26:7 70:4	Maasdam 90:14
42:4,12 43:6,9	105:2 108:24	75:17 79:16,17	looks 7:24 18:4	90:19 113:11
43:11,13 44:8	109:4	80:15 82:22	68:2	machinery 48:4
44:18 45:22	lining 29:18	85:3,4,19 90:2	Los 82:6	Macon 33:8
46:3 47:24,25	link 81:6	90:20 91:18	lose 54:4 56:12	Madison 2:17
48:5,16,20,21	linked 28:15	92:15 95:19	loses 36:18	magnetic 48:18
48:22 49:1,10	Linton 2:6,6 5:3	97:3,4 100:18	losing 19:9	magnetized
51:25 52:2,13	5:3 26:24 27:2	100:19,23	loss 46:8 64:11	101:20,21
52:19 53:6,9,11	27:5,7,9,12	101:1 103:24	69:21,24	magnitude 18:12
53:22 54:8,17	list 111:8	104:12 108:13	lost 66:20	28:11 67:15

70:8 111:1 mail 98:25 main 23:21 35:6 35:7 maintain 1:12 3:10 23:24 58:21 78:9 94:17 maintaining 67:21 maintenance 59:6,9 majority 26:20 62:22 making 4:2 14:22 39:17 40:19 man 33:18 39:12 70:23 73:3 103:14 man's 38:8 73:3 Manage 1:12 3:9 manager 62:9 mandate 39:7 mankind 63:19 manner 60:12 map 10:15 17:14 mar 69:22 March 5:14 marked 41:13 75:8 markers 52:9 market 8:6 marketing 109:23 markets 56:16 marred 17:21 Marsha 91:13,17 113:12 Marshall 101:10 massive 20:23 38:10 71:3 master's 45:19 62:7 materialize 39:21 math 99:13 Matt 31:18,22	112:14 matter 1:10 3:6 43:23 56:24 60:11 100:1 maximizing 76:6 mayor 85:11 Maywood-Mo... 1:14 3:12 McClellan 23:8 McGaugh 12:3,7 12:13 29:1 112:6 mean 18:15 61:23,23 94:15 109:17,21 110:13 meaning 15:13 means 11:14 meant 90:10 93:13 measures 102:10 mechanized 101:19 median 52:14 medical 66:7 70:20 meet 74:2 meeting 7:21 10:13 19:2 56:22 73:9 97:16 meetings 14:13 27:25 74:25 97:19 megawatts 25:22 38:22,23,23 39:24,24 member 12:25 18:18 62:5,9,12 88:24 members 5:18 22:1 27:23 30:1 37:25 45:14 55:7 69:6 83:3 membership 92:5	mention 22:9 98:2 mere 92:25 message 16:24 met 99:2 meter 42:11 Metz 84:23 85:2 113:9 Mexican 62:19 Mexico 21:22 62:13 Michael 1:18 3:14 mid-'50s 66:12 Mid-American 76:18,18 77:5 middle 60:23 85:16 Midwest 23:14 midwestern 23:19 62:8 mile 17:14 20:20 28:13 41:24 43:5 45:24 48:24 53:6,21 53:24 69:19 90:7 miles 10:23 17:10 34:4 53:4 79:21 79:21,22 84:14 96:18 97:4 101:11 102:16 108:17 million 24:6 40:3 93:4,7 103:16 105:18,20 106:3,8,9,23 millions 31:6 58:23 mind 97:15 minds 67:24 mine 29:5 73:12 mineral 81:5 mines 81:16,16 Minneapolis 80:7	Minnesota 80:7 minute 35:21 minutes 6:6 61:18 63:7 71:21 MISO 39:24 mission 77:9 92:1 92:5 Missouri 1:1,7 2:7,9,13,16,18 2:23 3:4,4 4:13 5:4 7:12 8:10 12:10,16 13:5 13:15,20 14:14 17:21 21:22 22:15 24:9 25:12,17,24,25 26:21 27:20 29:22,23,24 31:15 32:1,4 34:17 37:23 38:20,21 39:10 39:25 40:10 41:7 43:20 44:2 44:17,21 45:10 45:20 52:21 58:13,14,14,19 58:24 59:15,15 59:19 62:14 63:23 64:3,16 64:21 65:16,22 67:10 68:16 69:4,12,16,17 70:11,18 72:7 72:20 74:1,5,7 74:9 75:18,21 79:18 80:1 82:23 84:4,16 84:20 85:5 86:22 87:5,24 90:3,21 91:19 92:16,20,22,25 93:17,20 94:14 94:22 95:7 97:5 99:24 100:19 105:22 106:4	106:11 107:3 108:14 109:23 115:5,21 Missouri's 40:1 Missourians 24:5 78:19 84:2 mitigate 73:1 78:3 mitigation 49:9 mitigations 58:9 mixing 103:10,12 Moberly 39:11 mom 20:21 65:21 mom's 20:18 moment 87:22 monetary 93:15 money 9:8 15:18 15:19 29:19,19 32:17 36:14 43:8 52:10,11 53:19 72:16 77:18 86:4 87:21 93:10 95:25 96:5 monitor 46:11,13 46:15 Monroe 22:4 62:10,18 months 41:6 103:4 monumental 39:14 MOPAC 88:25 MoPEP 12:25 13:2 morning 53:9 motels 59:11 mother 18:10 31:4 mother's 30:22 mothers 71:7 Motor 80:8 move 31:9 39:14 78:17 80:16 105:14 moved 7:24 8:10
---	--	---	---	--

<p>12:18 17:18 64:20 91:5 movement 52:5 53:17 moving 89:10 mud 73:3 mulling 51:19 multiple 41:25 municipal 2:9 5:5 92:23 municipalities 84:5,13,17 muskets 63:24 mutually 104:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">N</p> <p>N 2:1 112:1 Naboth 22:11,12 Naboth's 22:11 name 3:14 5:23 5:25 6:25 7:8,9 12:5,6,13 14:4 14:5,6 17:7,8 20:9,12,15 21:17,18 23:3,4 27:16,17 30:8,9 30:14 31:20,21 32:25 33:1 35:2 35:3,4 37:18,19 37:20,20 41:14 41:16,17 42:21 42:22 45:5,6,17 51:10,11 52:25 55:1,2 57:23,24 58:5 60:1,2 61:3,4 65:12,13 67:6,7 68:3,7,8 68:23,24 72:1,2 75:13,14 79:12 79:13,14 80:7 82:18,19 84:25 85:1 89:24,25 90:17,18 91:15 91:16 92:12,13 95:16,17 96:25 97:1 100:12,15</p>	<p>100:16 104:9 104:10,18 108:10,11 names 5:22 7:2 111:8 Nathan 2:21 4:21 nation 59:4 106:21 national 39:8 77:8 natural 108:23 nature 56:6 63:18 nature's 63:18 near 6:13 21:4 29:3 47:10 48:16 72:7,20 94:3 100:24 103:24 nearby 102:5 nearly 57:1 70:9 necessary 39:9 63:14 64:16 73:21 79:1 necessity 1:11 3:8 44:16 64:15 73:24 74:5 need 21:6,12 22:23 33:16 36:13 40:16 44:24 51:24 53:16 56:9 66:10 80:16 84:20,21 87:16 90:8 98:15 103:22 110:1,3 110:3,5 needed 25:18 41:7 52:12,12 52:13 79:1 110:6 needs 26:3 39:6 44:17 53:15 81:20 96:15 negative 25:11 negatives 84:22</p>	<p>neighbor 36:9,16 37:2 58:15,20 98:13 neighbor's 36:7 36:7 neighbors 36:1 36:10 69:21 71:8 95:12 Nelson 65:10,14 113:1 never 19:25 29:13 46:25,25 47:25 73:7 93:10 103:19 103:20 new 31:10 36:15 36:20 44:18 46:12 48:3 49:2 49:2,4 53:6 59:1 73:21 81:23 82:4 89:5 91:5 newer 66:15 nicer 81:11 night 54:10,20 nine 34:6 79:17 79:20,22 nine-county 91:23 ninth 34:3 no-tillers 72:15 Nolan 68:21,25 113:4 non-profit 77:9 non-wind 82:1 nonprofit 104:14 107:12 Norborne 82:23 Norman 97:5 north 17:11 33:9 39:3 45:25 66:11 98:18 109:2 northern 41:20 42:14,25 51:15 55:5 64:21</p>	<p>65:16 70:11 82:6 Northwest 7:15 60:5 95:20 not-for-profit 104:20 notable 83:18 notes 88:24 notice 4:10 noticed 18:3 19:19 40:22 notices 14:19 notified 11:19 November 79:25 noxious 46:7,20 46:24 nuclear 93:22 number 3:13 47:19,19 51:4,6 59:1 96:2 99:25 numbers 40:12 numerous 46:5 nurse 18:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">O</p> <p>o0o- 111:23 oath 5:24 obstacle 40:21 obtain 24:15 obtained 46:15 obvious 56:19 72:22 obviously 9:22 occasion 18:22 occasions 26:14 occupation 52:20 81:7 occurring 25:1 occurs 24:8 October 65:23 offer 6:1 93:1 office 2:14,17 4:22,24 35:23 offices 2:11 33:8 officials 74:11 105:8</p>	<p>offset 78:3 offshore 39:4 oil 59:8 80:4 81:5 okay 8:7,22 20:11 48:24 49:25 53:18,20 75:7 108:6 Oklahoma 101:8 old 46:11 80:2 91:22 older 8:12 9:9,10 66:14 Olga 104:7,11,18 113:17 Olympic 75:16 once 15:11 79:7 90:11 ones 14:15 15:22 16:3 19:9,10 43:25 81:6 100:25 101:1 ongoing 46:8 83:19 open 56:3 97:12 97:15 106:13 operate 1:12 3:9 45:21 operates 80:14 operation 32:11 32:12 49:4 66:17 69:16 106:5 operations 84:3 operator 47:11 opinion 60:12 88:9 104:2 opinions 63:19 Opitz 2:15 4:24 4:24 opportunities 13:7,18 68:15 87:20 107:2 opportunity 7:15 13:8,15,20 27:25 38:2 52:13 55:8 58:5</p>
--	---	--	--	--

69:8 82:13,25 83:14 87:10 88:10,13,25 104:17 oppose 22:2,14 57:3 69:9 opposed 17:16 24:1 30:18 38:6 91:3 97:10 opposing 64:4 opposition 5:19 28:2 52:14 55:9 97:16 option 38:7 order 57:4 organic 36:15 organization 35:8 107:10 organizations 37:10 61:19 organized 99:16 ought 103:7 out-of-state 71:13 outage 18:22 outhouse 47:4 outputs 105:23 outweigh 84:22 overapplies 54:5 overhead 47:24 47:24 Overland 19:21 owner 18:19 owners 83:17 owns 76:17,18 80:17	P.O 2:18,22 PAGE 112:3 113:21 paid 29:15 37:3 46:25 48:23 80:20 93:6 99:20 Palmera 102:15 103:3 panels 44:22 PAR 32:4 58:6,7 58:11,18,23 59:5,10,13,17 parallel 110:25 parcel 53:23 parcels 38:12 93:4 parents 20:22 85:18 Park 19:21 Parkville 54:15 part 3:22 9:9 17:23 18:19 62:23 63:11 87:15 98:12 110:8 participating 106:23 particular 3:21 4:6 particularly 49:11 partly 97:8,8 partner 49:3 Partnership 91:23 parts 59:8 party 41:4 pass 24:2 passed 94:23 pasture 46:9 path 7:19 25:25 28:24 Patrick 30:6,10 30:14 112:13 pay 23:25 30:23	43:25 49:22 77:1 78:12 86:5 106:3,5 payers 24:3 25:23 paying 43:24 68:17 payment 83:20 pays 77:5 peaceful 60:12 pens 47:14 people 7:2 8:2 9:2 10:6 11:16 16:13,14 18:1,6 18:22 19:2,6,11 19:14,19,22 24:19 25:21 26:9 32:8,17 35:15 40:16 43:10 44:17,23 45:1 53:18 54:14 55:20 56:15 57:7 61:15 62:16,17 63:14 68:18 70:12 74:7 80:12 85:13 86:6,11 87:18 87:19 88:2 90:25 93:12,20 94:2 95:24 96:6 97:18,23 100:21,23 101:23 102:5 102:17 103:8 103:23 110:21 111:14 people's 16:9 31:9 66:2 67:24 102:18 perceived 76:10 percent 38:17,17 40:1 76:19 81:25 percentage 16:13 perfect 33:17	perils 21:2 period 81:12 permission 21:9 29:11 73:10 person 6:6 15:17 19:12,18 36:17 62:2 personal 61:13 106:7 personally 19:10 38:5 67:14 perspective 39:23 40:12 107:2 pesticides 54:5 Peters 30:6,10,14 112:13 petition 71:15 petitions 15:24 phone 6:11 98:25 phones 5:9 Phyllis 7:4 physical 71:11 picture 47:6 50:21 92:24 pictures 72:19 74:14,24 piece 101:22 piggybacked 53:16 piggybacking 52:4,5 pile 76:12 pink 65:25 Pinkerton 31:18 31:22 112:14 pipe 101:16,18 101:20,22 102:9,9 pipelayer 109:5 pipeline 9:17,18 21:1 43:8 45:25 46:13 47:10,16 47:23 48:1 49:23 50:4,7 85:20 86:10	101:5 pipelines 46:2,4 49:14 50:2,3 52:6,10 86:16 102:19 108:22 109:3,7,10,14 109:18 110:13 111:2 pipes 101:14 Pisciotta 37:16 37:20 112:17 pitchforks 63:24 place 34:13 44:23 66:19 75:23 83:18,21 115:9 placed 83:22 places 13:11 placing 64:22 plan 14:14 21:12 24:10 38:8,25 56:23 64:25 76:2 planes 9:12,13 planning 30:20 plans 55:13 plant 52:22 77:20 89:8 planted 73:4,5 planters 54:2 planting 78:3 Platte 109:16 Plattsburg 7:12 8:10 11:9 31:25 32:3,10 play 15:15 60:24 70:14 played 60:19 please 5:23 6:20 6:22 7:6,8,13 12:5 14:4,15,17 15:22 17:4,7,12 21:17 23:3 29:21 30:2,2,8 31:20 32:25 35:2 37:18 41:16 42:21
<hr/> P <hr/> P 1:20 2:1,1 P-E-T-E-R-S 30:10 P-I-N-K-E-R-... 31:23 P-I-S-C-I-O-T-... 37:21 p.m 1:6 111:22				

45:5 51:10 55:1 57:16,23 60:1 61:3 65:12 67:6 68:7,23 72:1 75:13 79:6,12 82:18 84:25 89:24 90:5,17 91:15 92:12 94:4 95:16 96:25 104:9,15 108:10 plow 103:1 ploy 84:16 pockets 29:18 podium 5:24 point 38:19 66:10,15,23,25 95:8 poised 105:22 poles 42:5 95:1 policy 39:8 77:9 98:8 polite 6:22 political 63:15 84:16,17 pollution 106:24 Polo 7:16 10:13 17:10,11 19:1 pond 49:24,25 ponds 49:24 population 55:12 portfolio 25:19 portion 25:18 poses 110:18 position 81:4 88:17,18 positive 59:18 67:14 positives 84:22 possibility 68:17 89:14 possible 16:12 18:13 98:7 post 106:15 potentially 69:25 power 7:20 8:23	13:3 16:23 17:22 18:22 20:25 24:10 28:5,9,20,21,23 28:24 29:2,3,9 30:20 31:2,5 32:6 39:2,24 42:4,4,12 43:12 46:3 47:24,24 49:1 53:6,11 54:17,20 66:7,8 72:20 82:8 83:11 84:6 94:25 95:8 98:11,24 105:17 106:22 powers 63:16 83:22,25 Prairie 33:4 precedent 22:15 35:19 36:11 37:9,12 76:1 83:11 precedents 76:12 precision 52:24 54:1 94:13 predators 31:15 prefer 47:23 prepare 66:6 105:14 prepared 97:7 present 83:1 presented 6:18 25:5 presents 24:12 preserve 57:4 66:5 president 21:7 62:12 83:1 presiding 1:18 3:15 65:17 pressure 84:17 prettier 18:4 pretty 11:23 21:4 43:22 95:24 99:11	prevalent 66:4 prevent 24:21 55:14 preventative 59:9 previous 53:3 97:18 111:10 previously 18:1 115:9 price 8:24 43:25 priced 18:20 pride 33:22 55:25 primarily 70:10 primary 58:6 73:18 prime 99:23 Prior 12:23 pristine-looking 18:5 private 11:18,18 11:21 15:2 21:8 24:15,18,22 29:8,8,16 30:23 37:6 38:12 51:25 60:21 69:9 71:12 78:21 79:3 83:13,16,25 84:2 92:5,8 110:2 privately 29:18 privilege 70:9 privileges 24:16 24:22 probably 29:12 33:15 66:3 81:9 103:16,17 109:20,24 problem 7:17 8:2 8:17 10:1 16:4 47:1 49:21 problems 8:16 28:16 46:5,6 49:5,14 102:22 110:23	PROCEEDIN... 1:3 3:1 process 3:23 22:17 produce 36:15 76:25 99:25 produced 78:9 produces 36:5 38:20 72:15 product 106:9 production 38:22 64:12 productive 38:12 productivity 16:18 69:24 72:14 products 16:15 Professional 115:6 profit 16:15 37:10 38:8 56:19 64:13,15 75:24 76:6 78:23 80:9,10 profitability 69:24 profits 76:6 77:3 program 104:18 progressing 10:3 prohibit 78:21 project 3:22 5:19 13:4,13 17:17 18:8 19:5,13,17 23:11,14 26:21 31:14 33:12 34:19 35:6 38:7 38:15 40:9,13 46:3 55:9 56:10 57:4,9,17 58:9 58:15,20 59:10 59:14,18 61:21 62:24 67:15 69:11,22 71:16 72:11 74:18 83:4,8,9,25 84:7 92:4,6,7	104:19 105:24 106:6,10,12 107:10,11 projections 39:18 projects 33:23 73:24 101:7 promised 108:4 promises 39:18 39:21 84:12,13 promising 40:2 promote 77:10 91:25 110:7 promotes 38:15 properties 69:17 property 8:8,18 9:22 11:15,17 15:9 22:4,5,8 22:11,12 29:14 35:10 36:8 37:8 41:1 46:5 50:22 57:4,16 64:5,10 64:19,20,22 69:21,23 71:5 75:21 76:4 78:22 79:3,4 80:21,22 83:16 83:17,19 84:2 92:5,8 98:4,12 98:13 99:2,4,7 102:18 103:9 106:3,6 108:25 109:11 110:16 proposal 57:8 62:20 84:9,10 propose 29:6 proposed 5:17 10:11 17:15 20:20 38:24 43:6 53:6,8 57:2 64:18 69:18,20 72:21 83:10 84:6,14 105:6 108:16 108:21 proposing 63:22
--	--	--	---	---

<p>64:18 pros 91:1 protect 21:13 29:23 30:2 31:14 57:16 protection 92:2 109:3,10 protesting 81:24 protocols 49:9,13 49:17,18 proud 18:18 55:22 prove 92:21 proves 82:1 provide 5:21 31:10 33:25 36:12,14 59:16 71:8 79:1 88:12 89:1 providing 1:13 3:11 33:22 56:18 71:2 84:1 89:14 111:15 public 1:2,5 2:14 2:17,20 3:4,5 4:22,25 5:12,18 11:13,14 13:10 14:11,20 16:19 17:3 19:25 24:12,15,23,24 25:11 26:18 30:16 39:19 47:3 54:11 62:19,22 65:22 69:12 73:9 74:3 74:25 77:10 84:21,21 97:9 106:11 111:13 115:8 public's 107:4 publicly 76:20 pulled 54:10 purchase 18:17 35:10 56:1 67:17 77:25 89:1</p>	<p>purchased 88:22 purpose 5:20 put 3:25 5:24 11:10 14:21,25 39:22 40:12 44:12 46:21 49:10,16 52:2 71:10 73:23 74:6 92:20 93:3 94:1 101:16 puts 66:12 putting 16:1 90:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">Q</p> <hr/> <p>quail 94:15 quarter 28:13 53:24 question 26:23 28:4 29:6 48:19 50:13 74:14 75:6 106:9 questions 6:17 6:19 13:22 22:18 24:25 28:4 100:5,6 quick 11:8 Quincy 101:10 Quinn 100:9,9 quit 82:11 87:8,9 quite 39:22 82:7 86:3 90:24 98:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">R</p> <hr/> <p>R 2:1 R&D 38:24 radiation 25:10 67:23 rails 89:12 rain 98:20,21 raise 26:9 31:2 42:14 53:2,22 60:14 87:20 raised 12:17 55:11,18 raising 25:23 Ramond 80:8</p>	<p>ran 47:14 ranch 21:5,10 ranchers 104:22 ranked 43:20 rare 18:22 24:8 26:14 rate 24:3 73:14 73:17 rates 23:24 24:5 25:23 26:11,17 33:14 103:21 Ray 12:15 51:23 reach 48:9 reaching 29:12 reactionary 76:12 read 64:7 real 11:8 35:16 46:10 49:21 85:21 88:7,10 reality 57:12 realize 8:3 realized 108:5 really 4:4 10:5,15 18:10 19:23 20:22 25:9 49:3 51:23 70:4 87:4 87:25 91:3 94:14 99:6 100:1 103:2,22 Realtime 115:7 reap 77:3 reason 17:18 44:25 61:20 76:22,24 79:3 96:7 101:12 reasonable 6:4 reasons 13:5 52:16,18 73:16 74:4 78:22 rebuild 39:15 recall 23:17 receive 43:8 83:19 84:6 received 73:12 98:25 105:18</p>	<p>receiving 22:3 recess 71:21,22 reclaim 94:1 recognize 40:23 recognized 84:15 105:8 record 3:2,25 35:3 51:2 67:7 71:24 100:16 111:20 recouped 77:12 77:16 recover 103:13 RECs 77:25 redo 29:11 reduced 73:17,18 reducing 76:6 106:24 reduction 30:25 reelected 79:25 reform 78:20 refuse 83:23 regarding 5:15 73:24 region 23:15 24:13 26:17 92:3 Regional 91:22 Registered 115:6 regulations 58:8 regulators 23:21 regulatory 1:18 3:15 reject 31:14 related 58:9,9,10 relation 11:11,11 reliable 59:16 relocate 39:15 remain 6:18 remediated 75:3 75:5 remember 55:25 65:20 78:19 remembered 65:24 remind 5:8 25:16</p>	<p>remodel 29:10 renders 111:18 renewable 22:14 25:17,22 56:14 76:13 77:17,19 77:20,25 86:24 97:14 106:21 107:19 rent 97:21 rented 97:20 rents 105:19 repair 59:6,9 repeat 97:25 repercussions 28:9 replace 66:22 99:6 replaced 66:10 REPORTED 1:24 Reporter 115:1,5 115:6,6,7 represent 12:15 13:6,17 representative 12:14 36:4 78:15 83:2 representatives 6:21 representing 51:21 reps 40:23 47:16 request 6:22 69:11 71:14 84:18 required 62:23 requires 63:19 research 43:12 70:4 107:24,25 108:1 reserve 51:3 reside 19:16 resident 45:18 residents 24:9 25:12 58:14 59:15 79:2</p>
--	--	---	---	---

<p>resources 39:4 85:17 106:21 respect 29:1 63:19 68:14 respectful 55:19 respectfully 57:15 69:11 71:14 response 74:23 responsibility 40:17 responsible 55:19 74:15 rest 14:17 20:3 restaurants 59:12 restoration 48:23 restrict 84:3 restrictions 49:4 rests 30:2 result 77:6 resulted 59:2 resulting 46:18 retail 59:11 retained 114:8 retired 9:5 35:22 retirements 8:3 revenue 26:8 59:7 74:8 106:1 revenues 59:8 62:24 78:23 86:15 revolution 36:15 richer 103:18 rid 49:24 ridiculous 86:13 right 8:24 35:10 57:16 60:21 91:6 94:21 96:2 98:18 102:16 103:1,6,16 right-of-way 102:25 103:1 rightfully 41:6 78:20 rights 15:1 29:24</p>	<p>56:13 57:5,5 69:22 71:5 75:21 76:4 79:4 79:5 92:6,8 risk 20:23 43:12 43:18 44:12 48:1 53:15 69:25 75:21 risks 54:21 Rivers 74:18 road 35:22 36:2 36:2 91:8 roads 13:9 Rockie 108:24 role 58:6 roll 62:23 Romaine 2:7 room 80:2,10 88:6 root 15:19 route 17:15 47:2 69:18,20 83:10 95:3 row 53:22 rows 9:15,15 RPR 1:25 115:20 ruin 83:16 ruining 72:23 rule 17:1 60:21 60:23 rules 6:3 60:17 60:18,18,19,20 60:24 ruling 64:8 run 8:11 21:1 30:20 42:4 52:9 52:13 54:1 101:8 102:20 103:11 running 7:22 52:6 98:12 runs 6:14 runway 10:20 runways 11:12 Rupe 1:8 rural 13:15,20</p>	<p>17:21 19:20 34:17 52:23 55:24 62:17 64:11 65:20 85:16 86:6 87:23 Russ 37:16 Russell 37:20 112:17 ruts 73:4 ruttet 73:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">S</p> <hr/> <p>S 2:1 S-E-V-E-R-N-S 33:2 S-P-I-L-K-E-R 72:4 S-P-R-O-U-S-E 45:8 sacrifice 41:1 sacrifices 57:11 safe 31:11 70:14 70:15,21 71:2 81:9 safety 13:10 94:2 108:25 109:4,9 109:12 110:12 110:18 111:2 sale 76:3 109:25 sales 94:23 109:23 Salisbury 35:5 Sam 78:15 San 81:15 save 24:5 32:17 saved 77:15 saving 77:13 103:15 106:22 106:24 savings 40:2,4 saw 11:25 81:19 94:9 Sawyer 77:7 saying 16:7,10 74:7</p>	<p>says 9:13 60:21 61:23 78:16 scared 63:5 scenic 92:2 scheduled 5:13 5:16 scheme 76:16 school 9:4 20:19 53:7 60:18 77:8 80:4 85:23 86:3 109:21 schooling 12:19 schools 13:9 36:14 62:19 science 52:22,24 Scott 57:21,25 58:5 112:23 second 6:5 48:3 64:6 101:11 secure 70:15 see 8:19 9:18 10:13 13:1 25:7 25:12 26:19,19 32:5 42:15 52:14 53:7 54:20 74:14 90:11 95:10,24 98:6 103:19 seen 17:21 19:25 32:7 44:22 50:11 67:14 94:25 95:3 102:6,25 107:25 108:1,2 109:16 sell 8:12,20 15:6 22:12 36:9,10 36:25 39:25 44:3 74:7 93:8 93:18 110:1,3 selling 16:15 Seminary 62:8 senate 4:14 Senator 4:11 senators 78:16 send 51:1</p>	<p>SENIOR 1:18 sense 76:22 90:11 95:7 96:15 sensitive 48:17 separate 63:17 separation 63:21 serenity 56:4 serious 38:5 69:25 102:12 sermon 99:17 serve 35:23 62:9 86:1,16 87:9 91:21 served 4:12 serves 87:12 service 1:2 2:20 3:4 4:13 14:12 14:20 17:3 18:20 22:1 24:24 30:16 59:12 65:22 69:12 106:11 115:8 services 13:9 59:5,9 67:18 85:24,25 set 3:5 22:15 35:20 37:9 39:8 83:11 115:12 setting 75:25 seven 14:13 77:14 96:2,2 seventh 60:16 Severns 32:23 33:2 112:15 Shafer 33:7,21 34:16 share 38:3 61:16 63:6,9,11 69:20 85:14 105:1 share-crop 97:21 sharing 3:20 Sharon 84:23 85:2 113:9 shed 57:8 sheet 5:23</p>
--	---	--	---	--

sheets 106:16	100:18,20	109:25	spiel 52:24	17:7,20 21:17
Shelby 72:6,10	sit 110:4	somewhat 75:5	Spilker 71:24	22:15 23:3,18
shelter 76:16	sites 28:18,20	son 22:6 60:15	72:3 113:5	23:19 24:20
shipyards 81:15	sits 101:21	96:1	spoke 19:20	25:24 26:1,20
shoes 14:21	sitting 88:6 95:23	sons 63:3 70:24	97:18	27:16 29:17,22
16:11	96:2	sooner 66:23	spoken 19:11	30:8 31:20
shops 66:18	situation 16:5	sorry 47:20	spokesman 53:3	32:25 35:2
short 14:18 16:8	38:9 80:19 88:5	55:23 95:9	83:5	37:18 40:14
16:16 71:20	situations 26:6	99:16	spray 94:19	41:16 42:21
short-term 56:12	six 21:3 46:3	sort 23:11	sprayers 54:2	45:5 51:10 55:1
87:2	51:22 52:8 53:9	sound 70:13	spread 40:3	57:23 58:9,18
Shorthand 115:6	53:9 105:11	Sounds 96:12	Spring 2:7	59:2 60:1 61:3
show 2:5 5:1 10:3	sixth 60:15	sources 82:1	Springfield 2:13	62:6 63:22
10:4 29:21 94:4	sixth-generation	south 45:23	54:16	64:23 65:12
106:7 109:25	96:1	69:19 109:2	Sprouse 45:3,7	67:6,16 68:7,23
showed 46:14	size 47:4 53:11	speak 7:15 14:18	45:17 102:21	72:1 74:6 75:13
showing 70:5	54:8	69:8 96:6 97:8	112:20	79:12 81:13
shown 110:2	skills 70:12	97:11 100:12	spur 77:20	82:18 84:25
shows 36:6 46:16	skip 89:21	104:4 111:14	spurred 77:21	86:22,25 87:5
109:9	skipped 96:12	speaker 89:20	square 89:9	87:24 89:24
side 28:14 36:1	sky 56:3	97:9	St 16:16 62:15	90:17 91:15
70:25 71:1	slant 19:8	speaking 15:24	stabilize 26:7	92:12,20,22,25
97:17 99:22	small 10:21	82:13	stable 23:23	93:16,20 94:22
109:2,13	12:19 36:18	specific 24:25	staff 4:20 6:13,20	95:7,16 96:25
sides 35:12,14	47:4 62:4 78:12	83:15	30:16 45:15	100:15 104:9
99:20	78:18 85:16	spell 7:9 12:6	61:14	105:3,6 107:3
sign 15:24 22:22	86:6 101:5	14:5 17:8 21:18	stakeholders	108:10 115:5
74:6 111:11	smell 36:20,21	23:4 27:17 30:9	106:14	state's 105:23
sign-up 5:22	smells 36:23	31:21 33:1 35:3	stand 23:10	stated 40:24 43:5
signage 48:7	smelters 81:16	37:19 41:17	29:23 61:22	48:4,8 49:18
signal 54:4	Smithfield 36:4	42:22 45:6	66:12 87:17	53:25 64:19
signed 22:23	smoke 82:12	51:11 55:2	102:3 108:20	74:4 76:20
111:9	smooth 73:4	57:24 60:2 61:4	110:4	102:7
significant 99:11	society 80:15	65:13 67:7 68:8	Standard 80:4	statement 70:2
99:15 106:5	sociology 52:23	68:24 72:2	standing 88:6	states 23:12
significantly 41:7	soil 46:5,6,16,17	75:14 79:13	96:11	28:12 32:19
signs 25:13	46:17 72:17,24	82:19 85:1	Stanford 77:7	36:6 38:11,16
silenced 5:9	solar 44:22	89:25 90:18	start 39:16 51:24	39:3,3 43:23,24
silver 74:12	sold 64:13 74:10	91:16 92:13	101:15 103:10	52:2 59:3 63:23
similar 26:6	Solomon 81:3,4	95:17 97:1	started 7:16	64:1,16,24
90:14 105:22	solution 15:22	100:16 104:10	12:19 66:23	80:14 81:13
simply 40:19	solutions 33:22	108:11	81:7	87:15 101:25
64:24	33:25 34:17	spelled 37:21	state 1:1 2:16	108:24
simultaneously	104:24 107:19	spend 43:21 70:9	4:14 5:18,25	station 1:13 3:11
26:16	solved 16:4	spent 19:24	7:8 10:4 12:5	63:17
sir 33:6 65:3	somebody 81:23	46:22 78:17	12:14 14:4,13	status 22:3 24:16

<p>24:23 stay 14:15 18:23 staying 21:12 stepped 46:12 89:20 sterilize 82:11 Steve 61:5 Steven 61:1 112:25 Stevens 7:4 sticker 61:21 stood 93:12 stop 87:21 88:1 stopped 64:25 stores 59:11 story 8:2 85:15 stray 42:7,8,10 48:17 Street 2:17 stringing 101:15 strip 11:22 98:14 strong 23:10,14 23:22 106:22 strongly 22:2 41:5 57:3 97:10 struck 13:2 structure 47:6 struggle 85:17 87:1 struggling 87:18 stuck 11:4 students 16:17 studied 62:20 studies 53:15 70:6 102:11 109:8,14 stuff 49:18 93:7 stunting 72:22 submit 6:10 47:7 47:8 submitting 47:6 54:14 subsidiary 77:5 subsidiaries 78:13 subsidy 78:16 subsoil 103:9</p>	<p>substantial 25:18 substation 44:2 81:5 success 49:3 sudden 34:10 Suite 2:12 summary 49:1 Summit 54:16 supplied 50:5 suppliers 58:25 59:5 supplies 36:13 supply 33:13 39:6 50:14,20 66:6 74:3 support 5:18 13:4 19:3,12,20 22:7 23:11 28:1 34:19 40:23 44:19 57:16 70:2 72:10 76:13 supported 61:20 supporters 38:4 40:15 supports 59:13 107:19 supposed 43:18 44:14,16 77:19 94:5 110:22,23 sure 5:9 8:15 16:5 20:18 23:22 44:21 58:7 75:4 98:9 99:12 100:1 101:14 103:8 103:16 survey 52:9 surveyed 52:7,8 surveyor 19:6 survival 13:6 survive 78:4 susceptible 11:16 sustainable 56:14 sustainably</p>	<p>55:12 swath 40:18 swear 100:13 sworn 7:7 12:4 14:3 17:6 20:8 21:16 23:2 27:15 30:7 31:19 32:24 35:1 37:17 41:15 42:20 45:4 51:9 54:25 57:22 59:25 61:2 65:11 67:5 68:6,22 71:25 75:12 79:11 82:17 84:24 89:23 90:16 91:14 92:11 95:15 96:24 100:14 104:8 108:9 sympathy 40:25 system 73:18,20 80:20 systems 85:23</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">T</p> <hr/> <p>T-R-A-M-M-E... 17:10 table 6:13 tables 15:1 tactics 29:22 take 5:14 8:13 11:17 15:3 25:3 37:7,11 40:18 42:11 43:3,11 43:18 44:7 52:17 55:15 63:24 71:20 80:17 84:2 89:8 95:11 103:8 taken 15:2 20:1 20:18 29:7 71:22 111:17 takeover 24:20 takes 34:7 60:8</p>	<p>talk 16:4 21:2 60:11 99:1,17 99:18 100:22 111:9 talked 8:15 talking 11:4 14:16 80:19 102:15 talks 48:22 tangled 95:1 task 39:14 taught 41:3 80:4 tax 13:10 26:4,8 36:14 62:23,24 74:8 76:16,20 76:23,24 77:6 78:6,17,23 86:15 94:23 taxes 26:9,13 77:5,14,15 106:3,6 taxpayers 77:2 78:11 teacher 9:4 teachers 70:18 tearing 103:9,12 tears 57:8 technology 36:21 48:14 teeth 84:10 telecommunica... 46:22 tell 10:16 21:3,13 28:20 36:19 42:7 44:14 54:7 61:22 85:20 86:10 91:1 94:6 98:10 102:4 telling 101:12 103:5,5 tells 28:8 103:14 temporary 40:11 40:19 48:10 ten 51:21 tenant 108:18 tens 46:23</p>	<p>tension 10:21,22 tentative 84:9 term 18:21 87:4 terms 84:21 terrible 18:9 test 28:25 71:9 testified 18:8 111:10 testify 6:4,5 7:3 18:1 22:23 87:3 testifying 3:24 6:23 testimonials 111:16 testimony 5:11 5:14,22 6:6 19:2,8,14 51:19 63:7 107:1 108:21 Texas 16:24 101:9 textbook 109:25 thank 3:19,20 4:9,11,15 5:7 7:14 10:7,9 11:6,7 12:1 13:24,25 14:1 14:11 17:4 20:1 20:4,6,13 21:14 22:1,17,19,20 26:21 27:13,24 30:3,5 31:16,17 32:21,22 34:22 34:23 37:14,15 38:1 41:9,10,22 42:17,18 43:2 45:2,15 49:6,7 50:12 51:7,17 54:22,23 55:8 57:18,19,20 58:4 59:21,21 59:23 60:7,25 61:10 65:1,2 67:1,2,25 68:1 68:20 69:7 71:18,19 74:12</p>
--	---	--	---	---

75:7 79:7,8,9 82:13,15,25 84:22 85:11,13 88:13,14,15,23 89:17,18 90:13 90:23 91:11,12 92:8,9 95:13 96:20,20,22 100:3,6,8,11 104:3,5,6,16 107:5,6 108:6,7 111:4,5,15,18 111:21 Thanks 12:12 Theological 62:8 theology 62:8 thing 20:17 24:14 29:14 34:20 86:8 93:11 98:1 99:11 100:23 101:1,3 104:1 things 10:6 11:1 34:8,12 37:13 59:8 61:11 63:10 86:5 87:10,25 88:3 103:11 108:4 110:21 think 10:7 17:25 18:4 19:7 22:23 23:15 26:19 32:16,18 33:17 34:8,19 37:14 48:12 49:16 51:24 65:19,21 80:24 82:10,12 86:8 87:4,21,22 96:6 97:15 99:15 101:2 103:22 110:25 thinking 14:19 third-generation 67:12 thought 8:7 21:3 29:14 91:4	99:14 thoughts 3:20 thousands 38:11 38:12 46:23 64:12 70:18 85:22 threat 76:10 threaten 71:5,5 threatened 29:15 69:21 threatens 76:7 three 12:21 23:12 38:11 41:24 47:15,16 50:3 52:5 56:21,24 57:1 69:17 70:24 101:4 105:25 106:2 108:22 109:18 109:19 110:10 110:13 three-fourths 90:7 Thursday 39:12 tickled 65:25 till 34:1 Tim 4:24 time 3:5 6:4,8,9 6:10,14,15 12:23 13:1 14:12,18 15:5,7 16:8,16 19:24 20:1,13,18 22:17 23:25 25:4,15 30:4,16 32:6 33:23 34:5 35:13,13 41:9 43:3 45:15 46:10 49:6 50:7 51:18 57:18 60:9 61:12,18 63:6 64:2,3 69:7 72:16 81:12 84:8 85:17 89:8 95:13 96:20	100:3 104:3,4 109:20 115:9 timer 6:7 times 11:1 42:1 53:9,9 61:12 73:15 77:22 82:2 88:5 Timothy 2:15 15:18 timothy.opitz... 2:19 Tina 90:21 100:19 108:14 tirelessly 70:21 tires 16:1 today 4:1,7 6:17 17:13 19:2 34:3 41:22 42:17 43:20 85:12 86:17 88:14 104:25 105:1,4 told 8:21 15:11 22:12 39:13 56:22 61:24 86:20 98:13 109:13 tonight 3:23 6:23 14:14 28:3 65:19 91:1 97:18 100:12 111:10 tool 13:18,19 top 9:19 94:25 topsoil 102:20 103:10 total 40:1,10 touch 20:21 26:4 touching 42:12 tough 4:4 tour 7:15 tourism 91:22,23 91:25 tower 48:24 71:1 83:23 93:25 towers 11:2,3,10 11:24 71:18	83:19,21,21 98:3 town 12:24,25 24:10 33:18,19 72:7 town's 20:21 towns 86:6 track 6:8 tract 46:21 tractor 42:4 trade 67:13 Trails 91:22 train 47:21 trained 47:21 trains 81:14 Trammell 17:5,9 112:8 transcribed 3:24 TRANSCRIPT 1:3 transformers 81:5 transmission 1:13,14 3:10,13 5:17 11:11 13:16 18:12 30:19 38:10 41:23 43:9 44:18 52:1,13 52:19 55:14 59:14,20 66:8 66:11 67:21 68:12 70:25 71:4,10 73:21 75:24 83:4,8 84:20 94:6 97:10 99:7 105:2,6,9 107:22 transparency 106:17 transparent 106:13 transport 64:24 Transportation 80:8	transported 44:20 81:19 transporting 39:2 transports 38:20 traveled 81:12 travels 53:8 treat 6:24 treated 6:24 74:9 tree-cutting 99:1 trees 56:3 78:3,4 98:15 Triplett 90:3 trouble 25:14 53:5 54:7 truck 58:25 59:1 80:7 trucks 73:2 103:1 103:11 true 39:19 43:16 44:2 truly 56:17 Truman 62:6 trust 11:3 61:17 96:5 try 6:3 10:25 36:24 46:24 67:24 93:25 110:7 trying 75:23 110:3 turbines 78:8 105:19 turkey 94:15 turn 30:3 86:23 98:18 turned 81:10 90:10 TWA 8:1,2,3 9:5 twice 8:17 two 4:1,12 8:19 11:23 13:17 15:9 17:10 23:21,25 46:4 47:9 48:3 49:24 63:2,3,4,8
--	--	--	--	--

73:16 86:2,3 97:4 101:17 108:17	unnecessary 57:4 57:17 unprecedented 53:12 54:9 unsubstantiated 39:18 unsustainable 77:2 unwilling 31:1 updated 28:17 81:21 urge 31:14 32:15 41:5 46:1 61:25 83:6 usage 40:1 use 10:18,20 16:20 21:9 22:8 35:20 36:16 37:7 44:25,25 48:10,13 51:5 57:14 66:4,5,16 66:16,17,18 75:23 76:2,9,13 80:21 84:16 94:1 109:3 uses 59:5 81:18 Usually 23:22 Usurp 64:4 usurped 64:1 utilities 24:17,23 37:11 39:19 73:6 79:1 92:23 104:23 106:23 110:5 utility 2:10 5:5 16:20 22:3 24:15,20 25:23 58:11,21 72:25 73:8,13 74:15 110:6	value 30:25 92:3 values 64:10 69:23 92:5 variety 13:4 various 66:16 Vasner 7:5 Vetter 7:5,5,10 112:5 viability 76:7 viable 38:25 72:18 Vicki 27:14,18 112:12 Vies 2:7 views 56:3,6 Village 33:4 violated 75:22 violation 79:4 visited 23:20 voice 55:9 101:3 voices 71:16 volt 42:11 voltage 1:12 3:10 42:7,8,10,11 43:13 Volume 1:9 vote 32:16 54:17 voted 86:21 voters 25:17,19	15:22,23 16:3,6 16:13,19,20,20 17:16 19:17 22:2,6,8,11,15 23:22,24 24:1 26:4,20 28:23 34:11 35:9,24 36:8,9,10,24 42:15 49:22 50:6,15,20,25 51:3 52:1 58:22 60:7 61:16 63:9 80:15,18 83:15 84:11 85:11 87:9 90:8,23 98:1,10 wanted 4:11 8:19 8:20,21 12:21 22:11 47:11 96:5 105:1 wanting 65:3 95:25 wants 29:19 36:25 45:23 50:14 96:17 Ward 7:4 Warner 100:10 100:12,17 108:22 113:16 warning 6:8 Warren 33:7,22 34:16 76:17,20 washed 98:22 watching 17:23 water 94:21 106:24 waterlines 46:7 110:21 way 15:1 24:21 46:24 49:17 52:3 55:24 57:10 62:11 64:4 80:14 89:2 ways 26:7 we'll 6:8 8:7,7 34:3 66:24	71:20 74:7 89:21 99:5 we're 3:2,3 4:7 9:10 10:3,3 13:6,7 19:9 25:13 26:6 36:12,12,13 43:25 50:10 54:7 58:12,19 58:20 75:25 86:23 89:11 90:11 91:7,9 94:24 103:15 104:25 107:12 107:14 we've 13:1 18:1 33:23 34:17 46:5,12 49:22 50:9 58:13 91:8 107:20,24,25 108:2 109:16 111:13 wearing 62:3 website 106:16 weeds 46:7,20,24 week 75:1 weeks 101:17 welcome 12:2 welcomed 58:22 weld 101:14,19 101:20 Welden 45:3,7 45:17 112:20 welder 101:7,8 101:13 welding 101:20 welfare 55:19 57:14 well-being 71:11 went 7:16 8:6,14 42:13 44:19 46:12 49:25 52:20 97:16 west 79:17 96:23 97:2,4 113:15 WHEREOF
<hr/> U U.S 58:12 76:16 Ulico 27:6,7 un-American 15:10 unable 10:18 unacceptable 56:25 unaware 98:12 uncertainty 105:7 uncluttered 56:6 underneath 43:7 44:8 48:15,20 53:21 54:1,4,17 94:8 101:16,22 104:1 understand 16:10 33:15 56:8 62:16 95:5 98:15 105:14 understanding 44:1 underway 105:5 underwriters 98:5 unfair 84:18 Unfortunately 7:24 31:13 union 19:6 40:23 unique 7:17 united 36:6 62:11 63:23 64:2,3 80:14 81:13 87:15 101:25 108:24 University 45:20 52:20 62:6 80:1 109:22 unjustified 32:9 unknown 110:24 unloading 48:5	<hr/> V V-E-T-T-E-R 7:10 valid 25:7 valuable 61:13	<hr/> W W-A-R-N-E-R 100:17 W-E-S-T 97:2 W-H-I-T-E 67:8 W-I-L-S-O-N 90:1 Waccamaw 98:16 walk 102:3 Walter 71:24 72:3 113:5 want 3:18 5:11 8:20 9:24,24 11:17 13:10 15:3,4,4,6,8,17		

115:12 wherewithal 74:11 White 67:4,8 113:2 wife 12:20 13:12 22:6,22 51:21 62:3 wife's 62:17 wildlife 94:14 WILLIAM 1:20 Williams 2:21 4:21,21 50:13 50:19,24 51:3,7 65:3 willingness 85:14 Wilson 89:22 90:1 113:10 win/win 53:18 wind 36:23 38:17 38:21,22 39:1,4 39:4 44:20 56:16 59:13,20 76:15,15,19,21 76:25 77:6,12 77:20,23 78:5 78:12,14,17,18 83:19,20,23 105:17,18,19 108:2,3 windmills 8:23 window 53:7 54:20 wiping 94:24 wire 16:1 wish 18:18 25:3 withdraw 63:23 witness 6:14 7:7 7:10,12,14 10:12,20 11:13 11:23 12:2,4,7 12:10,12 13:25 14:3,6,9,11 17:6,9,13 20:8 20:10,12 21:16 21:19,22,25	22:22 23:2,5,8 23:10 27:1,3,6 27:8,11,15,18 27:20,23 30:7 30:10,12,14 31:19,22,25 32:3,24 33:2,4 33:6 34:23 35:1 35:4 37:17,23 37:25 41:11,15 41:18,20,22 42:20,23,25 43:2 45:4,7,10 45:13 49:11,16 50:14,18,21 51:9,12,15,17 54:25 55:3,5,7 57:22,25 58:2,4 59:25 60:3,5,7 61:2,5,8,10 65:5,11,14,16 67:5,8,10,12 68:2,4,6,9,11 68:22,25 69:3,6 71:24,25 72:3,6 72:9 74:17,21 75:4,10,12,15 75:18,20 79:11 79:14,17,20 82:17,20,23,25 84:24 85:2,4,7 88:18,23 89:7 89:18,23 90:1,3 90:6,16,19,21 90:23 91:14,17 91:19,21 92:11 92:14,16,18 95:15,18,20,22 96:24 97:2,4,7 100:11,14,17 100:19,21 104:8,11,13,16 107:8,11,14,18 107:23 108:7,9 108:12,14,16 112:3 115:12	woman 8:18 won 25:19 87:12 wonder 104:1 word 15:12 words 15:9 work 9:3 24:18 26:3 32:4,6 33:11,25 34:1 34:14,16 40:16 42:1,2 47:12 48:14 55:17 62:7 70:14 86:9 96:8 105:5 109:18 110:13 110:20 worked 8:1 29:15 34:17 56:7 57:11 68:13 70:21 80:4,5,6 81:1,2 81:7,10 83:17 85:21 101:5 104:21 107:24 workers 67:18 working 9:19 31:8 50:10 59:8 59:10 67:20 70:10 80:10 81:3,13 95:3 107:20 works 105:15 worlds 26:15 worry 11:2 Worse 47:1 worthless 37:1 worthwhile 89:15 wouldn't 15:15 82:7 write 76:1 writing 6:11 written 107:22 wrong 38:13 63:25 64:20 wrote 7:23	<hr/> X <hr/> X 112:1 <hr/> Y <hr/> Y 1:19 y'all 35:22,23 Y-O-U-N-G 68:9 yards 28:6 47:4 year 5:14 24:6 36:23 40:5 46:10 77:13 85:23 86:12,19 94:10 106:4 years 4:12 8:19 8:22 12:18 17:19 18:24 29:13 31:3 33:21 34:2,10 35:22 46:3,19 46:21 47:9 52:8 54:22 56:21 57:1 58:13 65:18 66:13 67:13 68:14 70:10 77:14 79:24 81:1,8 82:5,8 85:21 87:6 93:22 95:2 102:1,7 104:21 105:11,25 106:2 107:20 yesterday's 48:11 yield 46:8,13,14 46:15 York 82:4 young 12:21 33:18 41:25 68:4,9 70:12,23 70:24 87:19 103:14 113:3 youth 70:10,11 youth-serving 70:19 <hr/> Z <hr/>	zigzag 15:25 <hr/> 0 <hr/> 1 <hr/> 1.5 77:5 1.77 78:13 10 18:24 24:6 34:1,6 35:22 40:3 48:8 71:21 77:22 81:1 85:21 93:22 101:17 103:15 104:21 105:20 106:23 107:20 100 113:16 104 113:17 108 113:18 12 112:6 120 101:11 102:15 13 50:9 105:18 13,000 105:16 1335 115:21 14 1:6 112:7 14,000 78:7 14th 3:3 15 35:22 67:13 79:21 1500 40:9 105:25 1741:6 48:4 112:8 172,000 89:9 1834 22:5 1961 80:1 1965 8:6 <hr/> 2 <hr/> 20 17:18 18:24 48:7 96:17 112:9 200 2:17 101:11 200,000 24:9 2000 78:14 2005 87:13 2006 78:21
---	--	--	--	--

<p>2016 1:6 3:3 28:17 115:13 2017 86:22,23 21 22:10 112:10 21st 9:25 22 65:18 2230 2:18 23 112:11 23-year-old 22:5 2405 54:11 246 106:8 25 33:21 250 86:11 27 112:12 28.92 40:5 28th 115:13</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">3</p> <p>3.5 93:4,7 3.6 77:11,15 30 18:24 70:9 112:13 300 38:23 86:11 3010 2:12 31 112:14 314 2:7 32 112:15 34 112:16 345kv 1:14 3:12 36 52:14 36-inch 102:16 360 2:22 36th 43:20,21 37 112:17 39th 12:14</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">4</p> <p>4 39:25 40 36:1,2 38:17 81:24 111:14 40-bushel 46:14 41 112:18 113:23 42 112:19 42-inch 108:24 4200 39:5 45 68:14 102:1,7</p>	<p>112:20 458 38:22 460 82:7 476 106:9</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">5</p> <p>5 108:18 5/10000 40:10 50 46:21 47:4 48:7 500 25:22 38:23 39:23,24 50:23 82:7 500,000-volt 82:3 50s 43:15 51 112:21 54 112:22 57 112:23 59 112:24</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">6</p> <p>6:00 1:6 6:10 15:18 60 38:17 66:13 111:14 600 58:18 108:18 60s 43:15 61 41:12,13 58:13 112:25 113:23 62 75:8 113:24 63 34:10 113:25 63026 2:7 64 114:1 65 66:13 113:1 114:2 65102 2:18,23 65804 2:13 66 114:3 67 92:23 113:2 114:4 68 75:8 113:3,4 114:5</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">7</p> <p>7 76:19 112:5</p>	<p>7.2 106:3 71 113:5 75 113:6,24,25 114:1,2,3,4,5 780-mile 38:10 79 62:4 63:2 113:7</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">8</p> <p>8:58 111:22 80s 8:6 82 113:8 84 113:9 85 93:3 89 113:10</p> <hr/> <p style="text-align: center;">9</p> <p>9 1:9 9.6 106:2 90 113:11 91 113:12 92 113:13 95 113:14 95-year-old 56:2 96 113:15</p>		
--	--	--	--	--